
 

Citizens Watchdog Committee 
Meeting Agenda 

Monday, January 14, 2013, 5:30 to 8:30 p.m. 
1333 Broadway, Suite 300, Oakland, CA  94612 

 

**NOTE: EARLIER TIME FOR AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE REVIEW** 
5:30 to 5:45 p.m. – CWC Compliance Orientation 
5:45 to 6:30 p.m. – Audit and Compliance Report Review 
6:30 to 8:30 p.m. – Regular CWC Meeting 

 

Meeting Outcomes: 

 Receive an orientation on the CWC members’ role in the audit and compliance report 
review process and review a sample audit and compliance report 

 Review the fiscal year 2011-2012 audits and compliance reports 

 Receive an update on projects and programs 

 Review of Alameda CTC Annual Financial Report, June 30, 2012 

 Review the CWC Annual Report Cost Benefit Analysis 

 Receive an update on the One Bay Area Grant Program 
 

5:30 – 6:30 p.m. 1. Audit and Compliance Report Review 
01_Presentation_Compliance_Report_Review_Process.pdf – Page 1 
01A_Memo_and_Attachments_of_Compliance_Report 
Review_Process.pdf – Page 9 
01A1_Sample_Audit-Compliance_Report.pdf – Handout at meeting 
01A2_Compliance-Audit_Intake_Sheet.pdf – Handout at meeting 

I 

6:30 – 6:35 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions  

6:35 – 6:40 p.m. 3. Public Comment I 

6:40 – 6:45 p.m. 4. Approval of November 19, 2012 Minutes 
04_CWC_Meeting_Minutes_111912.pdf – Page 25 

A 

6:45 – 7:45 p.m. 5. Update on Projects and Programs 
05_Presentation_Capital_Projects.pdf – Presented at the meeting 
05A_Presentation_Pass-through_Funds_and_Grant 
Programs.pdf – Page 43 
05A1_Memo__and_Attachments_Pass-through_Funds 
and_Grant_Programs.pdf – Page 51 

I 



Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee Meeting Agenda 01/14/2013 
  Page 2 

7:45 – 8:00 p.m. 6. Alameda CTC Audited Annual Financial Report, June 30, 2012 
06_Presentation_Annual_Financial_Report_063012.pdf – Page 71 
06A_AlamedaCTC_Annual_Financial_Report_063012.pdf – Page 79 
06A1_Joint_Commission_and_CWC_Audit_Committee_Meeting 
Minutes.pdf – Page 153 

I 

8:00 – 8:05 p.m. 7. CWC Member Reports/Issues Identification 
07_CWC_Issues_Identification_Process_and_Form.pdf – Page 157 

A 

8:05 – 8:20 p.m. 8. Staff Responses to CWC Requests for Information 
08A_Memo_Response_to_Submitted_Issues_Form.pdf –  
Page 161 
08A1_Issues_Form_Submitted_for_CWC_Review.pdf – Page 163 
08A2_Memo_and_CWC_Annual_Report_Cost_Benefit 
Analysis.pdf – Page 165 
08A3_Memo_Funding_for_TEP_Ballot_Costs.pdf – Page 175 

I 

8:20 – 8:30 p.m. 9. Staff Reports/Board Actions 
A. General Items 

09A_Alameda_CTC_Action_Items.pdf – Page 187 
09A1_CWC_Calendar_FY12-13.pdf – Page 193 
09A2_CWC_Roster.pdf – Page 195 

I 

8:30 p.m. 10. Adjournment  

Key: A – Action Item; I – Information/Discussion Item; full packet available at www.alamedactc.org  

Next Meeting: 
Date: March 11, 2013 
Time: 6:30 to 8:30 p.m. 
Location: Alameda CTC Offices, 1333 Broadway, Suite 300, Oakland, CA  94612 

 
Staff Liaisons 
Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Policy, Public Affairs and Legislation, (510) 208-7428, tlengyel@alamedactc.org  
Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance, (510) 208-7422, preavey@alamedactc.org  
Angie Ayers, Public Meeting Coordinator, (510) 208-7450, aayers@alamedactc.org 
 
Location Information: Alameda CTC is located in Downtown Oakland at the intersection of 14

th
 Street and 

Broadway. The office is just a few steps away from the City Center/12
th

 Street BART station. Bicycle parking is 
available inside the building, and in electronic lockers at 14

th
 and Broadway near Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires 

purchase of key card from bikelink.org). There is garage parking for autos and bicycles in the City Center Garage 
(enter on 14

th
 Street between Broadway and Clay). Visit the Alameda CTC website for more information on how to 

get to the Alameda CTC: http://www.alamedactc.com/directions.html. 
 
Public Comment: Members of the public may address the committee regarding any item, including an item not on 
the agenda. All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the committee. The chair may change 
the order of items. 
 

http://www.actia2022.com/
mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org
mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org
mailto:aayers@alamedactc.org
http://www.alamedactc.com/directions.html


Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee Meeting Agenda 01/14/2013 
  Page 3 

Accommodations/Accessibility: Meetings are wheelchair accessible. Please do not wear scented products so that 
individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend. Call (510) 893-3347 (Voice) or (510) 834-6754 (TTD) five 
days in advance to request a sign-language interpreter. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 



1

CWC Annual Compliance 
Reporting Review Process

A Presentation by
Al d  C t  T t ti  C i i  St ffAlameda County Transportation Commission Staff

January 14, 2013

Citizens Watch Dog 
Committee Role
• Reviews all 2000 Measure B expenditures for the four 

program areas:p g
1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety

2. Local Streets and Roads

3. Mass Transit

4. Special Transportation for Seniors with Disabilities 
(Paratransit)

• Reports directly to the public annually

2

CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 01

Page 1



12/21/2012

2

Annual Compliance Report 
Requirements
• Measure B Pass-through funds recipients are 

required to submit to the Alameda CTC:q
1.Independent Financial Audit Report 

- Electronic and hardcopy due on December 27, 2012

2.Program Compliance Report
- Electronic and hardcopy due on December 31, 2012

• Financial Audit and Compliance Report captures 
recipients’ FY 2011-12 expenditures

3

Reporting Requirements

• Recipients required to expend Measure B dollars 
expeditiously 
Recipients must show they are meeting specific • Recipients must show they are meeting specific 
reporting requirements outlined in the MPFA 

• Publish an annual article in Alameda CTC 
newsletter or jurisdiction newsletter

• Post information on the jurisdiction’s website

• Link to www.AlamedaCTC.org

• Post Signage

4

Page 2



12/21/2012

3

New Compliance Policies
• Timely Use of Funds Policy: The MPFA requires all 

Measure B funds received to be spent expeditiously.
• Reserve Fund Policy: The MPFA allows recipients to 

reserve funds in defined reserve programs.
• Rescission of Funds Policy: The MPFA requires 

recipients to return unreserved unspent funds and all 
interest earned thereon to Alameda CTC.

• Complete Streets Policy: Implementation Guidelines 
require recipients to have an adopted complete 
streets policy, or demonstrate that a policy is being 
developed and will be adopted by June 30, 2013. 

5

During this process, CWC and Alameda CTC Staff 
• Reviews Financial Audit Reports 

Annual Program Compliance 
Report Review Process

Reviews Financial Audit Reports 
• Checks reported Measure B funds match actual allocations and 

reported expenditures
• Reviews Program Compliance Reports

• Checks reported Measure B FY 11-12 Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Planned FY 12-13 Projects and Reserves for accuracy and 
completeness

Available Resources: 
• Comment Forms - CWC and Alameda CTC staff may use a formatted Commenting Form, 

or may comment through other means (MS Word, paper, email, etc.)
• Compliance Review Process Guidance – A general guidance tool in reviewing audits and 

compliance reporting forms
• Reserve Policy Guidance – Describes implementation and evaluation of identified 

reserves.

6

Page 3



12/21/2012

4

• Example of the MS WORD Form
• Review Narrative questions for applicable programs

Annual Program Compliance 
Report Review Process

7

Annual Program Compliance 
Report Review Process

Review Tables 1‐3 for each Applicable Program for Completeness

 Table 1: Summary of 
Revenues and Expenditures

 Table 2: Summary of 
Expenditures and 
Accomplishments

 Table 3: Summary of 
Planned Projects and Planned Projects and 
Reserve Funds

8

Page 4



12/21/2012

5

Table 1: Revenues and Expenditures

Annual Program Compliance 
Report Review Process

9

Table 2: Summary of Expenditures and Accomplishments

Annual Program Compliance 
Report Review Process

10

Page 5



12/21/2012

6

Audit and Compliance 
Report Review Process

Other Measure B TABLE 1: Revenues and Expenditures

Financial Audit Report

Pass-through and Interest

TABLE 2: Summary of FY 11-12 Expenditures

11

Table 3: Planned Projects and Reserve Funds

Annual Program Compliance 
Report Review Process

12

Page 6



12/21/2012

7

CWC Compliance Review Dates
Dates Action
December 27 Independent Financial Audit Due

December 31 Programs Compliance Reports Due

January 7, 2013 Staff posts Compliance Reports to websitey p p p

January 14, 2013
(CWC Meeting)

 CWC receives binders with Audit and Compliance  reports
 Staff provides Compliance Review Guidance

January 28, 2013 CWC and staff completes audit/compliance review

January 31, 2013 Staff compiles audit/compliance report comments

February 2013 Measure B/VRF Recipients receive Compliance Status Letters and 
Request for Information Letters

March 11, 2013
(CWC Meeting) Draft Executive Summary of Compliance Report to CWC

April 2013 Draft Executive Summary to Committees

May 2013 Draft Compliance Report

June 2013 Final Compliance Report to Commission

13

Page 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 8



  CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
  Attachment 01A 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To: Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 
 
From: Matt Todd, Manager of Programming 
 John Hemiup, Senior Transportation Engineer  
 
Date: December 21, 2012 
 
Subject: CWC Compliance Reporting Review Process 
 
 
Recommendation 
This item is for information only. Staff developed the attached CWC Compliance Review 
Process Guidance for use by CWC members to assist them with the annual review process. 
 
Summary 
In 2000, voters approved Measure B which extended Alameda County’s half-cent 
transportation sales tax to 2022, set forth a 20-year Expenditure Plan for resultant 
revenues, and established a Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC). The role of the CWC is to 
review, on behalf of the public, all Measure B expenditures on projects and programs under 
the 2000 Expenditure Plan.  The CWC also participates in the compliance administration 
including monitoring the recipient’s timely delivery of reports and completion of reporting 
requirements. 
 
The Measure B pass-through fund agreements with local agencies and jurisdictions that 
receive programmatic funds require recipients to prepare and submit an independent 
audit and compliance report annually. The Expenditure Plan does not specify how the CWC 
should participate in the annual compliance report review process. Therefore, CWC 
members and staff have developed the attached guidance that provide detail about the 
current approach to the CWC review process, define terms, and explain the CWC members’ 
role in the compliance process. 
 
Staff welcomes input from CWC members on the attached policies and procedures. 
 
Fiscal Impacts 
There are no fiscal impacts at this time. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: CWC Compliance Review Process Guidance 
Attachment B: Annual Program Compliance Procedures and Policy Guidance  

Page 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 10



Attachment A 

 
Page 1 of 7 

Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) Compliance 
Review Process Guidance 
For Fiscal Year 2011-12 

 

1.1 Purpose 

Appointees to the Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) Citizens 
Watchdog Committee (CWC) have a voter-approved mandate to perform certain duties related 
to the expenditure of tax monies collected under Measure B, Alameda County’s half-cent 
transportation sales tax, which voters approved in 2000. Measure B set forth a 20-year 
Expenditure Plan (2002-2022) for use of resultant revenues and established a Citizens Watchdog 
Committee to review all expenditures and report to the public. 
 
The Measure B Expenditure Plan details the makeup of the CWC membership as well as its 
overarching goal. However, it does not specify how the CWC participates in the annual 
compliance report review process. The purpose of this guidance is to provide detail about the 
current approach to the CWC review process and provide a resource for process change when 
appropriate. 

1.2 Scope 

Alameda CTC requires local agencies and jurisdictions that receive Measure B pass-through 
program funds to report on their Measure B expenditures annually. The pass-through fund 
agreement with each agency specifies this requirement. Programmatic expenditures are 
described in detail in the Expenditure Plan. Pass-through fund recipients report on their 
expenditures in four areas: 
 

 Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety 

 Local Streets and Roads 

 Mass Transit 

 Special Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities (Paratransit) 
 

Each Measure B fund recipient submits an annual independent financial audit and compliance 
report to the Commission prior to year-end. In January each year, the CWC and Alameda CTC 
staff review these audits and reports and determine whether or not the recipient is in 
compliance. Alameda CTC staff analyzes the data from the audits and compliance reports, 
coordinates with local jurisdictions to ensure compliance, and develops a summary report for its 
Commissioners. The CWC also reviews the data, submits questions for jurisdictions, and 
generates an annual report to the public. 

Page 11



Alameda CTC CWC Compliance Review Process Guidance January 14, 2013 

 

 
Page 2 of 7 

 

1.3 Definitions 

A. Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC or “Commission”): Alameda 
CTC is a joint powers authority resulting from the merger of the Alameda County Congestion 
Management Agency (ACCMA) and the Alameda County Transportation Improvement 
Authority (ACTIA). The 22-member Commission is comprised of the following 
representatives: all five Alameda County Supervisors, two City of Oakland representatives, 
one representative from each of the other 13 cities in Alameda County, a representative 
from Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (AC Transit), and a representative from San 
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART). 

 
B. Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority (ACTIA): The governmental 

agency previously responsible for the implementation of the Measure B half-cent 
transportation sales tax in Alameda County, as approved by voters in 2000 and implemented 
in 2002. Alameda CTC has now assumed all responsibilities of ACTIA. 

 
C. Audit report: An annual, independent audit report commissioned by each agency or 

jurisdiction that receives Measure B pass-through funds. Alameda CTC staff and CWC 
members review the audit reports to evaluate whether each recipient spent Measure B 
funds in accordance with Measure B requirements. 

 
D. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC or “Committee”): The CWC includes 17-members with 

the following appointments: Ten at-large members, two each representing the five 
supervisorial districts in Alameda County, one of the two nominated by a member of the 
Board of Supervisors, and one of the two selected by the Alameda County Mayors’ 
Conference. Seven of the members are nominated by the seven organizations specified in 
the Expenditure Plan: Alameda County Economic Development Alliance for Business, 
Alameda County Labor Council, Alameda County Taxpayers’ Association, Alameda County 
Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee, East Bay Bicycle Coalition, League of Women 
Voters, and Sierra Club. The Committee reports directly to the public and is charged with 
reviewing all Measure B expenditures of the agency. Citizens Watchdog Committee 
members are private citizens who are not elected officials at any level of government, nor 
individuals in a position to benefit in any way from the sales tax. 

 
E. Compliance report: A report submitted to Alameda CTC by Measure B pass-through fund 

recipients annually. The compliance report details Measure B revenues and expenditures, 
and facilitates annual reporting for each program. Alameda CTC creates the template form 
for this report. 

 
F. Compliance workshop: A mandatory public workshop that Alameda CTC holds each fall to 

educate Measure B fund recipients on their annual compliance reporting requirements. 
Staff presents the compliance report form, explains the preferred audit language, and 
answers questions. CWC members may attend the workshop to familiarize themselves with 
the current fiscal year’s report forms. 

 
G. Fiscal year: The time period from July 1 to June 30, considered the fiscal year in the State of 

California. 
 

Page 12



Alameda CTC CWC Compliance Review Process Guidance January 14, 2013 

 

 
Page 3 of 7 

 

H. Measure B Programs: Transportation or transportation-related programs specified in the 
Expenditure Plan that receives funding on a percentage-of-revenues formula basis, or 
through a discretionary grant program. 

 
I. Recipient: Measure B fund recipients that have signed a Master Programs Funding 

Agreement (MPFA) with Alameda CTC and are required to report on their Measure B 
expenditures annually. In the fiscal reporting year of 2011-2012, the Alameda CTC 
distributed Measure B pass-through funds to twenty-one (21) agencies.  This includes six (6) 
local transit agencies (AC Transit, Altamont Commuter Express (ACE), Bay Area Rapid Transit 
District (BART), Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA), Union City Transit, and 
Water Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA)); fourteen (14) local jurisdictions (cities 
of Alameda, Albany, Berkeley, Dublin, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Livermore, Newark, 
Oakland, Piedmont, Pleasantion, San Leandro, and Union City); and Alameda County. 

 
J. Review: An examination of recipients’ audit report and compliance report submissions for 

conformance of expenditures for Measure B transportation programs and other contract-
related requirements. 

 
K. Table 1-3 Attachment: The required Excel spreadsheet attachment is part of the compliance 

report. There are three worksheets for each program to describe Revenues and 
Expenditures (Table 1), FY 11-12 Actual Expenditures and Accomplishments (Table 2), and FY 
12-13 Planned Project and Reserve Fund programming (Table 3).  

1.4 Responsibilities 

The CWC is responsible for keeping the public informed about the progress of Measure B-
funded programs and projects and the appropriate use of the funds. This responsibility is 
primarily exercised by reviewing and reporting on the audit and compliance submissions from 
the participating local transportation agencies and jurisdictions and Alameda County.  
 
Review and reporting responsibilies include the following. 
 

A. CWC chair: The chair plays an active role in both the review and reporting process. The 
chair works with Committee members on review and reporting tasks and may assign 
review and reporting to individual CWC members or groups of CWC members. For 
example, the chair could assign four subgroups to review reports according to 
geographic area in the county as defined in Measure B (North, Central, South, and East). 
The CWC chair could also identify special aspects of the review process, not defined in 
Measure B, but characterized as looking out for the public’s interests by examining 
submissions for items such as significant differences in the cost for the same activity, or 
large Measure B reserve balances, for example.  

 
B. CWC members: Each CWC member conducts the review of audits and reports, either as 

assigned by the chair or as a whole. CWC members prepare and submit questions on the 
submitted reports to staff and many serve on the CWC Annual Report Subcommittee to 
assist in preparation of the CWC Annual Report to the public. 

 

Page 13



Alameda CTC CWC Compliance Review Process Guidance January 14, 2013 

 

 
Page 4 of 7 

 

C. Alameda CTC staff: Staff makes all compliance reports and audits public by posting them 
to the Alameda CTC website, reviews the reports and audits, and incorporates the CWC 
member comments into their responses to the agencies and jurisdictions to confirm 
compliance or request clarification or more information. Alameda CTC staff also works 
collaboratively with CWC members to prepare the annual report to the public. 

 

1.5 Review Process 

The compliance review process follows a timeline detailed below and includes review of the 
audit report and the compliance report (inclusive of the Table 1-3 Attachment). The CWC 
members and Alameda CTC staff reviews all documents and cross checks them against each 
other to verify data accuracy and to ensure they are complete. CWC members and Alameda CTC 
staff also look at the Alameda CTC pass-through fund allocations for each Measure B fund 
recipient to ensure the compliance documents accurately reflect the figures. 

1.5.1 Timeline 

For fiscal year 2012-2013 reporting, the timeline is as follows: 
 

Due Date Task Responsible 
Party 

09/13/12 Prepare Compliance Reporting Forms Staff  

09/20/12 Hold Mandatory Compliance Workshop Staff 

12/27/12 Submit Financial Audit Report  Agencies 

12/31/12 Submit Compliance Audit Report Agencies 

01/07/12 Post Financial Audit and Compliance Reports to Website Staff 

01/14/13 January CWC Meeting – Compliance Report Review Orientation Staff 

01/28/13 Finalize Review of Financial Audits and Compliance Reports Staff/CWC 

02/01/13 Mail Letters to Jurisdictions Regarding Compliance Status Staff 

02/23/13 Submit Clarifying or Additional Information to Alameda CTC Agencies 

03/03/13 Prepare Draft Executive Summary Report for CWC Staff 

03/11/13 March CWC Meeting – Present Draft Executive Summary Report Staff 

04/08/13 Present Draft Executive Summary Report to PPC Staff 

04/25/13 Present Draft Executive Summary Report to Commission Staff 

05/13/13 Present Draft Compliance Report to PPC Staff 

05/23/12 Present Draft Compliance Report to Commission Staff 

06/10/13 Present Final Compliance Report to PPC Staff 

06/27/12 Present Final Compliance Report to Commission Staff 

1.5.2 Audit Report Review 

CWC members and Alameda CTC staff review each audit to assess that: 
 

A. The audit indicates that the jurisdiction has separate accounting and reporting for each 
type of Measure B fund received. 

 
B. All fund transfers are explained. 
 

Page 14



Alameda CTC CWC Compliance Review Process Guidance January 14, 2013 

 

 
Page 5 of 7 

 

C. Alameda CTC received the report within 180 days of the fiscal year-end. 
 
D. The audit contains an opinion or point of view offered by the auditor relative to the fund 

recipient’s compliance with Measure B requirements. 
 
E. The figures in the audit report tie to the figures in the compliance report and Table 1-3 

Attachment. 
 

1.5.3 Compliance Report Review 

CWC members and Alameda CTC staff review each compliance report and confirm that: 
 

A. All necessary program sections of the report are complete. 
 
B. The entries agree with each question asked or the requested information. 
 
C. The listed projects appear consistent with the programmatic topic area. 
 
D. The project information is specific or detailed enough to show the projects are 

transportation-related and in accordance with Measure B requirements. 
 
E. If a portion of the pass-through funds were not expended, future plans are described for 

Measure B Fund Reserves Table 3. 
 
F. For local streets and roads programs, the number of road miles submitted is consistent 

with the state and federal reporting. 
 
G. For local streets and roads programs, the pavement condition index figure submitted is 

consistent with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s 2011 Pothole Report for 
the year 2011. 

 
H. For local streets and roads and bicycle and pedestrian programs, agencies are reporting 

the development or adoption of a Complete Streets Policy by June 30, 2013. 
 
I. The figures in the compliance report tie to the figures in the Table 1 and Table 2 

Attachment and the audit report. 
 

1.5.4 Table 1: Revenues and Expenditures Attachment Review 

CWC members and Alameda CTC staff review each Table 1 Attachment and confirm that: 
 

A. For each program, the necessary worksheet of the Excel document is complete. 
 
B. The entries agree with the column entry instructions within the spreadsheet. 
 
C. The figures in the Table 1 Attachment tie to the figures in the Table 2 Attachment and 

the audit report. 

Page 15



Alameda CTC CWC Compliance Review Process Guidance January 14, 2013 

 

 
Page 6 of 7 

 

1.5.5 Table 2: Summary of Expenditures and Accomplishments Attachment Review 

CWC members and Alameda CTC staff review each Table 2 Attachment and confirm that: 
 

A. For each program, the necessary worksheet of the Excel document is complete. 
 
B. The entries agree with the column entry instructions within the spreadsheet. 
 
C. The figures in the Table 2 Attachment tie to the figures in the Table 1 Attachment and 

the audit report. 

 

1.5.6 Table 3: Summary of Planned Projects and Reserve Funds Attachment Review 

CWC members and Alameda CTC staff review each Table 3 Attachment and confirm that: 
 

A. For each program, the necessary worksheet of the Excel document is complete. 
 
B. The entries agree with the column entry instructions within the spreadsheet. 
 
C. The figures in the Table 3 Attachment represent an appropriate allocation of the total 

sum of the FY 11-12 ending Measure B Pass-through balances and anticipated FY 12-13 
revenues to each of the planned projects or fund reserve sections. 

 
D. The amount identified in Section 3: Operation Fund Reserve does not exceed 50% of 

anticipated annual FY 12-13 pass-through revenue.   
 
E.  The amount identified in Section 4: Undesignated Fund Reserve does not exceed 10% of 

the anticipated annual FY 12-13 pass-through revenue. 

 

1.5.7 Annual Compliance Report to the Public 

After Alameda CTC staff analyzes the compliance report data and develops a summary report, 
the CWC members develop an annual report to the public. CWC members volunteer to serve on 
a CWC Annual Report Subcommittee and work with staff to develop the report, which also 
includes information on capital projects and other CWC activities. 

 

1.5.8 General Guidance 

Alameda CTC staff reviews the compliance audit and report submissions and develops their own 
comments, questions, and concerns about the content. The CWC review process is also both 
required and significant, because it is the “public’s” review. 
 
The following points may give CWC members additional perspective on the task of reviewing the 
Measure B fund recipients’ audit and compliance submissions.  
 

A. Questioning large amounts of unspent monies is fair.  
 

Page 16



Alameda CTC CWC Compliance Review Process Guidance January 14, 2013 

 

 
Page 7 of 7 

 

B. During the review process, document all relevant items, questions, comments, and 
concerns. Just because one reviewer feels that other CWC members may identify a 
discrepant entry is not a reason to leave it out of review comments. 

 
C. Large dollar commitments to certain types of programs and administrative costs, for 

example, are fair to question.  
 
D. In examining the Funding Reserves, it is fair to question planned expenditures and 

reserve allocations for realistic project delivery schedules.  
 
E. The Alameda CTC approach to the use of the allocated Measure B funds is to give 

recipients the flexibility to select specific projects to fund with Measure B. As long as the 
overall objective of the program area is being met, recipients have leeway to expend the 
funds on projects they see as best for their constituency as approved through their own 
local public processes. If a listed project does not appear to fit into the programmatic 
area, seems out of sync with the Measure B topics in general, or is too non-specific or 
vague, thereby making it unclear if the money was appropriately spent, then ask about 
it. 

Page 17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 18



 
Annual Program Compliance Report 

Reserve Procedures and Policy Guidance 
 

Background 
 
In April 2012, all jurisdictions receiving Measure B and Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) funds entered into 
a Master Programs Funding Agreement (MPFA) with Alameda County Transportation Commission 
(Alameda CTC).  The MPFA and its associated Implementation Guidelines outlined the pass-through 
funding distribution, eligible expenditures, recipient reporting requirements, policies on the timely use 
of funds and establishment of reserve funds.  Recipients of Measure B and VRF funds are required to 
submit to Alameda CTC a Financial Audit Report within 180 days following the close of each fiscal year 
and an Annual Program Compliance Report due by December 31st of each calendar year.  
 
To assist jurisdictions to complete their Annual Program Compliance Report, this document will focus 
directly on the MPFA’s Article 3: Policies on Use of Funds.   
 
Per Article 3, jurisdictions receiving Measure B and VRF funds are required to use the funds in a timely 
manner.  The identification of funds (i.e. reserved or non-reserved funds) in the Annual Program 
Compliance Report will define the amount of time available to expend the fund.   These policies ensure 
the expeditious expenditure of voter-approved transportation dollars on projects and programs 
throughout Alameda County.  
 
Timely Use of Funds and Reserve Fund Policies 
 
Per the MPFA, Alameda CTC requires jurisdictions to expend Measure B and VRF funds expeditiously and 
to outline a  plan of potential projects as part of the Annual Program Compliance Report.  Through this 
reporting process, jurisdictions will specify the following fiscal year’s Measure B and VRF funding 
expenditures, and report on the funding plans for each proposed project to be funded through 
designated reserve funds.  The applicable policies are captured below:  
 

Article 3.A. Timely Use of Funds Policy 
The Timely Use of Funds Policy (TUF) requires all Measure B and VRF recipients to spend funds 
expeditiously or place funds into a reserve fund.  Any funds not spent within the allotted time, 
including funds placed into reserve funds, will be subject to rescission, unless a written 
extension request is submitted to Alameda CTC and approved by the governing board.   
 
Article 3.B. Reserve Fund Policy  
The Reserve Fund Policy enables Measure B and VRF recipients to establish a reserve fund for 
specified periods of time.  This allows jurisdictions to place unexpended funds into an applicable 
reserve fund to demonstrate a reasonable plan to expend Measure B and VRF funds.  The types 
of reserve funds and their eligibilities are noted in the Exhibit A: Reserve Fund Categories. 

 
Article 3.C. Rescission of Funds Policy  
If the recipient does not meet the timeliness requirements, Alameda CTC may rescind any 
unspent funds and interest earned, unless the recipient requests and Alameda CTC approves a 
time extension.  

Attachment B

Page 19



Annual Program Compliance Report: Reserve Procedures and Policy Guidance Page 2 

 

Exhibit A: Reserve Fund Categories 
 

RESERVE CATEGORY MAXIMUM FUNDING 
ALLOTMENT  

TIME USE OF FUNDS REQUIREMENT 

Capital Fund Reserve 
Recipients may establish a specific capital 
fund reserve to fund specific large capital 
project(s) that could otherwise not be funded 
with a single’s year worth of Measure B or 
VRF pass-through funds.   
 

None. (1) Recipients may collect capital funds 
during not more than three fiscal years, 
and  

(2) Recipients shall expend all reserve funds 
by the end of three fiscal years following 
the fiscal year during which the reserve 
was established. 
 

Operations Fund Reserve 
Recipients may establish and maintain a 
specific reserve to address operational issues, 
including fluctuations in revenues, and to 
help maintain transportation operations 
 

50 percent of anticipated 
annual pass-through 
revenue 

(1) Revolving fund 
(2) Unexpended funds may be reassigned in 

the subsequent fiscal year. 

Undesignated Fund Reserve 
Recipients may establish and maintain a 
specific reserve for transportation needs over 
a fiscal year for grants, studies, contingency, 
etc. 

10 percent of anticipated 
annual pass-through 
revenues 

(1) Unexpended funds may be reassigned in 
the subsequent fiscal year. 

 
Recipient Reporting Requirements and Alameda CTC’s Evaluation 
 
In the Annual Program Compliance Report, recipients are required to report in Table 3: Planned Projects 
and Reserved Funds the implementation schedules and funding plans for proposed projects using 
remaining balances and the following fiscal year’s (FY) anticipated revenues.    
 
This table is broken into four sections:  
 

1. FY 2012-13 Planned Projects (unreserved funds); 
2. FY 2012-13 through FY 15-16 Capital Fund Reserve; 
3. FY 2012-13 Operation Fund Reserve; and 
4. FY 2012-13 Undesignated Fund Reserve. 

 
In Exhibit B: Reserve Fund Categories Evaluation on the following pages, the roles and responsibilities of 
both the recipient and Alameda CTC are described for each section of the Annual Program Compliance 
Report’s Table 3.  

Page 20



Annual Program Compliance Report: Reserve Procedures and Policy Guidance Page 3 

 

Exhibit B: Reserve Fund Categories and Responsibilities  
 

Program Compliance Report Table 3 

Section 1: FY 2012-13 Planned Projects (unreserved) 

RESERVE TYPE DESCRIPTION  RECIPIENT’S RESPONSIBILITY  ALAMEDA CTC’S RESPONSIBILITY 
Projects included in this section are 
required to be implemented and 
expended in full during FY 12-13.  
 
Project Types include:  

- One-year Capital Projects  
- Traffic Operations 
- Traffic Signal Coordination 
- Slurry Seal/Pavement 

Rehabilitation 
- Program Management 

 

Recipients are allowed to outline 
specific projects that are anticipated to 
be implemented during FY 12-13.   
 
Recipients will report these same 
projects/expenditures in subsequent 
Annual Compliance Reports and 
identify their delivery status. 
 

 

Alameda CTC will review projects listed 
in this section through the Annual 
Program Compliance Report process 
and ensure the Recipient is adhering to 
the TUF Policy of the MPFA.  
 
Alameda CTC will monitor Recipient’s 
reported planned expenditures in the 
FY 11-12 Annual Program Compliance 
Report’s Table 3 and the Recipient’s 
actual expenditures reported in the FY 
12-13 Annual Program Compliance 
Report.  
 

What happens to unexpended balances? 
1. All funds specified in this section must be expended in their entirety.  
2. Any funds not expended may be subject to rescission, unless a written request is submitted to Alameda CTC and 

approved by the Board.  
 
 
 

Program Compliance Report Table 3  

Section 2: FY 2012-13 through FY 2015-16 Capital Fund Reserve 

RESERVE TYPE DESCRIPTION  RECIPIENT’S RESPONSIBILITY  ALAMEDA CTC’S RESPONSIBILITY 
Projects included in this section are 
designated with Capital Fund Reserves 
during FY 12-13 through FY 15-16. 
 
The Capital Fund Reserve is for large 
capital project(s) that could otherwise 
not be funded with a year’s worth of 
Measure B/VRF pass-through funds. All 
programmed funds must be expended 
by the end of FY 15-16. 
 
Project Types include: 

- Multi-year Capital Projects 
- Roadway Projects 
- Drainage/Facilities Projects 
- Slurry Seal/Pavement 

Rehabilitation 
- Bike/Pedestrian Projects 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Recipients are expected to report large 
capital projects funded with Measure 
B/VRF revenue over the next four fiscal 
years.  
 
All funds must be expended prior to 
the end of the third fiscal year 
immediately follow the fiscal year 
during which the reserve was 
established. 
 
Any projects that require additional 
Measure B/VRF funding beyond the 
total anticipated fiscal year’s revenue 
that is allocated in this reserve must 
state in the project status notes:  
 
1. The total project cost using 

Measure B/VRF funding;  
2. The outstanding Measure B/VRF 

balance that is required to 
complete the project; and  

3. Specify anticipated future funding 
using additional Measure B/VRF 
revenue for the project in 

Alameda CTC will track each project 
proposed in the Capital Fund Reserve 
through the Annual Program 
Compliance Report process to ensure 
the Recipient is adhering to the TUF 
Policy of the MPFA.  
 
Alameda CTC will monitor Recipient’s 
reported Capital Reserve Projects in 
the FY 11-12 Annual Program 
Compliance Report’s Table 3 and the 
Recipient’s actual expenditures 
reported in future Annual Program 
Compliance Reports.  
 

Page 21



Annual Program Compliance Report: Reserve Procedures and Policy Guidance Page 4 

 

subsequent years.  
 

Identified Capital Reserve Projects 
require a unique description.  If a 
certain project type is repeated (i.e. 
pavement rehabilitation), please add 
additional information to the title such 
as year of the project or location (i.e. 
2012 Citywide Pavement Rehabilitation 
or Main St. Pavement Rehabilitation).  
 
Recipients will report these same 
projects/expenditures in subsequent 
Annual Compliance Reports and 
identify their delivery status (i.e. 
continuing or close-out). 
 

What happens to unexpended balances? 
1. Recipients must expend the funds identified for projects in this reserve in the FY 11-12 Program Compliance 

Reporting process by the end of FY 15/16. 
2. Funds may be carried over from year to year within this three year window. However, Alameda CTC will be 

monitoring each identified project to ensure that the reported expenditures for each fiscal year are being 
expended and meeting a timely expenditure by the end of FY 15/16. 

3. Any funds not expended by the end of third fiscal year immediately following the fiscal year during which the 
reserve was established will be rescinded, unless a time extension request is granted by Alameda CTC. 

 

 
Program Compliance Report Table 3 

Section 3: Operations Fund Reserve 

RESERVE TYPE DESCRIPTION  RECIPIENT’S RESPONSIBILITY  ALAMEDA CTC’S RESPONSIBILITY 
Projects and activities included in this 
section are designed to address 
operational issues, such as fluctuations 
in revenues, and to help maintain 
transportation operations.  
 
The total amount identified may not 
exceed 50 percent of anticipated 
annual revenue.  
Project Types include: 

- Transit Operations  
- Traffic Signal Coordination 
- Street Lights Maintenance  
- Roadway/Traffic Studies 
- Facilities Maintenance 
- General Studies 

 

Recipients are allowed to program up 
to 50 percent of anticipated annual 
revenue for operational 
projects/programs such as transit 
operations, traffic operations, 
streetlight maintenance, etc. 
 
Recipients may also create a reserve 
item for general operations.  
Recipients cannot program more than 
50 percent of anticipated annual 
revenue. 
 
Recipients will report these same 
projects/expenditures in subsequent 
Annual Compliance Reports and 
identify their delivery status (i.e. 
continuing or close-out). 

 

Alameda CTC will review the project 
list to determine eligibility in the 
operational reserve.  
 
Alameda CTC will ensure the 
programmed amount does not exceed 
50 percent of anticipated annual 
revenue. 
 
Alameda CTC will monitor Recipient’s 
reported Operation Reserve Projects in 
the FY 11-12 Annual Program 
Compliance Report’s Table 3 and the 
Recipient’s actual expenditures 
reported in the FY 12-13 Annual 
Program Compliance Report.  
 

What happens to unexpended balances? 
1. Unexpended FY 12-13 Operational Fund Reserve balance may be reassigned as part of the subsequent Annual 

Program Compliance Reporting process.  
 
 

Page 22



Annual Program Compliance Report: Reserve Procedures and Policy Guidance Page 5 

 

Program Compliance Report Table 3 

Section 4: Undesignated Fund Reserve 

RESERVE TYPE DESCRIPTION  RECIPIENT’S RESPONSIBILITY  ALAMEDA CTC’S RESPONSIBILITY 
Projects included in this section are for 
unspecified/as-needed transportation 
activities such as such as matching 
funds for grants, project development 
work, studies for transportation 
purposes, or contingency funds for a 
project or program.   
 
This fund may not contain more than 
10 percent of annual pass-through 
revenues. 

 

Recipients may establish an 
undesignated reserve fund for yet to 
be defined transportation funding 
needs of up to 10 percent of 
anticipated annual revenue.   
 
Recipients may propose potential uses 
of undesignated fund reserves in the 
additional information or status 
section.  
 
 

 

Alameda CTC will ensure the 
programmed amount does not exceed 
10 percent of anticipated annual 
revenue.  
 
Alameda CTC will monitor Recipient’s 
reported proposed expenditures in the 
FY 11-12 Annual Program Compliance 
Report’s Table 3 and the Recipient’s 
actual expenditures reported in the FY 
12-13 Annual Program Compliance 
Report.  
 

What happens to unexpended balances? 
1. Unexpended FY 12-13 Undesignated Fund Reserve balance may be reassigned as part of the subsequent Annual 

Program Compliance Reporting process.   
 

 
 
ESTABLISH RESERVE FUNDS 
 
The TUF policy dictates that Measure B and VRF funds must be expended expeditiously and within 
specified time periods as outlined for each of the reserve categories.    

 
As such, recipients are required to submit an Annual Program Compliance Report on December 31st.  
This submitted report will be reviewed by Alameda CTC staff, the Citizens Watchdog Committee, and 
posted on the Alameda CTC’s website.  Recipients may be requested to clarify reporting data and project 
implementation/funding plans.  As such, recipients may be asked to modify their Annual Program 
Compliance Report submittal.  By March 15th, recipients’ will submit revisions to the Annual Program 
Compliance Reports, if necessary.  These reports will be used to establish an implementation and 
funding plan for Measure B/VRF funds.   
 
The finalized (executed) reported information provided in the FY 11-12 Annual Program Compliance 
Report‘s Table 3 will be used to evaluate the recipient’s adherence to the TUF policy as described in the 
MPFA.  Information reported in the FY 11-12 Annual Compliance Program Report’s Table 3 will be 
evaluated against the subsequent year’s reported expenditure information to determine compliance 
with the TUF policy.  
 

Page 23



Annual Program Compliance Report: Reserve Procedures and Policy Guidance Page 6 

 

AMENDMENT REQUESTS 
 

Recipients may request, in writing, amendment requests to the Table 3: Planned Project and Reserve 
Funds to update project lists, planned expenditures, and reserve allocations against which the 
recipient’s TUF performance will be evaluated.   

 
Amendment requests should include information on the delivery status of planned projects and 
programs, and reasons for implementation delay of the Measure B/VRF funded improvements. 
 
Administrative Amendment 
Adjustments to account for variances between anticipated revenue projections and actual Measure 
B/VRF pass-through revenue will be addressed in the subsequent Annual Program Compliance Report 
process.  

  
The Alameda CTC Commission will consider the following amendment requests. 
 

1. Reallocation of unexpended FY 12-13 balance or Capital Fund Reserve at the TUF milestone. 
2. One-year Time Extensions pertaining to unexpended funds allocated to the FY 12-13 balance or 

Capital Fund Reserve at the TUF milestone. 
3. Revision to projects identified in the Capital Fund Reserve including scope, project lists, and 

dollars.  
 

Recipients may request amendment requests for the above situations if recipient demonstrates that 
unforeseen and extraordinary circumstances have occurred that would justify the extension.   
 
Amendment Procedure 

1. Recipients must submit a request for a time extension in writing to Alameda CTC’s Executive 
Director. 

2. Alameda CTC staff will evaluate the eligibility of time extension request and will prepare the 
staff report to Alameda CTC Commission. 

3. Alameda CTC Commission will determine whether to approve or deny the extension request. 
4. Alameda CTC staff will notify recipient of the Commission’s action in writing.  

 
 

 
 

 

Page 24



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 04 

 

Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee Meeting Minutes 
Monday, November 19, 2012, 6:30 p.m., 1333 Broadway, Suite 300, Oakland 

  

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 
__P__ James Paxson, Chair 
__P__ Harriette Saunders, Vice 

Chair 
__A__ Pamela Belchamber 

__A__ Petra Brady 
__P__ Mike Dubinsky 
__A__ Arthur Geen 
__P__ James Haussener 

__P__ Jo Ann Lew 
__P__ Raj Salwan 
__P__ Aaron Welch 
__P__ Hale Zukas 

 
Staff: 
__P__ Arthur L. Dao, Executive Director 
__P__ John Hemiup, Senior Transportation Engineer 
__P__ Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Policy, 

Public Affairs and Legislation 
__P__ Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

__P__ Matt Todd, Manager of Programming 
__P__ Angie Ayers, Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc. 
__P__ John Nguyen, Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc. 
 

  

 
1. Welcome and Introductions 

James Paxson, CWC Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. The meeting began with 
introductions and meeting outcomes. James welcomed to the committee the new members 
Raj Salwan and Aaron Welch. 
 
Guest Present: Ekaterina Bertin 
 

2. Public Comment 
There were no public comments. 
 

3. Approval of July 9, 2012 Minutes 
A request was made at the July 9, 2012 meeting for staff to provide the 2000 Measure B 
ballot. Staff informed the committee that the Transportation Expenditure Plan and ballot 
are available on the Alameda CTC website under the publications/media tab. The URL is 
http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8083. 
 
Jim Haussener moved to approve the minutes as written. Harriette Saunders seconded the 
motion. The motion carried 6-0, with one abstention, Raj Salwan. 
 

Page 25

http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8083


Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee November 19, 2012 Meeting Minutes 2 

4. Program Compliance Workshop Update 
Matt Todd gave a presentation on the Alameda CTC annual compliance reporting process 
that documents 2000 Measure B expenditures for four program areas. The CWC reviews the 
expenditures related to the programs. 
 
Matt discussed the annual audit and compliance reporting requirements, new compliance 
policies, and the CWC compliance review process dates. He mentioned that in the past, the 
CWC was concerned about recipients not spending their pass-through funds in a timely 
manner and maintaining high reserves. Matt informed the committee that the new Master 
Programs Funding Agreements (MPFAs) have now include policies that address: 

 Timely use of funds 

 Reserve funds 

 Rescission of funds 

 Complete Streets 
 
Matt informed the committee that 57 people attended the September compliance 
workshop, and staff has been fielding many calls from the jurisdictions and agencies over 
the last two months. (See Attachment A to review the presentation.) 
 
Questions/feedback from members: 

 Did all of the jurisdictions sign off on the new compliance policies and MPFAs? Yes, 
the jurisdictions all signed the new agreements. 

 Can the jurisdictions ask for a waiver if the funds are unspent? Yes, an option exists 
on a case-by-case basis, and Alameda CTC may grant a waiver. 

 What will happen to the unspent funds? The funds will remain with the particular 
fund source category and be redistributed if necessary. For example, if the funds 
were for local streets and roads (LSR), the unspent funds would return to the LSR 
category. 

 At an earlier CWC meeting, staff agreed that the term “reserves” would change to 
“balances.” Staff stated that the definition for reserves was written in the MPFAs. 
Staff also mentioned that the terminology for reserves and balances may be 
interchangeable. Since the implementation of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) 54, using the terminology reserves versus balances is not a 
conflict. 

 What expectations did Alameda CTC lay out at the September workshop for 
jurisdictions/agencies regarding the list of projects identified for the pass-through 
funds? How will the Alameda CTC maintain the list of projects so the 
jurisdictions/agencies can monitor projects proposed to be funded? To track the 
timely use of funds requirement, we have expanded the information collected for 
future projects and will require the jurisdictions/agencies to uniquely identify a 
given project. Next year, the Alameda CTC will track the projects implementation 
and compliance with the reserve policy requirements. 

 Can the CWC expect staff to provide a comment to the jurisdiction/agency stating 
that the project list does not match the list from last year, and the Alameda CTC 
would like to know why? Yes. 

Page 26



Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee November 19, 2012 Meeting Minutes 3 

 The CWC requested a copy of the letters that will go to the jurisdictions in February. 

 A member noted that the amended compliance report from the Alameda County 
Public Works Agency, which the CWC Ad-hoc Subcommittee received, did not have a 
signature. What is the process for jurisdictions/agencies to amend the compliance 
report with appropriate signatures? Staff said that Alameda CTC will incorporate into 
new instructions for changes to program compliance that the same signatories who 
signed the original also sign any final amended report. 

 
5. Report on the CWC Pre- and Post-Audit Subcommittee Meetings 

James Paxson informed the committee that staff would provide an overview under agenda 
item 6 of the audit process and the CWC Pre-and Post-audit Subcommittee meetings with 
the independent auditing firm Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP (VTD). He informed the 
committee that the minutes from the pre- and post-audit subcommittee meetings are in 
the agenda packet. 
 

6. ACTIA Independent Audit Presentation through February 29, 2012 Termination 
Ahmad Gharaibeh with VTD presented ACTIA’s audit report through the closure of ACTIA on 
February 29, 2012. Ahmad reviewed basic financial statements, CWC audit concerns, 
required communications, internal controls, and the limitations worksheet.  
 
Highlights of the presentation include the following: 

 Regarding the report of the financial statements, the auditor found no material 
weaknesses or items of administrative concern, and VTD issued a “clean” or 
“unqualified” opinion, meaning that the information stated in the financial 
statements through February 29, 2012 is accurate in all material respects. 

 Regarding the CWC audit concerns, Ahmad provided information that showed the 
audit testing performed and other procedures used to address the concerns 
discussed at the CWC pre- and post-audit subcommittee meetings. See 
Attachment B for more details. 

 Regarding internal controls, Ahmad discussed and provided information on the 
suggestions VTD made during interim fieldwork to Alameda CTC of three minor 
adjustments to internal control procedures. Alameda CTC implemented the 
suggestions prior to VTD’s final audit. See Attachment B for more details. 

 
Questions/feedback from the members: 

 Explain the process the auditor used to review purchase orders. Ahmad reviewed 
the process using a purchase order with a significant dollar amount as follows: 

o The auditor views the check register to review the disbursements for the 
current year. 

o The auditor will view the invoices, because they contain the back-up 
information. 

o The auditor visits the purchasing department and requests the purchase 
order that authorizes payment for a particular vendor. 

o For a construction contract, the auditor will ensure the amount of the 
purchase is approved by the Commission. 

Page 27



Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee November 19, 2012 Meeting Minutes 4 

o The primary goal of the auditor is to confirm that the authorization occurred 
in compliance with agency policy, and the people that pay the check are 
independent from the purchasing function. 

 A request was made for VTD to define the terms “government fund financial 
statement” and “government wide financial statement” and which pieces of the 
audit fall under the two terms. To set the stage for the definition, Ahmad stated that 
full accrual financial statements are on pages 54 and 55 of the packet, and the fund 
financial statement breaks down the individual funds in separate, self-balancing 
columns. The emphasis on page 54 is a short-term outlook and on page 55 is the 
long-term outlook. 

 Will the $10 million debit and the $33 million credit on page 59 show up next year? 
Ahmad said this is a one-time event. The difference between the full accrual and 
modified accrual will be insignificant in the upcoming year. 

 How many checks above and below $50,000 are issued over a year? Patricia Reavey 
stated that a significant number of checks over $50,000 are issued. The exact 
number is not known, and staff will need to look up this information if the CWC truly 
wants the exact numbers. There was no follow up from CWC requesting this 
information. 

 Why did VTD recommend two signatures on checks? Having two signatures will 
serve as an internal control and dissuade fraud by one party. Patricia stated that the 
recommendation was made by VTD to require two signatures on pre-printed checks, 
which are only Alameda County Congestion Management Agency checks. 

 How much revenue does the Alameda County Transportation Authority (ACTA) 
have? Patricia said that ACTA revenue is interest on its investments. ACTA no longer 
receive sales tax revenues. 

 Since this audit is for eight months, will VTD perform an audit on the remainder of 
year? No. VTD will not audit the sales tax collection again for this fiscal year. The 
remaining four months will be consolidated with the Alameda CTC financial 
statement. However, the Measure B financial activity will be reported as separate 
funds within the Alameda CTC audit results. 

 A CWC member noted that the date is incorrect on page 51. Instead of July 1, 2012, 
it should be July 1, 2011. 

 Who prepares the financial statement for Alameda CTC? It’s a joint effort between 
VTD and Alameda CTC.  VTD prepares the first draft of the financial statement, staff 
modifies the data, and VTD audits that statement. 

 Who verifies the information that Alameda CTC prepares, and is the agency 
accounting system automated? Staff stated that ultimately the auditor verifies the 
financial statements generated by Alameda CTC.  A CWC member implied that the 
Alameda CTC review process is inadequate. Staff informed the committee that the 
production of the financial statement is a manual process.  However, staff uses an 
automated system for the trial balance and the general ledger. 

 Who audits the timely distribution of the Measure B dollars? VTD verifies the 
amount received from the Board of Equalization (BOE). VTD also confirms the 
disbursement of the funds. If the Alameda CTC were ever late on disbursements, the 

Page 28



Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee November 19, 2012 Meeting Minutes 5 

cities would know about it and contact the agency. The BOE places the date of 
disbursement of the sales tax funds on its website. 

 The committee questioned the variance of the administrative costs for the $3 million 
shown on page 58 versus the mid-year budget update total administrative cost of 
$5.2 million. Ahmad stated that there are many one-time charges that do not make 
the administrative costs linear. 

 
At the post-audit subcommittee meeting on November 2, 2012, Patricia informed the group 
that she will provide information on the following: 

 The calculation of full-time equivalents charged to ACTIA funds for fiscal year 11-12. 

 Information to show the CWC where the savings occurred for the merger. 
 
Patricia discussed and provided handouts to the committee to address the CWC concerns. 
She stated that the next steps for the independent audit are: 

 The Finance and Administration Committee approved the independent audit on 
November 19, 2012. 

 The full Commission will review and approve the audit on December 6, 2012. Also, 
on December 6, the Commission Audit Committee will review the June 30, 2012 
audit. 

 A joint meeting will take place with the Commission Audit Committee and the CWC 
Audit Subcommittee on December 6, 2012 at 11 a.m. at Alameda CTC offices. 

 
7. Quarterly Investment Report: FY 12-13 First Quarter Report 

Patricia reviewed the Alameda CTC Consolidated FY 12-13 First Quarter Investment Report 
with the committee. A member inquired why the agency seeks external financing when 
ACTIA has many investments that provide additional income at various times. Does the 
agency reserve the funds from the investments for this purpose? Patricia stated that based 
on the cash flow, the report shows that many capital projects will have a need for those 
funds. A member requested staff to include FY 12-13 vs. FY2013 on the consolidated 
investment report for clarity. 

 
A member requested staff to email the investment report to the CWC members in advance. 
Art Dao stated that the CA Government Code requires that, if the Agency chooses to 
produce a quarterly investment report, it must be provided within 30 days of the end of the 
quarter to the Commission members. Staff agreed to email the investment report to the 
CWC at the same time the agency gives the report to the Commission. 
 

8. CWC Annual Report Outreach Summary 
A. Summary of Outreach and Costs 

Tess Lengyel gave an update on the publishing and outreach for the 10th CWC Annual 
Report to the Public. She summarized the work Alameda CTC did, which was based on 
the direction of the CWC, to produce and distribute the report, as well as to place print 
and online banner advertisements in the media. Placing the report in Bay Area 
publications and the banner advertisements on various websites required creating many 
different layouts to fulfill the space requirements.  

Page 29



Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee November 19, 2012 Meeting Minutes 6 

The outreach efforts included the following: 

 Converting the advertisement to Chinese and Spanish and e-mailing the 
condensed versions to 51 Asian community organizations and 23 Hispanic 
community organizations 

 E-mailing a press release with a link to the full report to all media in Alameda 
County 

 Placing an update in the September issue of the Alameda CTC e-newsletter with 
a link back to the full report and the additional language versions 

 Placing information on the Alameda CTC website under the What’s New section 
that links directly to the full report 

 Handing out the print version of the report to the Alameda CTC Commission and 
the community advisory committees 

 Bringing the print version of the report to numerous outreach activities  
 
The budget for the Annual Report was $50,000 and the actual cost was $42,713, which 
included the cost of design and placement of the online and print advertisements and 
the printing and mailing of the hard copy report. 
 
James Paxson requested staff create a cost benefit analysis to assist in determining if 
the CWC is receiving a good return on its investment. 
 

B. Summary of Feedback 
The summary of feedback was discussed under agenda item 8A. 

 
9. CWC Member Reports/Issues Identification 

Jim Haussener submitted an Issues Identification Form to be reviewed at the January 14, 
2013 CWC meeting. 
 

10. Staff Reports/Board Actions 
A. One Bay Area Grant Program 

Art Dao gave an overview on the One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) program. He noted that 
OBAG funding is not connected to ACTIA Measure B; however, Alameda CTC is sharing 
the information as part of the agency’s outreach efforts, even though it’s not under the 
CWC purview. The OBAG program is a new way for the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) to distribute Federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) and 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds. Historically, the STP and CMAQ 
funds were distributed by formula and used on LSR repair, bicycle and pedestrian 
improvements and to support Transportation for Living Communities. Two years ago, 
the region embarked on a new way of distributing federal funds that includes tying land 
use with transportation. The old formula for the STP and CMAQ funds was derived using 
population and road miles. The new formula for OBAG is related to housing production 
data and population. 
 
Alameda County’s estimated share of the OBAG funding is $63 million of STP/CMAQ 
over four fiscal years. For Alameda County, 70 percent of the OBAG funding must be 

Page 30



Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee November 19, 2012 Meeting Minutes 7 

used for transportation projects that support Priority Development Areas and 
30 percent of the OBAG funds may be programmed for transportation projects 
anywhere else in the county. 
 
The projects will need to comply with OBAG and federal funding requirements as well as 
local criteria that Alameda CTC will use to evaluate projects in Alameda County. A 
member stated that Castro Valley is looking at doing a form of housing near transit. Will 
any of the OBAG funds go to communities to address noise issues? Will the funds be 
used to make up for the redevelopment agency short falls? The active projects don’t 
seem to fall out in the sub-regions.  
 
Staff stated that geographic equity does not apply for these funds. Alameda CTC’s job is 
to ensure that funding is provided to areas that are most likely to produce housing that 
will absorb growth to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Alameda County jurisdictions 
must also show historically and the future ability to build housing. In terms of Castro 
Valley, if the area needs planning assistance to get things ready, there will be grant-
based funds to help it get there. 
 

B. General Items 
Art gave an update on the November 6 election outcome for Measure B1, which is 
currently at 66.53 percent. He said the Registrar of Voters would certify the results in 
the next two days. The Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee directed 
Alameda CTC staff to seek a recount of the ballots, if feasible, based upon a meeting 
with the Registrar’s office. 
 

11. Adjournment/Next Meeting 
The meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for January 14, 2013 at 
the Alameda CTC offices. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: CWC Annual Compliance Reporting Review Orientation 
Attachment B: Independent Audit Report Presentation on ACTIA 

Page 31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 32



1

CWC Annual Compliance 
Reporting Review 
Orientation

A Presentation by
Al d  C t  T t ti  C i i  St ffAlameda County Transportation Commission Staff

November 19, 2012

Citizens Watch Dog 
Committee Role
• Reviews all 2000 Measure B expenditures for the four 

program areas:p g
1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety

2. Local Streets and Roads

3. Mass Transit

4. Special Transportation for Seniors with Disabilities 
(Paratransit)

• Reports directly to the public annually
• May request that recipients present a project 

progress report to the CWC

2

Attachment A

Page 33



11/19/2012

2

Annual Compliance Report 
Requirements
• Measure B or VRF Pass-through funds recipients are 

required to submit to the Alameda CTC:q
1.Independent Financial Audit Report 

- Electronic and hardcopy due on December 27, 2012

2.Program Compliance Report
- Electronic and hardcopy due on December 31, 2012

• Financial Audit and Compliance Report captures 
recipients’ FY 2011-12 expenditures

3

Reporting Requirements

• Recipients required to expend Measure B and VRF 
dollars expeditiously 
Recipients must show they are meeting specific • Recipients must show they are meeting specific 
reporting requirements outlined in the MPFA 

• Publish an annual article in Alameda CTC 
newsletter or jurisdiction newsletter

• Post information on the jurisdiction’s website

• Link to www.AlamedaCTC.org

• Post Signage

4

Page 34



11/19/2012

3

New Compliance Policies
• Timely Use of Funds Policy: The MPFA requires all Measure 

B and VRF funds received to be spent expeditiously.

• Reserve Fund Policy: The MPFA allows recipients to 
reserve funds in defined reserve programs.

• Rescission of Funds Policy: The MPFA requires recipients 
to return unspent funds and all interest earned thereon to 
Alameda CTC.

• Complete Streets Policy: Implementation Guidelines p y p
require recipients to have an adopted complete streets 
policy, or demonstrate that a policy is being developed 
and will be adopted by June 30, 2013. 

5

CWC Compliance Review Dates
Dates Action
September 20 Annual Compliance Workshop

December 27 Independent Financial Audit Due

December 31 Programs Compliance Reports Due

January 7, 2013 Staff posts Compliance Reports to website

January 14, 2013
(CWC Meeting)

 CWC receives binders and reviews audit reports
 Staff provides Compliance Review Guidance

January 31, 2013 Finalize audit and compliance report review

February 2013 Measure B/VRF Recipients receive Compliance Status Letters 
and Request for Information Letters

March 11, 2013
(CWC Meeting) CWC receives Draft Executive Summary of Compliance Report

April 2013 Draft Executive Summary to Committees

May 2013 Draft Compliance Report

June 2013 Final Compliance Report to Commission

6

Page 35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 36



1

ALAMEDA COUNTY

Basic Financial Statements 
for the Eight Months Ended 
February 29, 2012

ALAMEDA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
AUTHORITY

Financial Audit

 Financial statements being presented are for the Eight Months 
Ended February 29, 2012, ACTIA’s official date of termination and y 9, ,
include the ACTA capital fund.

 Financial statements are the responsibility of management.

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion of the financial 
statements based on their audit.

 We planned and performed the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatements.

 Audits include   Audits include: 
 Examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements.
 Assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 

by management.
 Evaluating overall financial statement presentation.

Attachment B

Page 37



11/19/2012

2

Financial Audit 
Continued

 Audits are performed in conformance with Generally 
A t d A diti  St d d  (GAAS)  hi h  i  Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) which requires 
the auditor:
 adequately plan the work and properly supervise assistants,

 obtain a sufficient understanding of the entity and its 
environment, including its internal control, to assess the 
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements 
whether due to error or fraud, and to design the nature, 

f ftiming, and extent of further audit procedures, and

 obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence by performing 
audit procedures, on a test basis, to afford a reasonable 
assurance for an opinion regarding the financial statements 
under audit.

CWC Audit Concerns Addressed

 As part of the audit procedures VTD:
 tested data from all areas of the Alameda CTC using a variety of testing g y g

strategies, including analytical procedures, confirmations of account 
balances and search for unrecorded liabilities,

 consulted with prior audit firms, but did not learn of any concerns over 
Measure B funds,

 confirmed that ACTIA transactions are accounted for separately from all 
other funds in the financial system,

 confirmed the amounts reported on the limitation calculations for both 
the 4.5% administration and the 1% salary and benefit limitations and 
confirmed compliance with those requirements,

i d th   th d l   f  ti  f  h    ti d  t d  reviewed the methodology of accounting for hours on timecards, traced 
payroll charges back to specific timecards to verify the allocation of time 
in payroll from the timecards and confirmed supervisory approval (There 
were no unusual trends in the allocation of time detected), and

 determined general fund charges to be higher risk and tested to ensure 
allocations of administrative expenses to the ACTIA general fund were 
calculated reasonable and accurately and properly allocated.

Page 38



11/19/2012

3

Required Communications

 The Auditor is required to communicate 
significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses in internal control to the CWC.  

 We noted no significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses in internal controls.

 We had no adjustments to the financial 
statements.

 We encountered no difficulties in the 
performance of the audit.  

Internal Controls

 At interim, we noted three internal control recommendations for staff 
which were incorporated into procedures before the final audit which p p
included:
 Changing the requirement on ACCMA special revenue fund bank accounts with 

preprinted check stock to require 2 signatures on all checks, not just checks over 
$50,000.
 The signature cards were changed with the bank requiring 2 signatures on all 

checks and the statement “Two authorized signatures required” is now printed 
below the first signature line on all preprinted checks.

 Requiring 2 employees to authorize a new hire in the payroll system.
 The payroll system used by the agency only required one authorized employee 

to set up a newly hired employee.  Staff worked with ADP to implement the 
requirement for 2 authorizations before allowing a new employee to be set up requirement for 2 authorizations before allowing a new employee to be set up 
in the payroll system.

 Restricting financial system access for the accounting staff person who runs 
checks to make sure that employee does not have access to vendor setup or 
changes.
 Staff has limited access to the financial database for all employees to what 

they need to access to do their jobs only and has ensured that the accountant 
that runs checks does not have access to vendor setup or change.

Page 39



11/19/2012

4

ACTIA Financial Highlights

 Total assets decreased by $22.6 million or 7.3% from $311.7 million to $289.1 
million as of February 29, 2012 compared to June 30, 2011. Cash and investments 

i d $ 6   illi     6%  f th  t t l  t     f F b    comprised $262.0 million or 90.6% of the total assets as of February 29, 2012.

 Sales tax revenue for all funds was $74.0 million during the period July 1, 2011 
through February 29, 2012, a decrease of $31.4 million or 29.8% from fiscal year 
2011 due to the abbreviated reporting period. 

 Total expenses were $70.2 million during the period July 1, 2011 through 
February 29, 2012, a decrease of $97.9 million or 58.3% from fiscal year 2011. 
This amount included $2.9 million for administration, $19.9 million for highways 
and streets, $23.8 million for public transit and $23.5 million for local 
transportation. 

 Total liabilities decreased $27.6 million or 47.2% from $58.3 million to $30.8 5 3 3
million as of February 29, 2012 compared to June 30, 2011 due to a change in 
methodology used for capital project accruals during fiscal year 2011.

 Total net asset increased by $4.9 million or 2.0% to $258.3 million as of February 
29, 2012 compared to June 30, 2011. 

ACTIA ‐ Statement of Net Asset
February 29, 2012(in thousands of dollars)

Assets:
Cash and Investments $262 025Cash and Investments $262,025

Receivables 22,900

Land Held for Resale 4,068

Other Assets 57

Capital Assets, net 28

Total Assets 289,078

Liabilities:
Payables and Accrued Liabilities 30,710

Deferred Revenue 76

l b lTotal Liabilities 30,786

Net Assets:
Investment in Capital Assets 28

Restricted for Transp. Projects/Programs 240,823

Unrestricted 17,441

Total Net Asset $258,292

Page 40



11/19/2012

5

ACTIA
Statement of Activities
for the Eight Months Ended
February 29, 2012(in thousands of dollars)
Governmental ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

Program Revenues

Capital Revenues $       64

Expenses

Administration 2,948

Transportation Improvements 67,211

Total Expenses 70,159

Total Governmental Activities (70,095)Total Governmental Activities (70,095)

General Revenues 75,042

Change in Net Assets 4,947

Net Assets – Beginning 253,345

Net Assets – Ending $258,292

ACTIA Revenues & Expenses

Revenues Expenses

Investment 
Income
1.1%

Other 
Revenue
0.5%

Administration
4.1%

Highways and 
Streets
28.4%

Local 
Transportation

33.5%

Sales Tax
98.4%

Public Transit
34.0%

Page 41



11/19/2012

6

ACTIA Auditor Opinion

ACTIA received what is referred to as unqualified or 
l   di   i i  f   h  Ei h  M h  E d d clean audit opinion for the Eight Months Ended 
February 29, 2012.

“In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental 
activities and each major fund of the Alameda County 
Transportation Improvement Authority  as of Transportation Improvement Authority, as of 
February 29, 2012, and the respective changes in 
financial position for the eight months then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.” 

ACTIA
February 29, 2012

Questions?

Page 42



1

Pass-through Fund and 
Grant Programs Update

A Presentation by
Al d  C t  T t ti  C i i  St ffAlameda County Transportation Commission Staff

January 2013

A Brief History: A Brief History: 
Measure BMeasure B

• Measure B half-cent sales tax approved by voters 
in 1986

• Alameda County was one of the first California 
Self-Help Counties
 Self-help Counties generate approximately $4 billion 

per year for California transportation and mobility
• In 2000: Measure B was reauthorized with 81.5% 

voter approval rate
• In 2002: Tax collection and program • In 2002: Tax collection and program 

allocations began
• In 2004: Grant allocations began

2Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 05A

Page 43



12/26/2012

2

Measure BMeasure B--Funded ProgramsFunded Programs

• Allocates funds to 
21 agencies/jurisdictions

• Funds four types 
of programs
 Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety

Pass-through Fund Program Four Grant Programs

• Funds four types of programs
 Local Street and Roads
 Mass Transit
 Special Transportation for Seniors & 

People with Disabilities (Paratransit)
 Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety

• Higher than anticipated tax 
revenues in FY 11-12

y y
 Paratransit
 Express Bus
 Transit Center Development (TCD)

• 121 projects awarded to date 
since 2004, totaling $32.0 M

• $32.0 M of Measure B funds 
leveraged $87.4 M of other funds 
for a total investment of $119.4 M

• Next Bicycle & Pedestrian, TCD and 
Express Bus Programs Call for 
Projects will be coordinated with 

• Distributed $60.5 million in FY 
11-12

Projects will be coordinated with 
the Federal One Bay Area Grant 
(OBAG)

• Next Paratransit Program Call for 
Projects anticipated in February 
2013

3Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Measure B PassMeasure B Pass--through Funds and through Funds and 
Grants DistributionGrants Distribution

60% of annual Measure B Revenues for five programs:
• Local Streets and Roads (22.34%)
• Mass Transit (21 92%)• Mass Transit (21.92%)

 Countywide Local and Feeder Bus Service (16.86%)
 AC Transit Welfare to Work Program (1.46%)
 Alameda/Oakland Ferry Service (0.78%)
 Countywide Express Bus Service (0.70%)
 Altamont Commuter Express (2.12%)

• Paratransit (10.45%)
• Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety (5%)

 25% regional planning and regional projects5% eg o a  p a g a d eg o a  p ojec s
 75% local jurisdictions

• Transit Center Development (0.19%) 
 Local Match
 TOD-TAP

4Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Page 44



12/26/2012

3

Measure B Makes a DifferenceMeasure B Makes a Difference
Total Measure B Pass-through and Grant Funds

Allocated from April 1, 2002 through June 30, 2012

Over $602.8 million

FY 06-07 $61,176,456

121 Bicycle and Pedestrian, 
Express Bus, Paratransit and 

TOD Awards  through 
June 30, 2012

$32.0 million

Pass-through Payments
Distributed through June 30, 2012

Measure B Grants
FY 07-08 $62,543,374
FY 08-09 $54,501,184
FY 09-10 $50,808,873
FY 10-11 $56,857,026
FY 11-12 $60,556,173

$119.4 million

Total with Other Funding 
Commitments  to Grants

FY 05-06 $59,357,051
FY 04-05 $54,404,793
FY 03-04 $53,086,000
FY 02-03 $49,455,451
FY 01-02 $12,006,000

5Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Fiscal Year 11-12 
Pass-through Distributions

Measure B Pass Through Amount

PassPass--through Funding Distributionsthrough Funding Distributions

Measure B Pass Through 
Distribution

Amount
(in millions)

Local Streets and Roads $24.0

Mass Transit $22.8

Paratransit $9.7

Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Safety

$4.0

TOTAL $60 5TOTAL $60.5

6Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Page 45



12/26/2012

4

PassPass--through Fund Compliance through Fund Compliance 
Reporting RequirementsReporting Requirements

• Road miles served (not applicable to transit agencies)
• Population numbers (not applicable to all projects)• Population numbers (not applicable to all projects)
• Complete Streets Policy by June 2013
• Article in Recipient’s or Alameda CTC’s newsletter
• Website coverage of the project
• Signage about Measure B/VRF funding
• End-of-year independent audit due 12/27/12
• End-of-year compliance report due 12/31/12
• Audits and compliance reports posted on Alameda 

CTC web page

7Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Grant Program OverviewGrant Program Overview
• Competitive programs that improve 

transportation
 39 active projects
 82 complete projects

• Improve transportation access for the 
diverse population

• Provide improvements that encourage 
Alameda County residents to walk, bike, 
take public transportation and live in transit 
oriented developmentsoriented developments

8Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Page 46



12/26/2012

5

Bicycle and Pedestrian Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Countywide Discretionary Fund Countywide Discretionary Fund 

(CDF) Grant Program(CDF) Grant Program
• Updates to CountywideUpdates to Countywide

Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Plans

• City and County bicycle 
and pedestrian plans

• Gap closures
• Education and safety Education and safety 

programs
• Capital projects 

9Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

City of City of FremontFremont
Irvington Area Irvington Area 

Pedestrian Improvement ProjectPedestrian Improvement Project
• Fremont is constructing pedestrian 

improvements at six intersections along 
Fremont Boulevard, between Eugene 
Street and Washington Boulevard  in the Street and Washington Boulevard, in the 
Irvington District.  

• Project elements include:
• Installing ADA-compliant curb ramps
• Constructing bulb-outs and 

expanded median islands to reduce 
crossing distance

• Adjusting pedestrian push button 
heights and reach to improve e g s a d eac  o p o e 
accessibility for people using 
wheelchairs

• Project will improve pedestrian safety at 
signalized and non-signalized 
intersections

10Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Page 47



12/26/2012

6

Express Bus Service Express Bus Service 
Grant ProgramGrant Program

• Expansion and enhancement of operations
• Express bus services

 Dynamic message signage
 Real-time information systems
 Accessibility improvements

11Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Livermore Amador Valley Transportation AuthorityLivermore Amador Valley Transportation Authority

Express Bus Express Bus 
Operating AssistanceOperating Assistance

• Measure B supports the 
operation of LAVTA’s only 
WHEELS Express Bus Service 
Routes: Routes: 
• Route 20X - Service between 

Pleasanton and Livermore
• Route 70X - Service between 

Dublin and Walnut Creek
• Route 12V - Service between 

Hacienda Road/I-580 and Airway 
Blvd/I-580

• Project increases transit 
connectivity to BART stations, y ,
transit centers, and local 
transit services

• Project expands and 
enhances express bus services 
countywide

12Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Page 48



12/26/2012

7

Paratransit Gap Paratransit Gap 
Grant ProgramsGrant Programs

• Largest paratransit allocation of 
any Bay Area sales tax measure

• Approximately 1 million rides • Approximately 1 million rides 
annually

• Wheelchair and Scooter 
Breakdown Transportation Service

• Hospital Discharge Services
• One-stop shopping for 

mobility solutionsmobility solutions
• On-going city and Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) paratransit 
programs

13Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

• Provides volunteer escorts for seniors who cannot 
use public transportation independently.

Senior Support Program of the TriSenior Support Program of the Tri--ValleyValley
Volunteers Assisting Same Day Volunteers Assisting Same Day 

Transportation and EscortsTransportation and Escorts

• Volunteer drivers to use their personal vehicles to 
provide service to individuals in Alameda’s East 
County

• Measure B funding helps the program 
• Develop policies and procedures 
• Recruit and train volunteers
• Create outreach materials
• Develop a volunteer database

14Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Page 49



12/26/2012

8

Transit Oriented Development Transit Oriented Development 
Grant ProgramGrant Program

• Focus on residential and retail 
development near transit centersp

• Mode shift away from cars to 
encourage walking, biking, and 
using public transportation

• Accessibility improvements

15Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

• Improves bicycle and pedestrian access to the 
West Oakland BART Station

City of OaklandCity of Oakland
West Oakland Seventh Street West Oakland Seventh Street 

Transit Village Streetscape ProjectTransit Village Streetscape Project

• Area beautification
• Enhances sense of community and transit oriented 

transportation

16Pass-through Fund and Grant Programs Update

Page 50



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 05A1 

 
Memorandum 

 

DATE: December 18, 2012 

 

TO: Alameda CTC Citizens Watchdog Committee 

 

FROM: Matt Todd, Manager of Programming 

 John Hemiup, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 

SUBJECT: Review of FY 11-12 Alameda CTC Program Status Update on Pass-through 

Fund and Grant Programs 

 
Recommendation 

This is an informational item only.   

 
Summary 

In 1986, Alameda County voters approved the Measure B half-cent transportation sales tax, 

which was later reauthorized in November 2000. Alameda CTC allocates approximately 60 

percent of the net sales tax revenues to essential programs, services, and projects in Alameda 

County.  

 

On a monthly basis, Alameda CTC disburses Measure B program funds to (21) twenty-one 

agencies/jurisdictions through formulas and percentages.  The funded programs are Local Streets 

and Roads, Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety, Mass Transit, and Paratransit. 

 

Pass-through program recipients are required to submit separate annual independent financial 

audits and accompanying descriptive compliance reports at the end of each calendar year. For 

fiscal year 11-12 (FY 11-12), the audits are due to Alameda CTC on December 27, 2012 and the 

compliance reports are due on December 31, 2012.  

 

Local agencies/jurisdictions and nonprofit organizations may also receive Measure B grant funds 

through Alameda CTC’s discretionary funding programs. Grant recipients are required to submit 

progress reports every six months. These progress reports summarize the status of grant 

programs semi-annually (as reported by recipients). 

 

Discussion 

 

Measure B Pass-through Fund Program Summary 

Alameda CTC has collected and distributed over $602.8 million in Measure B program funds, 

including pass-through and grant funds, to local agencies, transit agencies, jurisdictions, and 

nonprofit organizations for transportation purposes since sales tax collection began for the 2000 

Measure B on April 1, 2002. 

Page 51



 

 

For FY 11-12, Measure B net sales tax revenues generated $107.5 million, higher than the $104 

million initially projected. As a result, agencies and jurisdictions received more pass through 

funds than originally anticipated based on the higher sales tax revenue.   

 

Measure B Pass-through Program highlights are noted below: 

 

 In FY 11-12, Alameda CTC distributed $60.5 million in Measure B pass-through 

program funds to recipients. The Measure B pass-through funding distributions are 

depicted in the Table 2 below. 

Table 2: Measure B Pass-through Funding Distribution 

Program/Projects 

Amount 

Distributed  
(in millions) Percent 

Local Streets and Roads $             24.0 39.7% 

Mass Transit $             22.8 37.7% 

Paratransit   $               9.7 16.0% 

Bicycle and Pedestrian   $               4.0 6.6% 

TOTAL  $             60.5 100% 

 

 Alameda CTC distributed pass-through funds to (21) jurisdictions including (14) fourteen 

local cities: Alameda, Albany, Berkeley, Dublin, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, 

Livermore, Newark, Oakland, Piedmont, Pleasanton, San Leandro, and Union City; 

Alameda County; and (6) six transportation agencies: Alameda-Contra Costa Transit 

District (AC Transit), Altamont Commuter Express Rail Service, Livermore Amador 

Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA), San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

(BART), San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA), 

and Union City Transit. 

 

Measure B Grant Programs Summary 

Alameda CTC distributes discretionary Measure B funds through four competitive grant 

programs to local agencies, transit agencies, and nonprofit organizations for transportation 

purposes. Alameda CTC evaluates grant proposals before awarding grants to project sponsors. 

For the Bicycle and Pedestrian Countywide Discretionary Fund (CDF) and the Paratransit Gap 

Grant programs, community advisory committees also review and make funding 

recommendations to the Commission for approval. In FY 11-12, Alameda CTC reimbursed 

project sponsors a total of $3 million. 

 

Alameda CTC also distributed $96,293 in Measure B Minimum Service Level (MSL) grants to 

the City of Oakland and City of San Leandro for maintaining minimum paratransit service 

operations. 

 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Countywide Discretionary Fund (CDF) Grant Program 

Through the Bicycle and Pedestrian CDF Grant Program, Alameda CTC provides 

funding to bicycle and pedestrian transportation projects which encourage and increase 

accessibility, safety, and mobility for bicyclists and pedestrians throughout the County.  

Page 52



 

 

Alameda CTC has allocated $10.1 million to (44) forty-four bicycle and pedestrian 

projects related to capital projects, master planning activities, and outreach efforts. The 

Alameda CTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) provides project 

funding recommendations to the Commission. Currently, there are (10) ten active CDF 

projects. 

 

In FY 11-12, Alameda CTC reimbursed approximately $800,000 to project sponsors. 

 

Express Bus Service Grant Program 

The Express Bus Service program is designed to improve rapid bus services throughout 

the County. Projects funded under this competitive grant program include transportation 

facilities improvements, operations, and transit center/connectivity expansion. 

 

To date, Alameda CTC has allocated approximately $7.4 million to (7) seven express bus 

service projects. Currently, there are (3) three active express bus service projects. 

 

In FY 11-12, Alameda CTC reimbursed over $1.0 million to project sponsors. 

 

Paratransit Gap Grant Program 

The Paratransit Gap Grant program provides funding to local jurisdictions, transit 

agencies, and non-profit groups to improve transportation mobility and access to seniors 

and people with disabilities. The program funds a variety of projects from shuttle 

operations, same day/taxi services, and transportation/outreach services including special 

transportation services for individuals with dementia, ridercare and fare assistance 

programs, travel escorts, and travel mobility and safety awareness training.  

 

Alameda CTC has allocated approximately $12.4 million to (60) sixty transportation 

projects and programs for seniors and people with disabilities. The Alameda CTC 

Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee (PAPCO) makes recommendations to the 

Commission on the Paratransit Gap grant funding. Currently, there are (23) twenty-three 

active Paratransit Gap projects.  

In FY 11-12, Alameda CTC reimbursed approximately $1.0 million to project sponsors. 

Transit Oriented Development Grant Program 

The Transit Oriented Development (TOD) grant program focus is on development of 

mixed-use residential or commercial areas designed to maximize access to public 

transportation. These projects are also referred to as Transit Center Development Projects 

(TCD) or Priority Development Areas (PDA).  Alameda CTC makes these funds 

available to Alameda County cities and to the County to encourage development near 

transit centers.  

 

Alameda CTC allocated over $2.1 million to TOD projects throughout Alameda County. 

Currently, there are (3) three active TOD projects. 

 

In FY 11-12, Alameda CTC reimbursed approximately $242,000 to project sponsors. 

 

Page 53



 

Measure B Grant Program Highlights 

 

 Since the start of Measure B grant funding in 2004, over 40 agencies and nonprofit 

organizations have received grant awards through the four grant programs.  

 As of December 2012, Alameda CTC has funded 121 grant projects in the amount of  

$32.0 million. 

 To date, there are (82) eight-two completed projects which have expanded access to 

transportation and improved mobility in Alameda County for each type of grant program. 

 Each Measure B grant funded project/program has been successful, meeting and 

exceeding performance measures and other markers of success.  

 These grant programs have leveraged Measure B funds to cover total grant program costs 

of over $119.5 million. 

 Currently, there are (39) thirty-nine active grants.  

Measure B Grant Funding Cycles Summary 

The following Table 3 - Measure B Grant Programs Summary lists depicts the Measure B grant 

cycles, including the Measure B award amount to date and the total number of projects for each 

cycle.  

 

Alameda CTC anticipates a new Call for Projects for Measure B discretionary Funds this 

February 2013.   

 

For additional project information, Attachment A provides project funding allocations for active 

and completed projects. Attachments B – E describes the current status and activities of the 

active grant projects. 

Page 54



 

 

Table 3: Total Measure B Grant Programs Summary 

Program Cycle 
Start 

Date 

Measure B 

Awards 

Total 

Project 

Costs 

Total 

Projects 

Active 

Projects 

B
ic

y
cl

e 
a
n

d
  

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 
1 02/26/04 $1,250,000  $5,845,092  7 0 

2 04/28/05 $1,000,000  $2,143,921  8 0 

3 07/01/07 $2,407,292  $16,592,705  14 0 

4 07/01/09 $4,926,983  $10,204,000  12 7 

Mid-

Cycle 

07/01/10 $484,000  $4,204,000  3 3 

  
Subtotal: $10,068,275  $39,546,686  44  10  

E
x
p

re
ss

 B
u

s 

1 07/01/06 $3,170,843  $12,284,677  3 1 

2 07/01/09 $3,907,157  $5,448,679  3 1 

Mid-

Cycle 

07/01/10 $321,000  $321,000  1 1 

  Subtotal: $7,399,000  $18,054,356  7 3 

P
a
ra

tr
a
n

si
t 

1 & 2 07/01/04 $1,536,365  $1,536,365  16 0 

3 07/01/06 $3,921,152  $4,554,835  16 2 

4 07/01/08 $6,133,191  $8,876,540  20 13 

Mid-

Cycle 

07/01/10 $848,256  $848,256  8 8 

  
Subtotal: $12,438,964  $15,815,996  60 23 

T
ra

n
si

t 
 

O
ri

en
te

d
  

D
ev

el
o
p

m
en

t 1 07/01/05 $340,390  $1,662,175  4 0 

2 07/01/07 $767,000  $43,369,344  4 1 

Mid-

Cycle 07/01/10 $1,000,000  $1,000,000  2 2 

  Subtotal: $2,107,390  $46,031,519  10 3 

Total: $32,013,629  $119,448,557  121 39 
 Mid-Cycle refers to approval of supplemental funding, funding reallocation, and/or time extensions 

 

 

Attachments 
Attachment A:  Alameda CTC Grant Program Summary 

Attachment B:  Bicycle and Pedestrian CDF Grant Program Status Update 

Attachment C:  Express Bus Service Grant Program Status Update 

Attachment D:  Paratransit Gap Grant Program Status Update 

Attachment E:  Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Status Update 

Page 55



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 56



Alameda CTC Program Grant Projects Summary Table

Bicycle and Pedestrian/Express Bus/Paratransit/Transit Oriented Development

Grant 

Program
Cycle Agreement No. Location Grant Project Sponsor Grant Project Name

Current 

(Amended) 

MB Funds

Current 

Other Funds

Current (Amended) 

Total Project Cost
Project Status

A04-0016 N City of Oakland Eastlake Streetscape and Pedestrian Enhancement Project $262,000 $2,827,600 $3,089,600 Complete

A04-0018 N City of Oakland Public Works Agency Oakland Bicycle Master Plan Update $134,000 $166,440 $300,440 Complete

A04-0017 C City of San Leandro San Leandro Bay Trail Slough Bridge $0 $0 $0 Superceded

A04-0019 C, E County of Alameda Public Works Agency Alameda County Pedestrian Master Plan for Unincorporated Areas $120,000 $50,000 $170,000 Complete

A04-0022 N, C, S East Bay Asian Youth Center Bicycle Education Programs $222,750 $170,000 $392,750 Complete

A04-0021 E East Bay Regional Park District Iron Horse Trail $450,000 $1,381,052 $1,831,052 Complete

A04-0023 N University of California (Berkeley) UC Berkeley Bicycle Plan $61,250 $0 $61,250 Complete

Cycle 1 Grants (7) Subtotal      $1,250,000 $4,595,092 $5,845,092

A05-0030 CW Alameda County Congestion Mangement Agency Countywide Bicycle Plan Update $30,000 $20,000 $50,000 Complete

A05-0036 N Alameda County Public Works Agency Coliseum BART to Bay Trail Connector Environmental Study $100,000 $15,000 $115,000 Complete

A05-0031 N City of Alameda City of Alameda Pedestrian Master Plan $36,000 $9,000 $45,000 Complete

A05-0035 N City of Albany Buchanan and I-80/I-580 Intersection Alternative Bicycle/Pedestrian Connector Trail $75,000 $35,000 $110,000 Complete

A05-0034 N City of Oakland Market Street Bikeway Project $235,000 $459,921 $694,921 Complete

A05-0032 S City of Union City 11th Street Enhancement Project $300,000 $497,000 $797,000 Complete

A05-0033 E East Bay Regional Park District Alamo Canal Trail Undercrossing of I-580 Feasibility Study $50,000 $50,000 $100,000 Complete

A05-0037 CW San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District BART Station Electronic Bicycle Lockers $174,000 $58,000 $232,000 Complete

Cycle 2 Grants (8) Subtotal $1,000,000 $1,143,921 $2,143,921

A07-0004 N, C, S Alameda County Public Works Agency Union Pacific (Oakland Subdivision) Railroad Corridor Improvement Plan $75,000 $75,000 $150,000 Complete

A07-0003 N, C, S Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Bike Racks for New Buses $20,000 $23,578 $43,578 Complete

A07-0005 N Berkeley Redevelopment Agency Aquatic Park Connection Streetscape Improvement Project -  Phase 1 Bike & Ped Improvements $65,000 $1,160,000 $1,225,000 Complete

A07-0006 N City of Alameda Alameda-Oakland Estuary Crossing Feasibility Study $100,000 $310,797 $410,797 Complete

A07-0007 N City of Albany Buchanan Bicycle/Pedestrian Path $266,000 $51,600 $317,600 Complete

A07-0008 N City of Berkeley Ashby BART Station/Ed Roberts Campus Pedestrian and Bicycle Access and Safety Project $136,000 $6,914,000 $7,050,000 Complete

A07-0009 N City of Berkeley Travel Choice - Berkeley $190,000 $447,000 $637,000 Complete

A07-0010 E City of Livermore Iron Horse Trail Feasibility & Engineering Study $70,000 $98,000 $168,000 Complete

A07-0011 N City of Oakland MacArthur Transit Hub Streetscape Improvement Project $215,000 $2,608,000 $2,823,000 Complete

A07-0012 E City of Pleasanton Pleasanton Pedestrian & Bicycle Master Plan $111,000 $0 $111,000 Complete

A07-0013 C City of San Leandro Bay Trail Slough Bridge $150,000 $1,860,000 $2,010,000 Complete

A07-0015 CW East Bay Bicycle Coalition Bicycle Safety Education Classes $38,000 $3,250 $41,250 Complete

A07-0014 E East Bay Regional Park District I-580 Undercrossing, Alamo Canal Trail $235,000 $100,000 $335,000 Complete

A07-0016 CW Transportation and Land Use Coalition Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Alameda County Partnership $736,292 $534,188 $1,270,480 Complete

Cycle 3 Grants (14) Subtotal $2,407,292 $14,185,413 $16,592,705

A09-0023 CW Alameda County Transportation Commission Alameda Countywide Bicycle Plan Update $130,000 $46,104 $176,104 Active

A09-0021 N City of Albany Albany Pedestrian Master Plan and Update to the Albany Bicycle Master Plan $130,000 $55,800 $185,800 Complete

A09-0018 E City of Dublin Alamo Canal Regional Trail Undercrossing of I-580: Construction $491,000 $1,760,000 $2,251,000 Active

A09-0020 S City of Fremont Irvington Area Pedestrian Improvements $286,000 $49,000 $335,000 Active

A09-0026 S City of Fremont Tri-City Senior Walk Clubs $105,000 $15,000 $120,000 Active

A09-0022 S City of Newark Newark Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan $119,000 $30,000 $149,000 Complete

A09-0017 N City of Oakland Lakeshore/Lake Park Avenue Complete Streets Project $573,599 $633,992 $1,207,591 Active

A09-0025 CW East Bay Bicycle Coalition Bicycle Safety Education Program $410,083 $54,889 $464,972 Active

A09-0019 E East Bay Regional Parks District Iron Horse Trail Feasibility Study - Dublin BART to Santa Rita Road $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 Complete

A09-0024 CW TransForm Safe Routes to Schools Alameda County Partnership $820,000 $1,075,000 $1,895,000 Complete

A09-0027 CW TransForm TravelChoice New Residents $175,000 $178,000 $353,000 Complete

ACTIA-6

(A09-0016)
N, C Alameda CTC East Bay Greenway Environmental Review and Implementation Strategy $1,662,000 $1,911,200 $3,573,200 Active

Cycle 4 Grants (12) Subtotal $4,926,682 $5,833,985 $10,760,667

N/A C Alameda CTC Safe Routes to School - Operations $270,000 $2,069,000 $2,339,000 Active

N/A C Alameda CTC Safe Routes to School - CAP TAP $149,000 $1,151,000 $1,300,000 Active

N/A C Alameda CTC Safe Routes to School - BikeMobility $65,000 $500,000 $565,000 Active

Mid-Cycle Grants (3) Subtotal $484,000 $3,720,000 $4,204,000

$10,067,974 $29,478,411 $39,546,385

A06-0039 S Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Ardenwood Express Bus Park and Ride Improvements $1,500,000 $6,800,000 $8,300,000 Complete

A06-0038 CW Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Express Bus Connectivity - Major Hubs $21,843 $2,427 $24,270 Complete

A06-0040 E Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority LAVTA Bus Rapid Transit $1,649,000 $2,311,407 $3,960,407 Active

Cycle 1 Grants (3) Subtotal $3,170,843 $9,113,834 $12,284,677

N/A CW Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Alameda County Countywide Express Bus Plan (from Cycle 1 funding) $0 $0 $0 Superceded

A09-0035 C, N Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District 1R International Rapid Weekday and Weekend Operations (funding rolled over from superceded) $2,028,157 $1,171,522 $3,199,679 Complete

A09-0036 E Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority LAVTA Express Bus Operating Assistance $1,879,000 $370,000 $2,249,000 Active

Cycle 2 Grants (3) Subtotal $3,907,157 $1,541,522 $5,448,679

Pending CW, S Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District AC Transit Expansion of Transit Center at San Leandro Bart $321,000 $0 $321,000 Active

Mid-Cycle Grants (1) Subtotal $321,000 $0 $321,000

$7,399,000 $10,655,356 $18,054,356

A04-0027 N City of Alameda Medical Return Trip Improvement Program (MRTIP) $64,514 $0 $64,514 Complete

A04-0026 N City of Albany Medical Return Trip Improvement Program (MRTIP) $11,480 $0 $11,480 Complete

A04-0028 N City of Berkeley Medical Return Trip Improvement Program (MRTIP) $76,163 $0 $76,163 Complete

A04-0029 N City of Emeryville Medical Return Trip Improvement Program (MRTIP) $10,080 $0 $10,080 Complete

A04-0033 S City of Fremont Paratransit Fare Assistance Program $52,388 $0 $52,388 Complete

A04-0033 S City of Fremont Travel Escort Program $77,836 $0 $77,836 Complete

A04-0033 S City of Fremont Medical Outreach Transportation Program (South County) $89,599 $0 $89,599 Complete

A04-0031 C City of Hayward Pre-scheduled Non-Medical Trips $93,700 $0 $93,700 Complete

A04-0031 C City of Hayward Same Day Medical Trips $164,650 $0 $164,650 Complete

A04-0031 C City of Hayward Joint Medical Transportation Outreach Project $26,023 $0 $26,023 Complete

A04-0031 C City of Hayward  Group Recreational Trips $93,700 $0 $93,700 Complete

A04-0030 N City of Oakland Medical Return Trip Improvement Program (MRTIP) $397,783 $0 $397,783 Complete

A04-0030 N City of Oakland Accessible Home Improvement Paratransit Program (AHIPP) $132,763 $0 $132,763 Complete

A04-0032 C City of San Leandro Joint Medical Transportation Outreach Project $7,500 $0 $7,500 Complete

A04-0032 C City of San Leandro San Leandro Out of Town Medical Trips $96,975 $0 $96,975 Complete

A04-0036 E Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority/Pleasanton Paratransit Tri-Valley Taxi Study for Seniors and Disabled $141,211 $0 $141,211 Complete

Cycles 1 & 2 Grants (16) Subtotal $1,536,365 $0 $1,536,365

ACTIA-3 CW Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority Countywide Mobilty Coordination Program $500,000 $0 $500,000 Complete

ACTIA-2

(A06-0044)
S Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority/City of Fremont South County Taxi Pilot Project (includes $100K to St. MiniCab PSA) $455,700 $0 $455,700 Complete

ACTIA-1 

(A06-0044)
S Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority/City of Fremont Tri-City Travel Training Pilot Project $230,000 $60,000 $290,000 Active

A06-0030 CW Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District East Bay Paratransit Mobile Data Computer/Automatic Vehicle Location Pilot Program $500,000 $61,645 $561,645 Complete

A06-0036 N, C Alzheimer's Services of the East Bay Special Transportation Services for Individuals with Dementia $300,000 $348,743 $648,743 Complete

A06-0028 N Bay Area Community Services Dimond-Fruitvale Senior Shuttle and East Oakland Senior Shuttle Expansion $330,245 $5,129 $335,374 Active

A06-0034 N Bay Area Community Services North Alameda County Group Trip Program $240,454 $17,447 $257,901 Complete

A06-0035 N Center for Independent Living/USOAC Outreach and Travel Training Project of North Alameda County $239,976 $18,888 $258,864 Complete

A06-0027 N City of Berkeley/Ed Roberts Campus Ashby BART Station/Ed Roberts Campus $141,000 $16,000 $157,000 Complete

A06-0044 S City of Fremont Older Driver Safety Awareness Program $36,000 $0 $36,000 Complete

A06-0044 S City of Fremont Volunteers for Independence Program $73,483 $0 $73,483 Complete

A06-0032 C City of Hayward Hayward Ride-Today! $355,700 $0 $355,700 Complete

A06-0031 S City of Newark Fare Assistance for AC Transit Circulator Routes $93,026 $0 $93,026 Complete

A06-0033 E Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority/Pleasanton Paratransit LAVTA  Paratransit Customer Service Software $175,000 $26,000 $201,000 Complete

A06-0037 E Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority/Pleasanton Paratransit Tri-Valley Travel Training Program $123,800 $57,460 $181,260 Complete

A06-0029 CW San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District East Bay Paratransit Rider Care Specialist $126,768 $22,371 $149,139 Complete

Cycle 3 Grants (16) Subtotal $3,921,152 $633,683 $4,554,835

ACTIA-4

A08-0027
C, S Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority Central County Taxi Program Expansion and "Guaranteed Ride Home" for Travel Training Participants $35,000 $0 $35,000 Cancelled

ACTIA-5

A08-0028
CW Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority Countywide Mobility Coordination $374,000 $0 $374,000 Complete

A08-0025 N, C, S Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Interactive Voice Response (IVR)/Web-based Scheduling Software $200,000 $0 $200,000 Active

A08-0026 CW Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District New Freedom Fund Grant Match $36,000 $144,000 $180,000 Active

A08-0024 N, C, S Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District EBP Mobile Data Terminal/Automatic Vehicle Locator Project $306,000 $300,000 $606,000 Complete

A08-0029 N, C, S Alzheimer's Services of the East Bay Driving Growth through Transportation: Special Transportation Services for Individuals with Dementia $720,000 $1,222,001 $1,942,001 Active

A08-0030 N Bay Area Outreach and Recreation Program BORP North County Youth/Adults with Disabilities Group Trip Project $604,200 $168,230 $772,430 Active

A08-0031 N, C Center for Independent Living Mobility Matters! $550,429 $255,459 $805,888 Active

A08-0032 N City of Albany Albany Senior Center Community Shuttle Bus $172,600 $42,223 $214,823 Active

A08-0033 N City of Emeryville 94608 Area Demand Response Shuttle Service for Seniors and/or People with Disabilities $357,000 $34,000 $391,000 Active

A08-0034 S City of Fremont VIP Rides Program $398,148 $0 $398,148 Active

A08-0035 C City of Hayward Hayward Round About - Paratransit Shuttle Service $440,000 $0 $440,000 Complete

A08-0036 N City of Oakland GRIP - Grocery Return Improvement Program $345,885 $0 $345,885 Active

A08-0037 N City of Oakland - Department of Human Resources TAXI - UP & GO Project! $327,472 $431,697 $759,169 Active

A08-0038 E City of Pleasanton Downtown Route $557,617 $84,899 $642,516 Active

A08-0039 E City of Pleasanton Rider Assessment Service $9,200 $8,927 $18,127 Complete

A08-0041 E Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority Paratransit Vehicle Donation Program and Dial-a-Ride Scholarship    $95,000 $4,813 $99,813 Active

A08-0040 E Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority LAVTA Livermore Senior Housing Shuttle $191,000 $9,500 $200,500 Complete

A08-0042 CW San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Learn BART! A Picture Guide to Riding BART $43,000 $21,600 $64,600 Complete

A08-0043 E Senior Support Program of the Tri Valley Volunteers Assisting Same Day Transportation and Escorts $370,640 $16,000 $386,640 Active

$6,133,191 $2,743,349 $8,876,540

A11-0059 S City of Fremont Tri-City Mobility Management Program $114,500 $0 $114,500 Active

A12-0010 S Alameda CTC (MV Transportation) Emergency Wheelchair/Scooter and Hospital Discharge Service $50,000 $0 $50,000 Active

A12-0004 S Alameda CTC (St. Mini Cab Corporation) Same Day Taxi Program in South Alameda County $125,000 $0 $125,000 Active

A12-0001 C Alameda CTC (St. Mini Cab Corporation) Same Day Taxi Program in Central Alameda County $240,000 $0 $240,000 Active

A12-0030 C Senior Helpline Services Volunteer Drivers Program $100,000 $0 $100,000 Active

N/A N,C,S Alameda CTC Countywide Mobility Management Program Pilot $118,756 $0 $118,756 Active

A12-0045 C City of Oakland Minimum Level of Service Grants $25,000 $0 $25,000 Active

A12-0046 S City of San Leandro Minimum Level of Service Grants $75,000 $0 $75,000 Active

$848,256 $0 $848,256

60 Paratransit - Cycles 1 - 4 and Mid-Cycle Grants Total $12,438,964 $3,377,032 $15,815,996

A05-0019 CW Alameda County Congestion Management Agency (ACCMA) Transit Oriented Development Technical Assistance Program $250,000 $50,000 $300,000 Complete

A05-0046 N City of Alameda Alameda Point Station Area Plan Project $25,415 $224,585 $250,000 Complete

A05-0047 C City of San Leandro Downtown San Leandro Bus Rapid Transit Station Area Plan Project $51,750 $648,250 $700,000 Complete

A05-0048 E City of Pleasanton Pleasanton Hacienda Business Park Station Area Plan Project $13,225 $398,950 $412,175 Complete

Cycle 1 Grants (4) Subtotal      $340,390 $1,321,785 $1,662,175

A07-0017 E City of Livermore Downtown Livermore Pedestrian Transit Connections Program $180,500 $1,200,000 $1,380,500 Complete

A07-0018 S City of Fremont Bay Street Streetscape Project $138,000 $3,262,000 $3,400,000 Complete

A07-0019 N City of Oakland West Oakland Seventh Street Transit Village Streetscape $218,500 $4,370,344 $4,588,844 Active

A07-0020 N City of Berkeley Transportation Enhancements at Ashby BART Station/Ed Roberts Campus $230,000 $33,770,000 $34,000,000 Complete

Cycle 2 Grants (4) Subtotal $767,000 $42,602,344 $43,369,344

N/A N, C Alameda CTC TOD - TAP (FY 2009-10 CMA Program) $500,000 $0 $500,000 Active

N/A N, C Alameda CTC TOD - TAP (FY 2011-12 CMA Program) $500,000 $0 $500,000 Active

Mid-Cycle Grants (2) Subtotal $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000

$2,107,390 $43,924,129 $46,031,519

$32,013,328 $87,434,928 $119,448,256

1

P
a

ra
tr

a
n

s
it

 

10 Transit Oriented Development - Cycles 1 - 2 and Mid-Cycle Grants Total  

T
ra

n
s

it
 O

ri
e

n
te

d
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 B

ic
y

c
le

 a
n

d
 P

e
d

e
s

tr
ia

n
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

Last Updated: 

December 20, 

2012

Mid-Cycle Grants (8) Subtotal

1

44 Bicycle and Pedestrian - Cycles 1 - 4 and Mid-Cycle Grants Total  

2

Cycle 4 Grants (20) Subtotal

4

121 Alameda CTC Program Grants Total

(Paratransit + Bicycle and Ped + Express Bus+Transit Oriented Development)

3

1 & 2

7 Express Bus - Cycles 1-2 and Mid-Cycle Grants Total  

E
x

p
re

s
s

 B
u

s

Mid-

Cycle

2

Mid-

Cycle

Mid-

Cycle

1

3

2

4

Mid-

Cycle

Attachment A

Page 57

C:/Documents and Settings/thal/Local Settings/measureB/Programs/@GMT-2008.07.14-19.00.02/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Local Settings/Temporary Internet Files/OLK83/Progress Reports/Bike and Ped/Cycle 1/A040019-ProgressReport4.doc
C:/Documents and Settings/thal/Local Settings/measureB/Programs/@GMT-2008.07.14-19.00.02/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Local Settings/Temporary Internet Files/OLK83/Progress Reports/Bike and Ped/Cycle 1/A040021-ProgressReport3.doc
C:/Documents and Settings/thal/Local Settings/measureB/Programs/@GMT-2008.07.14-19.00.02/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Local Settings/Temporary Internet Files/OLK83/Progress Reports/Bike and Ped/Cycle 1/A040019-ProgressReport4.doc
C:/Documents and Settings/thal/Local Settings/measureB/Programs/@GMT-2008.07.14-19.00.02/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Local Settings/Temporary Internet Files/OLK83/Progress Reports/Bike and Ped/Cycle 1/A040021-ProgressReport3.doc


This page intentionally left blank 

Page 58



Bicycle and Pedestrian CDF Grant Program  
 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Countywide Discretionary Fund  
Grant Program Status Update on Active Projects  

 
The active projects in this program appear below according to grant cycle. The Project Sponsor 
for each project is in parentheses. 
 
Cycle 4 Bicycle and Pedestrian Grant Projects  
 

1. Alameda Countywide Bicycle Plan Update (Alameda CTC): Alameda CTC is 
coordinating updates of the Countywide Bicycle Plan and the Countywide Strategic 
Pedestrian Plan that will reflect current bicycling and walking conditions, needs, and 
priorities in Alameda County. 

o The Final Draft Plan adopted in October 2012, and the project is closing out. 
 

2. Alamo Canal Regional Trail – Interstate 580 Undercrossing (Construction)  
(City of Dublin): The Alamo Canal Regional Trail in Dublin will connect with the 
Centennial Trail in Pleasanton, creating a 3.6-mile continuous Class 1 multi-use path. 

o The project started construction on April 16, 2012 with majority of construction 
completed October 2012. The project is currently closing out.  

 
3. Bicycle Safety Education Program (East Bay Bicycle Coalition (EBBC)): EBBC is 

educating and training bicyclists on safe biking techniques, ranging from proper and safe 
riding to basic repair and maintenance.  This project also includes the coordination with 
the Cycles of Change on their Neighborhood Bicycle Transportation Centers’ bicycle 
distribution and education program (aka Bike-Go-Round). 

o The Project Sponsor continues to conduct Traffic Skills 101 Classes, Train-the-
Trainer sessions, Family Cycling Workshops, Kids’ Bike Rodeos, Lunchtime 
Commute Workshops, How-to-Ride-a-Bike Classes and Police Diversion 
Outreach classes. 

o The Alameda CTC Commission approved an extension of time to October 31, 
2013, and additional funding in the amount of $99,699. 
 

4. East Bay Greenway Environmental Review and Implementation Strategy  
(Alameda CTC): The East Bay Greenway eliminates barriers separating local 
communities and provides mobility for economically and socially disadvantaged 
communities through safe connections to five BART stations, two downtown areas, and 
multiple parks and schools, by building a 12-mile walking and biking path under and 
adjacent to the BART tracks between Oakland and Hayward. 

o Alameda CTC in collaboration with local and regional partners is currently 
obtaining environmental clearance to construct the segment that will connect to 
the Oakland Coliseum BART Station.  
 

5. Lakeshore/Lake Park Avenue Complete Streets Project (City of Oakland): The City 
of Oakland is coordinating improvements to create a “complete street” near Lakeshore 
and Lake Park Avenues. 

o The Project Sponsor issued a Notice to Proceed for the construction contract on 
March 5, 2012. Construction is approximately 70% complete. 

Attachment B

Page 59



Bicycle and Pedestrian CDF Grant Program  
 

 
6. Newark Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan (City of Newark): The City of Newark is 

drafting its first Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan to thoroughly address gap closure 
needs and safety improvements, and to increase convenient access to public transit, 
activity centers, and schools. 

o The draft version of the plan is available online for public viewing at 
http://newarkbikepedplan.fehrandpeers.net/draft-documents. 

o The Alameda CTC Commission approved a time extension to October 31, 2013. 
 

7. Tri-City Senior Walk Clubs (City of Fremont): Each “Walk This Way Program” 
session, led by a fitness instructor/program facilitator, includes a 16-week curriculum of 
educational and motivational classes to promote the health benefits of walking, teach 
awareness of pedestrian safety and personal security, including how to avoid falls and 
injuries, and encourage walking as a mode of transportation and a means of connecting 
with public transit and local activity centers.  

o The Project Sponsor conducted outreach to individuals and groups.  
o The program facilitator implemented and led 16-week program sessions with 

seventeen sessions conducted between July 1, 2009 and December 31, 2011. 
o The Alameda CTC Commission approved time extension to October 31, 2013, 

and additional funding in the amount of $27,872. 
 
 

Mid-Cycle Bicycle and Pedestrian Grant Projects  
 

1. Safe Routes to School - Bike Mobility (Alameda CTC): The BikeMobile is a pilot 
program managed under the Alameda CTC’s Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) program. 
The BikeMobile and its bicycle mechanic staff will visit schools and community 
organizations and events to deliver no-cost, hands-on bicycle repair and bicycle safety 
training to promote riding bikes to school.  

o On April 24, 2012, the Alameda CTC and the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) with partner Cycles of Change launch the BikeMobile 
program at an inaugural ceremony and bike “Fix-a-Thon”. 

o The program will run through November 2013.   

 
2. Safe Routes to School - Operations (Alameda CTC): Alameda CTC’s SR2S program 

goal is to educate and encourage children to walk and bike to school through walking, 
school buses, bicycle education, safety training,  and parent- and student-coordinated 
education efforts. 

o The program has reached almost 150 schools throughout the county. 

 

3. Safe Routes to School  – Technical Assistance Program (Alameda CTC): The SR2S 
Technical Assistance Program aim is to provide Capital Project development resources 
(i.e. Environmental Documents, Design Phase) to local agencies, and to assist agencies in 
competing for other capital focused SR2S grant programs.  

o The Alameda CTC Commission approved a federal funding exchange with the 
San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission in March 2012.  

Page 60

http://newarkbikepedplan.fehrandpeers.net/draft-documents


Express Bus Service Grant Program  
 

Express Bus Service Grant Program  
Status Update on Active Projects 

 
The active projects in this program appear below according to grant cycle. The Project Sponsor 
for each project is in parentheses. 

 
Cycle 1 Express Bus Service Grant Projects 
 

1. LAVTA Bus Rapid Transit (LAVTA): LAVTA’s is currently mirroring the existing 
Route 10 and has maintained 15-minute headways on the Pleasanton portion of the 
existing Local 10 line.  The Project Sponsor has also added Transit Signal Priority 
technology to the intersections in Pleasanton to speed up the current service, allowing this 
travel-time-sensitive rapid project to migrate to the Dublin side of Interstate 580.  

o In January 2011, the Project Sponsor launched Bus Rapid Transit service 
operations. 

 
Cycle 2 Express Bus Service Grant Projects 
 

1. LAVTA Express Bus Operating Assistance (LAVTA): LAVTA Express Bus works in 
tandem with other local service programs to create, expand, and enhance express bus 
services countywide, with a focus on three existing, vital lines: the 20 X, the 12V, and  
the 70X. 

o All Measure B-funded routes are currently in operation. 
o The Alameda CTC Commission approved a time extension for this project to 

October 31, 2013, and additional funding in the amount of $379,000. 
 

Mid-Cycle Express Bus Service Grant Projects 
 

1. Expansion of Transit Center at San Leandro Bart (AC Transit): AC Transit, in 
coordination with BART and the City of San Leandro, is proposing to expand the transit 
center at the San Leandro BART station to accommodate the East Bay Bus Rapid Transit 
Project (BRT) terminus, other AC Transit routes, and other transit services.  

o This project will make street and BART station geometric improvements, add bus 
staging, and real-time signage at the San Leandro BART Station. 

 

Attachment C

Page 61



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 62



Paratransit Gap Grant Program  
 
 

Paratransit Gap Grant Program 
Status Update on Active Projects  

 
The active projects in this program appear below according to grant cycle. The Project Sponsor 
for each project is in parentheses. 
 
Cycle 3 Paratransit Gap Grant Projects 
 

1. Dimond-Fruitvale Senior Shuttle and East Oakland Senior Shuttle Expansion (Bay 
Area Community Services (BACS)): This BACS project fills a service gap in the City 
of Oakland’s shuttle network by expanding services of the existing Dimond-Fruitvale 
Senior Shuttle and East Oakland Senior Shuttle programs. 

o The Project Sponsor has surpassed project performance measures. 
o Beginning in July 2011, BACS added an extra day of service to East Oakland 

residents, serving an additional five senior residences. 

o Alameda CTC awarded $90,000 in additional Measure B funds, and extended the 
project end date to October 2013. 

2. Tri-City Travel Training Pilot Program (City of Fremont): Tri-City Travel Training 
teaches seniors and people with disabilities in Fremont, Newark, and Union City how to 
use public transportation, including AC Transit buses and BART trains. 

o The Project Sponsor is implementing travel training workshops at various 
locations throughout the community. 

o Follow-up surveys are sent to workshop participants to enable continuous 
program improvement.  

o During the last reporting period, the Project Sponsor provided eight 2-day travel 
training workshops and six Transit Adventure Program trips through this group 
follow-up program that teaches older adults and people with disabilities how to 
use public transit to get to various community destinations. 

o Alameda CTC extended the project end date to December 2014 to coincide with 
the city’s New Freedom Grant funding. 
 

Cycle 4 Paratransit Gap Grant Projects 
 

1. Interactive Voice Response (IVR)/ Web-based Scheduling Software (AC Transit): 
The Project Sponsor secured federal funds to purchase and install IVR/Web-based 
scheduling software, enabling the IVR system to call passengers five minutes before the 
vehicle arrival time. 

o The Project Sponsor continues to work with a software vendor to upgrade the 
software and add IVR/Web Based Scheduling Software.  

o The project is expected to close-out in December 2012. 
 

2. New Freedom Fund Grant Match Program (AC Transit): AC Transit is determining 
the feasibility of establishing a mobility management structure within its jurisdiction, by 
identifying and cataloging all transportation resources in the East Bay that will foster 
coordinated transportation services.  

Attachment D

Page 63



Paratransit Gap Grant Program  
 
 

o The Project Sponsor submitted an amendment request for a time extension which 
is currently under staff review.  

 
3. Driving Growth through Transportation: Special Transportation Services for 

Individuals with Dementia (Alzheimer’s Services of the East Bay (ASEB)): ASEB 
continues to provide transportation to those with moderate to late stage Alzheimer’s 
disease or dementia, consistently increasing the number of individuals served and the 
trips provided with each fiscal year.  

o ASEB is running a pilot weekend program due to the increase in ridership. 
o The Project Sponsor received two awards: the California Association of Adult 

Day Services (CAADS) – a Leadership Award for the Executive Director, and a 
Team Award for the transportation team. 

o In FY 11/12 ASEB provided transportation 13,218 one-way trips, 126 days of 
services, and served 144 individuals with dementia.  

o Alameda CTC awarded $140,000 in additional Measure B funds, and extended 
the project end date to October 2013. 

 
4. North County Youth/Adults with Disabilities Group Trip Project (Bay Area 

Outreach and Recreation Program (BORP): BORP provides accessible group trip 
transportation in North County for children, youth, and adults with disabilities who 
participate in sports and recreational programs. 

o BORP conducted a total of 282 rounds trips and a total of 175 one-way trips 
during FY 11-12.   

o Alameda CTC awarded $130,000 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  

 
5. Mobility Matters! (Center for Independent Living): The Center for Independent Living 

continues to expand the Outreach & Travel Training Project of Northern Alameda 
County, which conducts group and individualized travel training for seniors and people 
with disabilities in northern Alameda County.  

o Alameda CTC awarded $81,365 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  

 
6. Albany Senior Center Community Shuttle Bus (City of Albany): This shuttle bus 

enriches the lives of seniors and those with disabilities by expanding transportation 
services; the popular program provides a door-to-door shopping program, transportation 
for a walking group that goes on scenic walks in the Bay Area, and takes seniors on 
recreational day trips that provide lifelong learning and socialization.  

o The Project Sponsor consistently meets or exceeds project performance measures. 
o To date, the Project Sponsor has provided 4,134 shopping trips; 3,706 recreational 

day trips; 550 community-based organization field trips; and 3,634 walking  
club trips. 

o Alameda CTC awarded $11,000 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  

 

Page 64



Paratransit Gap Grant Program  
 
 

7. 94608 Area Demand Response Shuttle Service for Seniors and/or People with 
Disabilities (City of Emeryville): The shuttle service program provides free ridership 
anywhere within the 94608 zip code to seniors and those with disabilities.  

o The 8-To-Go service is featured in the City News/Activity Guide, which is 
delivered to every address in Emeryville and available for pick-up in many 
commercial areas. 

o Alameda CTC awarded $65,000 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  
 

8. VIP Rides Program (City of Fremont): The City of Fremont links seniors and those 
with disabilities with volunteers who accompany them on paratransit rides through the 
VIP Rides Program, which provides assistance where needed, provides cost-effective, 
streamlined service delivery, and alleviates demand on existing paratransit services. 

o The Project Sponsor reports 1,176 service linkages (or a total of 2,352 one-way 
escorted trips) made during the second half of FY 11-12.  Escorted trips for 
medical appointments accounts for 77% of the services.  

o Alameda CTC awarded $90,000 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  
 

9. GRIP – Grocery Return Improvement Project (City of Oakland): GRIP offers on-
demand return trips for individuals for grocery needs, provides on-demand or scheduled 
service for areas not served by East Bay Paratransit, and transports people awaiting 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) certification.  

o All three components of the grant are active: 21-day Referral, Grocery Return, 
and Out of ADA programs. 

o Alameda CTC awarded $70,000 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  

 
10. Taxi – Up & Go Project! (City of Oakland – Department of Human Resources): A 

partnership between the City of Oakland Paratransit for the Elderly and Disabled 
Program (OPED) and the Senior Companion Program (SPC), Taxi – Up & Go enhances 
and expands the taxi scrip program, providing transportation access escorts and case 
management support for frail, mono-lingual, and socially isolated residents in the City of 
Oakland.  

o The Project sponsor reports the program’s client base continues to show a mark 
increase in the distribution of taxi scrip/vouchers and rides with 500 clients 
transported in the second half of FY 11-12.  

o Alameda CTC awarded $92,000 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  

 
11. Downtown Route (DTR) (City of Pleasanton): The DTR provides shared-ride 

paratransit services to Pleasanton and Sunol residents, connecting senior housing 
complexes with the Main Street business district via a shuttle bus on a circular route 
through downtown Pleasanton. 

o The Project sponsor offering a three-day-a-week DRT schedule to meet the 
current ridership need.  

o Alameda CTC awarded $43,825 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  

Page 65



Paratransit Gap Grant Program  
 
 

 
12. Paratransit Vehicle Donation Program and Dial-A-Ride Scholarship Project 

(LAVTA): The keystone of this project is offering surplus paratransit vehicles retired 
from the Wheels Dial-a-Ride fleet to community-based organizations, in addition to 
offering Dial-a-Ride scholarships.  

o The Project sponsor reports 240 trips were provided to eligible clients during the 
second half of FY 11-12. 

o Alameda CTC extended the project to October 2013 to allow the Project Sponsor 
to implement and expend the remaining funds for the project.  

 
13. Volunteers Assisting Same Day Transportation and Escorts (Senior Support 

Program of the Tri Valley): The Volunteers Assisting Same Day Transportation 
program provides same-day, door-to-door transportation service in the Greater Bay Area 
for seniors, in addition to volunteer escorts for those who cannot use public transportation 
independently. 

o Over 300 Tri-Valley seniors are signed up for the Volunteers Assisting Same Day 
Transportation and program since the program inception in 2008. 

o Alameda CTC awarded $72,500 in additional Measure B funds and extended the 
project to October 2013.  

 
 

Mid-Cycle Paratransit Gap Grant Projects 
 

1. Tri-City Mobility Management Program (City of Fremont):  The City of Fremont 
provides mobility management services for seniors and persons with disabilities in the 
Tri-City area to assist individuals navigate the transportation system. 

o The Project Sponsor assigned a program manager responsible for project 
development, implantation, and outreach of mobility management activities.  

  
2. Emergency Wheelchair/Scooter and Hospital Discharge Services (MV 

Transportation and Alameda CTC): This project provides a service called the 
Wheelchair and Scooter Breakdown Transportation Service (WSBTS) for wheelchair and 
scooter users in Alameda County that are stranded due to a mechanical breakdown of 
their mobility device or a medical emergency that has separated them from their chair. 

o This service is available 7 days a week, 24 hours a day, and is free to the 
wheelchair or scooter user. 

  
3. South County Taxi Pilot Program (Alameda CTC and City of Fremont): The South 

County Taxi Pilot Program continues to provide safety-net, same-day taxi service to city-
based program registrants in the cities of Fremont, Union City, and Newark. 

o Tri-City paratransit staff, Alameda CTC staff, the contractor, and the Paratransit 
Coordination staff hold regular meetings to review complaints and operational 
procedures, and to ensure all parties involved understand project expectations. 

o Alameda CTC awarded $125,000 in additional Measure B funds, and extended 
the project end date to June 2013 due to the program’s success. 
 

Page 66



Paratransit Gap Grant Program  
 
 

4. Central County Taxi Pilot Program (Alameda CTC): The Central County Taxi Pilot 
Program seeks to provide same-day taxi service to city-based program registrants in the 
cities of Hayward and San Leandro 

o Paratransit staff, Alameda CTC staff, the contractor, and the Paratransit 
Coordination staff hold regular meetings to review complaints and operational 
procedures, and to ensure all parties involved understand project expectations. 

o Alameda CTC awarded $134,400 in Measure B funds and authorized a project 
end date to June 2014. 
 

5. Volunteer Drivers Program (Senior Helpline Services): The Project sponsor will 
develop and provide coordination, outreach, management, oversight, and mileage 
reimbursement for a volunteer-based driver program to provide one-on-one, door-
through-door, escorted transportation for ambulatory seniors who are unable to utilize 
other modes of transportation. 

o Alameda CTC awarded $100,000 in Measure B funds and authorized a project 
end date to October 2013. 

 
6. Countywide Mobility Management Program Pilot (Alameda CTC): The Project 

sponsor will coordinate elements and resources already present in Alameda County 
related to travel training, and information and referral to move towards a more full-
fledged mobility management approach in Alameda County.   

o The Project Sponsor assigned mobility management tasks to the current County 
Paratransit Coordinator and to Education and Outreach Coordinator.   
 

7. Minimum Level of Service (City of Oakland): Minimum Service Level (MSL) grants 
are designated to help City-based programs meet Minimum Service Levels. The City of 
Oakland is reimbursed for approved expenses after the end of the Fiscal Year. 

o The City of Oakland receives up to $75,000 to fulfill their MSL requirements.  
o After FY 12/13 MSLs funds will be replaced by Implementation Guideline 

Assistance funds.  
 

8. Minimum Level of Service (City of San Leandro): Minimum Service Level (MSL) 
grants are designated to help City-based programs meet Minimum Service Levels. The 
City of San Leandro is reimbursed for approved expenses after the end of the Fiscal Year. 

o The City of San Leandro receives up to $25,000 to fulfill their MSL requirements.  
o After FY 12/13 MSLs funds will be replaced by Implementation Guideline 

Assistance funds.  
 

Page 67



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 68



Transit Oriented Development Grant Program  
 
 

Transit Oriented Development Grant Program 
Status Update on Active Projects 

 
The active projects in this program appear below according to grant cycle. The Project Sponsor 
for each project is in parentheses. 
 
Cycle 2 Transit Oriented Development Grant Projects 
 

1. West Oakland Seventh Street Transit Village Streetscape (City of Oakland): This 
transit village streetscape project improves bicycle and pedestrian access to the West 
Oakland BART Station.  

o Phases I and II, which include construction on the south side and median, are 
complete. 

o Phase III, northside construction is near completion.   
o An amendment request is pending to extend this project to October 2013. 
 

Mid-Cycle Transit Oriented Development Grant Projects 
 

1. Technical Assistance Program - FY 2009-10 Congestion Management Agency 
Program  (Alameda CTC): The Transit Oriented Development Technical Assistance 
Program (TOD-TAP) Program was created in 2005 to provide jurisdictions technical 
assistance to complete studies and plans in a variety of topics that help advance Transit 
Oriented Development projects..  

o The TAP provides a pool of on-call consultants with technical expertise to 
overcome barriers to advancing TODs in Alameda County. 
 

2. Technical Assistance Program - FY 2011-12 Congestion Management Agency 
Program  (Alameda CTC): The TOD-TAP Program continues to provide jurisdictions 
technical support for Transit Oriented Development related projects and studies.  

o Of the several studies conducted through the TOD-TAP program, the City of 
Oakland’s Priority Development Area study has yet to be completed. 

 
 

Attachment E

Page 69



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 70



1

Annual Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2012J 3 ,

Financial Audit
 Financial statements being presented are for the Fiscal Year 

E d d J       d i l d   i i  f  b h  h  ACCMA Ended June 30, 2012, and include activity for both the ACCMA 
and ACTIA.

 Financial statements are the responsibility of management.
 Our responsibility is to express an opinion of the financial 

statements based on our audit.
 We plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are fairly stated.
 An Audit includes: An Audit includes: 

 Examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.

 Assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management.

 Evaluating overall financial statement presentation.

CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 06

Page 71



12/28/2012

2

Financial Audit 
Continued

 Audits are performed in conformance with Generally p y
Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) which requires the 
auditor:
 adequately plan the work and properly supervise assistants,

 obtain a sufficient understanding of the entity and its 
environment, including its internal control, to assess the risk 
of material misstatement of the financial statements whether 
due to error or fraud, and to design the nature, timing, and , g , g,
extent of further audit procedures, and

 obtain sufficient, appropriate audit evidence by performing 
audit procedures, on a test basis, to afford a reasonable 
assurance for an opinion regarding the financial statements 
under an audit.

CWC Audit Concerns Addressed
 As part of the audit procedures VTD:

t t d d t  f   ll    f th  Al d  CTC  i     i t   f t ti   tested data from all areas of the Alameda CTC using a variety of testing 
strategies, including analytical procedures, confirmations of account 
balances and search for unrecorded liabilities, 

 consulted with prior audit firms, but did not learn of any concerns over 
Measure B funds,

 confirmed that ACTIA transactions are accounted for separately from all 
other funds in the financial system,

 confirmed the amounts that were reported on the limitation calculations 
for both the 4.5% administration and the 1% salary and benefit limitations 
and confirmed compliance with those requirements, p q

 reviewed the methodology of accounting for hours on timecards, traced 
payroll charges back to specific timecards to verify the allocation of time in 
payroll from the timecards and confirmed supervisory approval (there were 
no unusual trends in the allocation of time detected), and

 determined general fund charges to be higher risk and tested to ensure 
allocations of administrative expenses to the ACTIA general fund were 
calculated reasonably and accurately and were properly allocated.

Page 72



12/28/2012

3

Required Communications
 We are required to communicate significant We are required to communicate significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control 
to the CWC.  

 We noted no significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses in internal controls.

 We had no adjustments to the financial statements.

d d ff l h f f We encountered no difficulties in the performance of 
the audit.  

Alameda CTC Financial Highlights
Comparative information from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 

 d i d f   h   bi d d   f ACTIA  d  h  ACCMA  was derived from the combined data of ACTIA and the ACCMA. 
 Total net asset were $241.2 million at June 30, 2012, a decrease of $22.1 million or 8.4 

percent from the prior fiscal year end primarily related to sales tax related capital project 
expenditures.

 Total assets decreased by $34.0 million or 9.3 percent from $365.7 million to $331.7 
million as of June 30, 2012 compared to June 30, 2011.  Cash and investments comprised 
$283.2 million or 85.4 percent of the total assets as of June 30, 2012.

 Revenues totaled $170.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  This was an 
increase of $7.6 million or 4.7 percent over the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  Sales tax 
revenues comprised $112.6 million or 66.1 percent of the total revenues for the year.

 Total liabilities decreased by $11 9 million or 11 6 percent from $102 4 million to $90 5  Total liabilities decreased by $11.9 million or 11.6 percent from $102.4 million to $90.5 
million as of June 30, 2012 compared to June 30, 2011.  

 Expenses totaled $192.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  This was a 
decrease of $19.0 million from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 mostly related to sales 
tax capital project expenditures.  

Page 73



12/28/2012

4

Alameda CTC
Statement of Net Asset
June 30, 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

Assets:
Cash and Investments $283,246
Receivables 44,078
Land Held for Resale 4,068
Capital Assets, net 111
Other assets 213

Total Assets 331,716

Liabilities:
Payables 64,075
Deferred Revenue 26,420
Net OPEB Obligation 28

Total Liabilities 90 523Total Liabilities 90,523

Net Assets:
Investment in Capital Assets 111
Restricted  218,026
Unrestricted 23,056

Total Net Asset $241,193

ACTIA Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

Special 
General Revenue Capital Total

Assets:
Cash and Investments $12,560 $  9,954 $86,062 $108,576
Receivables 826  10,528 7,390 18,744
Due from ACTA 5,018 0 0 5,018
Other assets 162 0 0 162

Total Assets $18,566 $20,482 $93,452 $132,500   

Liabilities:
Payables $     541 $11,230 $34,705 $  46,476Payables $     541 $11,230 $34,705 $  46,476

Total Liabilities $     541  $11,230 $34,705 $  46,476

Fund Balance:
Restricted  0 9,252 58,747 67,999
Unassigned 18,025 0 0 18,025

Total Fund Balance $18,025 $  9,252 $58,747 $  86,024

Page 74



12/28/2012

5

Alameda CTC
Statement of Activities
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 (in thousands of dollars)

Governmental ActivitiesGovernmental Activities
Program Revenues

Operating Revenues $22,635
Capital Revenues 32,521

Total Program Revenues 55,156
Expenses

Administration 11,339
Transportation Improvements 135,068
Congestion Management 46,101

Total Expenses 192,508

Total Governmental Activities                                (137,352)
General Revenues 115,252

Change in Net Assets (22,100)
Net Assets – Beginning 263,293
Net Assets – Ending $241,193

ACTIA Funds
Revenues, Expenditures & Change in Fund Balances

June 30, 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

Special p
General Revenue Capital Total

Revenues:
Sales Tax $  5,065 $64,394 $43,109 $112,568
Project Revenue 0 20  10,047 10,067
Investment Income 49 41 181 271
Other  65 0 294 359

Total Assets $  5,179 $64,455 $53,631 $123,265   

Expenditures:
Administrative $  3,158 $     934 $      57 $    4,149
Highways and Streets 0 0 16,740 16,740

bl  Public Transit 0 34,541 57,441 91,982
Local Transportation 0 29,655 7,122 36,777

Total Liabilities $  3,158 $65,130 $81,360 $149,648

Net Change in Fund Balance 2,021 (675) (27,729) (26,383)
Fund Balance ‐ Beginning 16,004 9,927 86,476 112,407
Fund Balance ‐ Ending $18,025 $  9,252 $58,747 $ 86,024

Page 75



12/28/2012

6

Alameda CTC 
Revenues & Expenses

R Expenses

19.1%

66.1%

Revenues

70.2%
23.9%

Expenses

13.3%

0.8%

0.5%0.2%

Operating Grants and 
Contributions

Capital Grants and 
Contributions

Sales Taxes

Member Agency 
Contributions

Investment Income

5.9%
Administration

Transportation 
Improvements

Congestion 
Management

ACTIA 
Revenues & Expenses

99.4%

Revenues

61.4%

24.6%

Expenses

0.1%

0.2%

0.3%

Grants and 
Contribution
s

Sales Taxes

Investment 
Income

2.8%11.2%

Administration

Highways and 
Streets
Public Transit

Local 
Transportation

Page 76



12/28/2012

7

Alameda CTC Auditor Opinion
Alameda CTC received what is referred to as unqualified q
or clean audit opinion for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2012.

“In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Commission  as of June 30 2012  and information of the Commission, as of June 30, 2012, and 
the respective changes in financial position, thereof and 
for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.” 

Limitations Calculations
(in thousands of dollars)

Revenues:
l dNet Sales Tax Proceeds $112,568

Investments & other Income 10,697
Total Funds Generated $123,265

Expenditures:
Gross Salaries & Benefits $    1,011
Other Admin Costs 2,147

Total Admin Costs $    3,158    

Salaries & Benefits to Sales Tax Ratio 0.899%
Total Admin Costs to Sales Tax Ratio 2.806%
Salaries & Benefits to Funds Generated 0.821%

Page 77



12/28/2012

8

Alameda CTC
June 30, 2012

Questions?

Page 78



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 06A 

 
Memorandum 

 

DATE:  December 18, 2012       

 

TO:   Finance and Administration Committee  

 

FROM:   Patricia M. Reavey, Director of Finance 

    

SUBJECT: Approval of the Alameda CTC Draft Audited Annual Financial Report 

and the ACTIA Limitations Worksheet for the Fiscal Year Ended June 

30, 2012 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve the attached Alameda County Transportation 

Commission’s (Alameda CTC) first consolidated draft Audited Annual Financial Report and the 

ACTIA Limitations Worksheet for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 as audited by the certified 

public accounting firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP and all additional required reports. 

  

The Alameda CTC Draft Audited Annual Financial Report and the ACTIA Limitations Worksheet 

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and additional required reports were reviewed in detail in a 

joint committee meeting of the Alameda CTC’s audit committee and the audit sub-committee of the 

Citizens Watchdog Committee on December 6, 2012. 

 

Summary 

Pursuant to the Joint Powers Agreement of the Alameda County Transportation Commission, 

California Public Utilities Code Section 180105, the Joint Powers Agreement of the Alameda 

County Congestion Management Program and the California Government Code Section 6505, an 

independent audit was conducted for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 by Vavrinek, Trine, Day & 

Co., LLP.  While all financial statements are the responsibility of management, the auditor’s 

responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on their audit.  As 

demonstrated in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page two (2) of the Draft Audited Annual 

Financial Report, the Alameda CTC’s auditors have reported what is considered to be an unqualified 

or clean audit. 

 

“In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 

respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, 

and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Commission, as of June 30, 2012, 

and the respective changes in financial position, thereof and for the year then ended in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America.”  

Page 79



 

Financial Highlights: 

 

In the following financial highlights, the comparative information from the fiscal year ended June 

30, 2011 was derived from the combined audited financial data of ACTIA and the ACCMA.  

 

 Total net asset were $241.2 million at June 30, 2012, a decrease of $22.1 million or 8.4 percent from 

the prior fiscal year end primarily related to sales tax related capital project expenditures. 

 

 Total assets decreased by $34.0 million or 9.3 percent from $365.7 million to $331.7 million as of 

June 30, 2012 compared to June 30, 2011.  Cash and investments comprised $283.2 million or 85.4 

percent of the total assets as of June 30, 2012. 

 

 Revenues totaled $170.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  This was an increase of $7.6 

million or 4.7 percent over the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  Sales tax revenues comprised $112.6 

million or 66.1 percent of the total revenues for the year. 

 

 Total liabilities decreased by $11.9 million or 11.6 percent from $102.4 million to $90.5 million as of 

June 30, 2012 compared to June 30, 2011.   

 

 Expenses totaled $192.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  This was a decrease of $19.0 

million from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 mostly related to sales tax capital project 

expenditures.   

 

Discussion   

As part of the audit process, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP considered Alameda CTC’s internal 

controls over financial reporting in order to design their audit procedures.  They have not expressed 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Alameda CTC’s internal controls; however Vavrinek, Trine, 

Day & Co., LLP’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 

other Matters states that they did not identify any deficiencies in internal controls over financial 

reporting that they consider to be a material weakness.   

 

In addition, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP audited the calculation of the limitation ratios required 

by the Transportation Expenditure Plan which requires that the total cost for salaries and benefits for 

administrative employees not exceed 1.00 percent of sales tax revenues and expenditures for 

administration, in total, do not exceed 4.50 percent of sales tax revenues.  The ratios for the fiscal 

year ended June 30, 2012 are 0.90 percent for salaries and benefits as a percent of sales tax revenues 

and 2.81 percent for total administration costs as a percent of sales tax revenues which are in 

compliance with the requirements set forth in the Transportation Expenditure Plan.  In order to make 

this report more user friendly, references have been included to show where all of the amounts 

included in the limitation calculations can be cross referenced with the audited financial data in the 

Draft Audited Annual Financial Report. 

 

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP also performed a Single Audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 

2012.  Per the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, a single audit is required 

when a grantee spends $500,000 or more in Federal funds in the fiscal year to provide assurance to 

the federal government as to the management and use of these funds.  Alameda CTC’s federal 

expenditures were well over the threshold at $3.2 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

therefore a Single Audit was required.  As demonstrated in the Independent Auditor’s Report on   

Page 80



page 59 of the Draft Audited Annual Financial Report, the Alameda CTC’s auditors have reported 

the following:   

 

“In our opinion, the Commission complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal 

program for the year ended June 30, 2012.” 

 

The Alameda CTC’s first consolidated annual report has been designed to provide all required 

consolidated financial information as well as detailed financial information by function so that 

interested parties can look at the agency as a whole or at a more detailed functional level.  For 

example, for the benefit of the Citizen’s Watchdog Committee whose purview consists of ACTIA 

activity only, all ACTIA funds have been broken out in a separate column in the fund financial 

statements beginning on page 19 of the Draft Audited Annual Financial Report except the General 

Fund.  There can only be one general fund; however the Alameda CTC’s financial system was 

designed to distinguish costs related to the administration of ACCMA projects and programs from 

that of ACTIA or even Alameda County Transportation Authority projects.  Therefore a breakout of 

general fund financial information also has been provided as supplemental information beginning on 

page 49 of the Draft Audited Annual Financial Report.  Also in the supplemental information 

section, we have provided a breakout of the ACTIA Special Revenue Fund financial information by 

sub-fund including Express Bus, Bike and Pedestrian, Passthrough, Transit Oriented Development 

and Paratransit.  For the benefit of those interested in the non-major governmental funds which 

generally are funds that have less than 10 percent of the total governmental funds’ assets, liabilities, 

revenues or expenditures, we have provided a breakout of this column also as supplemental 

information beginning on page 51 which includes the financial information related to the Exchange 

Fund, Transportation for Clean Air Fund and the Vehicle Registration Fee Fund. 

 

Staff has worked closely with the audit team to develop a user friendly and informative consolidated 

annual financial report that can clearly portray the financial information of the agency as a whole.  It 

took a significant effort to consolidate and create this new report from scratch in this first year.  Staff 

plans to consistently improve on the financial information that is provided.  For fiscal year 2012-13, 

staff is planning to present the annual financial results in the form of a Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report (CAFR), which will require additional sections such as a transmittal letter and a 

statistical section, and submit the CAFR to the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) 

for review and hopefully an award for excellence in financial reporting. 

 

Attachments  
Attachment A: Alameda County Transportation Commission Draft Audited Annual Financial 

Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Attachment B: ACTIA Limitations Worksheet for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Page 81



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 82



Attachment A

Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 150



 

 

 

1 

, 

 

 

 

 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 
Board of Directors  

Alameda County Transportation Commission 

Oakland, California 

 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Alameda County Transportation 

Commission (the Commission) as of and for year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report 

thereon dated December XX, 2012. We have also audited the accompanying Commission’s 

Limitations Worksheet (the Worksheet) for the year ended June 30, 2012. The Worksheet is the 

responsibility of the Commission’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

the Worksheet based on our audit. 

 

We conducted our audit of the Worksheet in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Worksheet is free of material 

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the Worksheet. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 

the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall worksheet 

presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

 

In our opinion, the Worksheet referred to above, presents fairly, in all material respects, the 

administrative cost and related percentages of the Commission for the year ended June 30, 2012, 

in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

 
Palo Alto, California 

December XX, 2011 

Attachment B

Page 151



 

2 

Reference to For the

the Financial year ending

Statements June 30, 2012

Revenues

Net Sales Tax Proceeds Note 1 112,568,093$  

Investments & Other Income - Net of Related Costs Note 2 10,697,407      

       Funds Generated 123,265,500$  

Expenditures

Gross Salaries and Benefits 1,011,475$      

Other Administration Costs 2,146,888        

       Total Administration Costs Note 3 3,158,363$      

Transportation Expenditure Plan Requirements

Compliance on Salary and Benefits Cost Limitation (Maximum Allowed is 1%)

Ratio of Gross Salaries and Benefits to Net Sales Tax Revenues 0.8985%

Compliance on Administration Costs Limitation (Maximum Allowed is 4.5%)

Ratio of Total Administration Costs to Net Sales Tax Proceeds 2.8057%

Public Utilities Commission 180109 Requirement

Compliance on Salary and Benefits Cost Limitation (Maximum Allowed is 1%)

Ratio of Gross Salaries and Benefits to Funds Generated 0.8206%

20,343$           

41,226             

10,047,094      

180,943           

294,291           

48,851             

64,659             

10,697,407$    

Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority

Limitations Worksheet

Basis for Salary and Benefits Limitation and the Administrative Cost Limitation

2: Amount was derived from the following:

Project revenue on the ACTIA Special Revenue Fund on page 22.

Investment income on the ACTIA Special Revenue Fund on page 22.

1: Amount was derived from sales tax revenue reported on page 23.

3: Amount was derived from the total expenditures reported on the ACTIA subfund of the

    General Fund on page 50.

Project revenue on the ACTIA Capital Projects Fund on page 22.

Investment income on the ACTIA Capital Projects Fund on page 22.

Other income on the ACTIA Capital Projects Fund on page 22.

Investment income on the ACTIA subfund of General Fund on page 50.

Other income on the ACTIA subfund of General Fund on page 50.

 

Page 152



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 06A1 

 
Joint Commission Audit Committee and Citizens Watchdog Committee Audit 

Subcommittee Meeting Notes 
Thursday December 6, 2012, 11 a.m., 1333 Broadway, Suite 220, Oakland 

 
On December 6, 2012, the following Commission members, CWC members, and staff met with 
Alameda CTC’s independent auditor to review the Alameda CTC draft Annual Financial Report 
for June 30, 2012 and the limitations worksheet for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 
 
Attendees: Angie Ayers, Public Meetings Coordinator; Mayor John Chiang, Commissioner; 
Arthur Dao, Alameda CTC Executive Director; Mayor Mark Green, Commissioner; Ahmad 
Gharaibeh, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP (VTD) Partner; Supervisor Scott Haggerty, 
Commissioner; Mike Dubinsky, CWC Member; Jim Haussener, CWC Member; James Paxson, 
CWC Member; Patricia Reavey, Alameda CTC Director of Finance; and Harriette Saunders, CWC 
Member 
 
Mayor Mark Green began the meeting with introductions and turned the meeting over to the 
VTD Auditor Ahmad Gharaibeh. Ahmad stated that the VTD auditors found no material 
weaknesses or items of administrative concern, and VTD issued a “clean” or “unqualified” 
opinion, meaning that the information stated in the financial statements is accurate in all 
material respects.  
 
Ahmad reviewed the Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ending on June30, 2012 and the 
limitations worksheet. He noted that this is the first consolidated Alameda CTC audit since the 
merger of Alameda County Congested Management Agency (ACCMA) and Alameda County 
Transportation Improvement Authority (ACTIA). Ahmad explained the set up of the financial 
statements, and he mentioned that VTD worked with Alameda CTC to determine the best 
layout for reporting. He also noted that the financial statements are laid out according to the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards. Ahmad stated that even though 
the financial statements are presented on a consolidated basis, VTD was able to split all of the 
ACTIA funds out separately in their own column in the fund financial statements except for the 
General Fund, because there can only be one General Fund according to GASB standards.  In 
order to provide the break out of ACTIA activity in the General Fund, a schedule was added to 
the supplemental information section which segregates ACCMA administrative costs from 
ACTIA administrative costs in the General Fund.  
 
Ahmad stated that in addition to the financial statements being prepared according to GASB 
standards, they set the initial groundwork for the Alameda CTC to apply for the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) award of excellence in government finance in future years. 

Page 153



Joint Commission/CWC Audit Committee December 6, 2012 Meeting Notes 2 

 

 
Overall, both the Commission and CWC audit committees were pleased with the audit. The 
CWC members were mostly concerned with how the auditors would easily break out the 
Measure B financial activity and/or how the CWC would easily identify the Measure B financial 
activity. 
 
Questions from the members: 

1. Has Alameda CTC ever applied for the GFOA award of excellence in government 
finance? 
 
Staff said no. This is the first consolidated financial reporting done by Alameda CTC, and 
the infrastructure is now in place to apply for this award. Staff stated that Alameda CTC 
plans to apply for the GFOA award next year. 
 

2. Did VTD look to ensure the compliance with U.S. Department of Labor Occupational 
Safety & Health Administration (OSHA) regulations? 
 
Ahmad stated that VTD would be required to report on areas of federal compliance; 
however, VTD did not look for compliance of OSHA regulations. He stated that if the 
auditor saw something wrong during the audit, the auditor would report it. 
 

3. Will the balance sheet show a subtotal for all ACTIA funds? 
 
Staff said no, because to do that, the financial statement would not be GASB-compliant. 
The CWC members wanted to know how to determine the Measure B totals including 
the administrative costs. Staff specified which columns in the fund financial statements 
and the supplemental information CWC members can add to overall Measure B financial 
activity. 
 
The CWC members requested staff to modify the limitations worksheet to guide the 
members back to the appropriate page on the financial report. Staff agreed to do this, 
because the limitations worksheet does not need to be GASB-compliant. 
 

4. How does rent get divided between the two subgroups within the organization? 
 
Staff said rent is divided based on the amount of space people use to work for ACTIA.  
A general split was created to handle things such as rent and other administrative-type 
functions. The split formula is: 50 percent charged to ACCMA, 37.5 percent charged to 
ACTIA, and 12.5 percent charged to ACTA. Staff noted that a general formula was 
created to perform a fair split that works best for most administrative-type functions 
that share costs between the agencies. 
 

  

Page 154



Joint Commission/CWC Audit Committee December 6, 2012 Meeting Notes 3 

 

5. Did VTD test the formula used for the split? 
 
Ahmad said yes, VTD tested the split formula. VTD looked at the allocation of the rent 
and was satisfied. 

 
6. Were there additional concerns found by VTD, similar to the three internal control 

recommendations that VTD suggested that Alameda CTC implement in the prior eight 
month audit, which covered the time period up to closure of ACTIA, through 
February 29, 2012? 
 
Ahmad said there weren’t any new concerns found. Staff explained that the auditors 
made recommendations to strengthen the internal controls when they came for interim 
audit work in May of 2012. Staff recapped the three internal control suggestions as 
follows:  

 Changing the requirement on ACCMA special-revenue-fund bank accounts with 
preprinted check stock to require two signatures on all checks, not just checks 
over $50,000. 

o The signature cards were changed with the bank requiring two signatures 
on all checks, and the statement “Two authorized signatures required” 
now appears below the signature line on all preprinted checks. 

 Requiring two employees to authorize a new hire in the payroll system. 
o The payroll system used by the agency previously only required one 

authorized employee to set up a newly hired employee. Staff worked 
with ADP to implement the requirement for two authorizations before 
allowing a new employee to be set up in the payroll system. 

 Restricting financial system access for the accounting staff person who runs 
checks to make sure that employee does not have access to set up or change 
vendors. 

o Staff has limited access to the financial database to only the level of 
access employees need to do their jobs and has ensured that the 
accountant who runs checks does not have access to set up or change 
vendors. 
 

Ahmad stated that the objective of the changes was related to information technology, 
and the people who control the asset should not be the people who control the checks. 
The goal is to mitigate the chance of embezzlement. 
 

7. Who authorizes the Accounts Payable person to enter a new vendor?  
 
Patricia Reavey makes the authorization. Staff explained the process of the finance 
department authorizing payments, entering new vendors, etc. 
 

Page 155



Joint Commission/CWC Audit Committee December 6, 2012 Meeting Notes 4 

 

8. Is there an affirmation within the audit that states that ACTIA money is only in the three 
columns identified on page 19 of the financial report? If not, is there a GASB-compliant 
statement that states that? 
 
Ahmad referred the committee to page 29 for a description of the funds. On page 19, 
there are two columns for ACTIA funds, and page 49 shows the ACTIA general fund. 
 

9. A member asked if the reference to Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority on 
page 7 has reference to a 111 Broadway shuttle.  
 
Staff will confirm if the statement is correct and will correct the draft financial report, if 
necessary. 

 
Staff stated that the documents being reviewed are drafts and will go to the Finance and 
Administration Committee, and CWC on January 14, 2012. Patricia stated that members can 
email questions to her if attendees have additional concerns. 
 
Patricia Reavey agreed to do the following: 

 Modify the limitations worksheet to guide the members to the financial report for the 
correct ACTIA Measure B numbers. 

Page 156



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 07 

 
 

Citizens Watchdog Committee 
Issues Identification Process 

 
Summary 
This issues identification process outlines the responsibilities of the Citizens Watchdog 
Committee (CWC) and the process to bring and address issues of concern to the CWC. 
 
CWC Responsibilities 
The Citizen Watchdog Committee is charged with the following as written in the 
Expenditure Plan approved by voters in November 2000: 
 
“This committee will report directly to the public and will be charged with reviewing all 
expenditures of the Agency [Alameda County Transportation Commission 
(Alameda CTC)].” The responsibilities of the committee are to:  
 

 Hold public hearings and issue reports, on at least an annual basis, to inform 
Alameda County residents how the funds are being spent. The hearings are open 
to the public and must be held in compliance with the Brown Act, California’s 
open meeting law, with well-publicized information announcing the hearings 
posted in advance. 

 Have full access to the Commission’s independent auditor and authority to 
request and review specific information and to comment on the auditor’s 
reports. 

 Publish an annual report and any comments concerning the Commission’s audit 
in the local newspapers. In addition, copies of these documents must be made 
available to the public at large. 

 
The Commission also allows the CWC to fulfill its mission by requesting information 
directly from Measure B fund recipients. 
 
Review Process 
The goals for any review of projects and programs by the CWC are to report to the 
public and make recommendations to the Alameda CTC staff and Board. To this end, 
the tasks for the CWC to focus on: 1) proper expenditure of Measure B funds; 2) the 
timely delivery of projects per contract agreements and the Expenditure Plan; and  
3) adherence to the projects or programs as defined in the voter-approved 
Expenditure Plan. 

Page 157



CWC Issues Identification Process 

 
During the review process, CWC members will use the following procedures: 
 

1. Issues that are raised by CWC members regarding financial and contract 
compliance issues may be legitimate topics to pursue through the request of a 
project or program sponsor to appear before the CWC. 

2. Before calling on a sponsor to appear, CWC members must submit a “CWC Issues 
Form” (attached) to the CWC chair or vice-chair for placement on the agenda at 
the next CWC meeting. 

3. CWC members may also submit CWC Issues Forms during a meeting, which the 
chair will take into consideration, and at his or her discretion, address at that 
particular meeting.  

4. The full CWC must approve issues identified in a CWC Issues Form to address in 
further detail by an affirmative vote. 

5. CWC members may form an ad-hoc subcommittee to draft CWC questions that 
need answers from the project/program sponsors and to receive a presentation 
from a project or program sponsor specifically addressing the issues, questions, 
or concerns raised by the CWC. 

6. The subcommittee should consider the resources listed below, either in 
preparation for the review meeting, or for examination during the meeting.  

 
The reviews are expected to be organized, thorough and efficient, and may result in a 
clear recommendation for further action, if needed. 
 
Resources for CWC (not inclusive) 

 Adopted Measure B Expenditure Plan (blue book) 
 Up-to-date list of project/program sponsors contacts 
 Alameda CTC staff responsible for oversight of the project/program 
 Information about public hearings, recent discussions, or news clippings 

provided by Alameda CTC staff to the CWC by mail or at meetings 
 Other Alameda CTC community advisory committees (for example, the Citizens 

Advisory Committee, Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee, or Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Advisory Committee chair-persons may be called on to address 
an issue.) 

 Alameda CTC Auditor (for example, to request, “Are these figures 
reasonable/reliable?”) 

 Alameda CTC Executive Director (for example, to request “Is this the intention of 
the Expenditure Plan?”) 

 Alameda CTC Attorney (for example, to determine, “Is this a legal issue?”) 

Page 158



Attachment A 
CITIZENS WATCHDOG COMMITTEE ISSUES FORM 

 
Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) 

1333 Broadway, Suite 300 
Oakland, California 94612 

Voice: 510-893-3347 Fax: 510-893-6489 
 

 
The CWC is required to review all Measure B expenditures.  This form allows formal 
documentation of potential issues of concern regarding expenditure of Measure B funds.  A 
concern should only be submitted to the CWC if an issue is directly related to the potential 
misuse of Measure B funds or non-compliance with Alameda CTC agreements or the 
Expenditure Plan approved by voters.  This form may be used only by acting CWC members. 
 
Date:      
 
Name:             
Email Address:           
 
Governmental Agency of Concern (Include name of agency and all individuals) 
            
            
             
 
Agency’s Phone Number:          
Agency’s Address:           
City       Zip Code:      
 
Which one of the following Measure B expenditures is this concern related to:   
(Please check one) 
  Capital Project       Program        Program Grant       Administration       
 
Please explain the nature of your concern and how you became aware of it providing as 
much detail as you can, including the name of the project or program, dates, times, and 
places where the issues you are raising took place. (Use additional sheets of paper if 
necessary) 
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
             

Page 159



 
 

PROCESS -            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
             
 
 
PROTECTION -           
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
             
 
 
Action Taken - Please list other parties or agencies you have contacted in an attempt to more 
fully understand this issue and any actions you yourself have taken. 
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
             
 

Page 160



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 08A 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: December 14, 2012 
 
To: Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 
 
From: Art Dao, Executive Director 
 Patricia M. Reavey, Director of Finance 
 
Subject: General Fund Balance 
 
Recommendation 
This item is for information only. No action is requested. 
 
Summary 
This staff report was prepared in response to the question included in the attached issues form 
submitted by Mr. James Haussener on November 19, 2012.  Mr. Haussener has requested 
information on how the Alameda CTC plans to spend down the ACTIA General Fund’s fund 
balance.  The General Fund’s fund balance is comprised of unused administrative funds that 
have been accumulated since the ACTIA Measure B sales tax program started collecting sales 
tax revenues in 2002.  This accumulation of the administrative fund balance is the result of the 
agency’s ability to manage and administer the sales tax program efficiently and effectively over 
the years.  While the TEP allows up to 4.5 percent of sales tax collected to be spent on 
administrative costs, each year that administrative costs were less than the 4.5 percent there 
was an increase to the fund balance.   

 
Discussion   
The General Fund fund balance will be programmed as follows: 
 

 A portion of these funds have been designated as the funding source to be utilized for one 
time administrative cost such as election costs for a new transportation measure.  Paying 
for election costs for a new measure out of these funds would not harm any of the projects 
or programs within the TEP, would help transportation within Alameda County, is permitted 
through Measure B and has been approved by the Commission. 
 

 The remaining fund balance has been designated as the first source of borrowing for the 
ACTIA capital program before going to external sources for financing in order to save on 
borrowing costs for the ACTIA capital program.  Based on the most recent cash flow 

Page 161



estimates, it is expected that ACTIA’s capital program will require some sort of external 
financing within the next year.  Any amount borrowed by the ACTIA capital program would 
be paid back to the General Fund once funding from the external financing is realized. 

 

 Finally in order to address risk management, staff believes it would be prudent to develop a 
fund balance policy. While it is in line with best practices suggested by the Government 
Finance Officers’ Association to maintain a fund balance policy, ACTIA currently doesn’t 
have a policy in place.  This policy is necessary because many of ACTIA’s capital projects that 
are directly managed by the agency and delivered in partnership with Caltrans and other 
transportation agencies inherently carry project risks.  It is prudent and a best practice to 
have a contingency fund source to protect the agency from these risks.  ACTIA doesn’t have 
a funding source set aside for potential project risk costs as they are not addressed in the 
TEP.  This policy would allow the fund balance to be used to address project risks and would 
help protect ACTIA in any unforeseen circumstance that may become necessary.  The fund 
balance policy should be maintained throughout the life of the measure to ensure ACTIA is 
able to deliver all of the programs and projects approved in the TEP throughout the life of 
the measure. 

 
Attachments  
Attachment 08A1: Issues Form Submitted by Mr. James Haussener November 19, 2012 
 

Page 162



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 08A1

Page 163



Page 164



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 08A2 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: January 7, 2013 
 
To: Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 
 
From: Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Policy, Public Affairs and Legislation 
 
Subject: CWC 10th Annual Report to the Public Cost Benefit Analysis 
 
Recommendation 
This item is for information only. No action is requested at this time. 
 
Summary 
In response to the CWC chair’s request, Alameda CTC staff gathered data and prepared a cost 
benefit analysis of the print and online advertisements and outreach for the Citizens Watchdog 
Committee’s 10th Annual Report to the Public. Key findings include the total actual costs of this 
effort and the resulting benefits, the estimated return on investment for various forms of 
outreach, and recommendations to increase the public’s awareness of the CWC’s activities 
through the annual report, and decrease costs. 
 
Print Media Outreach 
Print advertising gives readers throughout the Bay Area an opportunity to learn more about 
CWC activities and the progress on valuable transportation programs and projects. 
Alameda CTC produced seven layout versions of its report to fit the ad specifications in the 
publications, and translated one ad from English to Spanish to print in one publication.  
 
Cost per reader for print ads: An estimated 2.2 million people read the 24 Bay Area publications 
in which Alameda CTC placed print advertisements. The total cost to design, translate, and 
place the ads was $25,512. The estimated cost per reader was approximately 1.2 cents (see 
Attachment A). 
 
In addition, Alameda CTC placed a legal notice in 15 Bay Area publications about the public 
hearing for the annual report to the public. 
 
Cost per reader for the legal notice: An estimated 761,000 people read the paper. The total cost 
to design, translate, and place the ads was $543. The only translation needed for one 

Page 165



CWC 10th Annual Report to the Public Cost Benefit Analysis 1/7/13 

  Page 2 

newspaper was provided free of charge. The estimated cost per reader was approximately 
0.07 cent (see Attachment B). 
 
Recommendations: 

 For people in the Bay Area who read the newspaper, running the ads in 24 Bay Area 
publications ensures we reach a large number of people who would be interested in the 
report. Therefore, staff recommends continuing to place and run print advertisements. 
To save costs, one consideration would be to revisit the list of publications to see if any 
of the target audiences overlap or are not specifically our target, and reduce the 
number of ads. For example, advertising in the San Francisco Chronicle and San 
Francisco Business Times reaches a much broader target audience than Alameda County 
residents. Yet Alameda CTC could still reach this broad audience through the online ads 
for both of these publications. Eliminating the print ads would save approximately 
$6,525.  

 Even if the number of publications remains high for the next report, the print ads serve 
an additional purpose: They introduce people to the relatively new agency, 
Alameda CTC and, for those who have already heard of the agency, reinforce 
information about how local sales tax dollars are being spent. 

 
Outreach through Events, Email, and Other Publications 
In addition to distributing the full 8-page printed report, Alameda CTC also got the word out 
about CWC activities and Alameda CTC transportation programs and projects by developing a 
condensed version of the report, a two-page flyer, translating the flyer into Chinese and 
Spanish, and distributing the flyers. Alameda CTC handed out the full report to Commissioners 
and Alameda CTC community advisory committee members and mailed the full report to 
42 libraries. Staff also distributed the full report and flyers at 97 Alameda business and outreach 
events.  
 
The Alameda CTC emailed the three versions of the flyer to 335 individuals/organizations, 
including chambers of commerce and community organizations, and featured the full report in 
other publications such as the Executive Director’s Monthly Report (both print and online 
versions) and in Alameda CTC Reports, a bi-monthly print and electronic newsletter. 
 
Cost per reader for print report and flyer: The bulk of outreach expenses fell into this category. 
An estimated 2,423 people read the report or flyer, based on distribution to 992 people. The 
total cost to design, translate, print, and mail the 8-page report and 2-page flyer was $7,207.87. 
The estimated cost per reader was approximately $2.97 (see Attachment B). 
 
Recommendations: 

 Since the CWC members decided to reduce the original 2012 design from 12 pages to 8 
pages and to change the focus of the content, the design costs were considerable 
($3,240) in 2012. Staff recommends that CWC members fully agree on content prior to 
any design efforts. This would reduce costs associated with redesign of the report. 

Page 166



CWC 10th Annual Report to the Public Cost Benefit Analysis 1/7/13 

  Page 3 

 Since there were quite a few leftover flyers, to reduce costs, staff recommends printing 
fewer flyers next year (1,000 versus 2,000), or Alameda CTC could consider including the 
flyers in other mailings such as to its certified businesses. 

 Staff could forward an email with the three flyers as attachments to CWC members, 
who could pass along the email to other organizations.  

 
Online Media Outreach 
As the media has moved toward producing online versions of many publications, Alameda CTC 
has also begun to place more advertisements in these online publications to reach a broader 
audience. Staff created five layout versions of banner advertisements and coordinated 
placement of them on 18 websites. Alameda CTC also placed a “What’s New” listing on its 
website, with a link to the full report, and posted all versions of the report and flyer on the 
Reports page. 
 
Cost per reader for online outreach: An estimated 400,000 people visited the online 
publications, and approximately 965 readers actually clicked on one of the online ads to view 
the online report. The total cost of the online advertisements was $8,273.33. The cost per page 
view for each ad averaged approximately 2 cents, and the cost per click-through was $8.57 (see 
Attachment C). 
 
Recommendations: 

 Since many people viewed the pages with the online ads, use stronger key messages in 
the ads in case people don’t click-through to the full online report. These messages 
could educate viewers about CWC and Alameda CTC efforts to improve transportation in 
Alameda County. 

 To reduce costs, eliminate placing a few of the online ads that did not result in many 
click-throughs to the full report. 

 Consider inquiring if the local jurisdictions and transportation agencies will allow 
Alameda CTC to place a link to the online report on their websites. This may be another 
no-cost way to improve visibility. CWC members may think of additional ways to partner 
with other agencies to improve exposure to the report.  

 
Social Media and Additional Outreach 
This form of outreach was new for Alameda CTC in 2012, and was an effective way to quickly 
get information to the public about the report through Facebook, LinkedIn, and YouTube. Staff 
also wrote and distributed an electronic press release about the report to 135 media contacts—
all media in the county—which included newspapers, blogs, ethnic media, radio, television, and 
cable TV. 
 
Cost per reader for social media and additional outreach: An estimated 4,640 people received 
information about the report. Aside from staff time, there was zero cost per recipient (see 
Attachment D). 
 
  

Page 167



CWC 10th Annual Report to the Public Cost Benefit Analysis 1/7/13 

  Page 4 

Recommendations: 

 Since the return on investment is quite high with this form of outreach, rely more on 
social media to get the word out: 

o Identify other individuals and organizations to contact through social media.  
o Ask CWC members on Twitter to retweet the report info to their followers.  
o Ask CWC members on Facebook to forward info to their friends. 
o Post tweets from Alameda CTC about the new report more often. 

 Place a link to the report in CWC members’ personal blogs that could result in links to 
the report in affiliated blogs. 

 Create a video that shows the important work that the CWC and Alameda CTC are doing 
to improve transportation. 

o Promote the video using existing Alameda CTC social media channels. 
o Place the video on CWC members’ blogs that could result in links to the video in 

affiliated blogs. 
 
Return on Investment 
In 2012, the budget was $50,000. The actual total cost to design, place in print and online 
advertisements, print and mail the CWC’s 10th Annual Report to the Public, and perform live 
and social media outreach about the report was $41,536 (Alameda CTC received a discount on 
one of the online advertisements, which brought the total lower than the $42,713 reported 
previously).  
 
Through all types of outreach that Alameda CTC used, approximately 3.3 million people may 
have heard about the report at an estimated average cost per potential reader of 1.3 cents. 
Approximately 2.9 million of these people may have read an ad or legal notice of public hearing 
in print publications, 400,000 may have read online ads, over 5,000 people may have learned 
about the report electronically, and 1,700 people may have read the print report or flyer. 
 
Additional Findings and Recommendations 
Alameda CTC staff recommends that CWC’s Annual Report Subcommittee meet earlier than in 
previous years, in advance of developing the report, to consider the types of outreach they 
would like to employ; the quantities of print ads, reports, and flyers desired; and additional 
low-cost strategies for getting the word out about CWC and Alameda CTC activities.  
 
Additional ways to improve visibility and the Alameda CTC’s return on its investment: 

 Have the CWC Annual Report Subcommittee take more of a leadership role in the 
process to create an outline of the report, create the content for the report, and 
develop the outreach plan, including determining in which media to place print and 
online ads. 

 Highlight portions of the report as new stories at certain intervals on the News section 
of the Alameda CTC website to continue to attract new readers to the full report. 

 Encourage CWC members to assist with more of the outreach in their local 
communities. CWC members could distribute hard-copy and electronic versions of the 
flyer and report to community organizations. 

Page 168



CWC 10th Annual Report to the Public Cost Benefit Analysis 1/7/13 

  Page 5 

 Develop a list of additional partner agencies or organizations in which to share 
information about the report via email, through weblinks, and through social media. 

 Research other online advertisement and social media possibilities. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: Print Advertisement Cost per Reader 
Attachment B: Additional Outreach Costs 
Attachment C: Online Advertisement Cost per Reader 
Attachment D: Social Media and Total Outreach Costs 

Page 169



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 170



A
ffi

lia
tio

n
N

ew
sp

ap
er

C
irc

ul
at

io
n

Re
ad

er
sh

ip
*

A
ct

ua
l C

os
t

C
os

t p
er

 
Re

ad
er

A
la

m
ed

a
 T

im
es

 S
ta

r -
 2

 d
a

ys
68

,3
17

17
0,

79
3

Fr
em

on
t A

rg
us

 - 
2 

d
a

ys
37

,1
98

92
,9

95
H

a
yw

a
rd

 D
a

ily
 R

ev
ie

w
 - 

2 
d

a
ys

39
,8

35
99

,5
88

O
a

kl
a

nd
 T

rib
un

e 
- 2

 d
a

ys
68

,3
17

17
0,

79
3

Tr
i-V

a
lle

y 
H

er
a

ld
 - 

2 
d

a
ys

47
,6

79
11

9,
19

8
Tim

es
 H

er
a

ld
 - 

1 
d

a
y

12
,0

36
42

,6
00

Ba
y 

A
re

a 
N

ew
s 

G
ro

up
 E

as
t B

ay
27

3,
38

2
69

5,
96

5
$8

,1
73

.2
0

$0
.0

11
7

A
la

m
ed

a
 J

ou
rn

a
l

23
,3

25
56

,6
00

Be
rk

el
ey

 V
oi

ce
11

,5
60

15
,7

00
Th

e 
Jo

ur
na

l (
El

 C
er

rit
o)

6,
15

7
7,

50
0

Th
e 

M
on

tc
la

rio
n

27
,3

63
43

,3
00

Th
e 

Pi
ed

m
on

te
r

5,
05

8
8,

50
0

Ba
y 

A
re

a 
N

ew
s 

G
ro

up
 H

ill
s 

N
ew

sp
ap

er
s

73
,4

63
13

1,
60

0
$1

,2
85

.2
0

$0
.0

09
8

Ea
st

 B
ay

 E
xp

re
ss

Ea
st

 B
a

y 
Ex

p
re

ss
43

,0
00

18
6,

61
6

$1
,8

00
.0

0
$0

.0
09

6

Th
e 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t

Th
e 

In
d

ep
en

d
en

t -
 L

iv
er

m
or

e,
 P

le
a

sa
nt

on
, D

ub
lin

, 
a

nd
 S

un
ol

27
,0

00
67

,5
00

$1
,3

33
.0

8
$0

.0
19

7

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on
 W

ee
kl

y
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

 W
ee

kl
y

14
,0

00
37

,8
00

$1
,0

79
.0

0
$0

.0
28

5
Be

rk
el

ey
 P

os
t

5,
00

0
18

,0
00

El
 M

un
d

o
10

,0
00

36
,0

00
M

a
rin

 P
os

t
1,

45
0

5,
22

0
O

a
kl

a
nd

 P
os

t
22

,5
00

81
,0

00
Ri

ch
m

on
d

 P
os

t
5,

00
0

18
,0

00
So

ut
h 

C
ou

nt
y 

Po
st

1,
05

0
3,

78
0

Sa
n 

Fr
a

nc
isc

o 
Po

st
5,

52
5

19
,8

90
Po

st
 N

ew
s 

G
ro

up
50

,5
25

18
1,

89
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$0

.0
16

5
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

C
hr

on
ic

le
Sa

n 
Fr

a
nc

isc
o 

C
hr

on
ic

le
88

,5
00

58
1,

96
1

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$0

.0
01

7

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
Bu

sin
es

s 
Tim

es
Sa

n 
Fr

a
nc

isc
o 

Bu
sin

es
s T

im
es

 (A
la

m
ed

a
 C

ou
nt

y,
 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y)

17
,0

00
80

,0
00

$5
,5

25
.0

0
$0

.0
69

1

Tr
i-C

ity
 V

oi
ce

Tr
i-C

ity
 V

oi
ce

 (F
re

m
on

t, 
N

ew
a

rk
, U

ni
on

 C
ity

, 
H

a
yw

a
rd

, a
nd

 S
un

ol
)

53
,8

59
19

0,
00

0
$7

35
.0

0
$0

.0
03

9

La
ng

ua
ge

 4
11

Tr
a

ns
la

tio
n 

of
 a

d
 in

to
 S

p
a

ni
sh

 fo
r P

os
t N

ew
s

$4
41

.9
6

0.
00

00
Pu

b
lic

a
tio

ns
 D

es
ig

n
D

es
ig

n 
of

 a
ll 

p
rin

t a
d

ve
rti

se
m

en
ts

$1
,1

40
.0

0
A

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 2

.2
 m

ill
io

n 
pe

op
le

 re
ad

 th
e 

pa
pe

r; 
av

er
ag

e 
co

st
 w

as
 a

pp
ro

x.
 1

.2
 c

en
ts

 p
er

 p
er

so
n.

2,
15

3,
33

2
$2

5,
51

2.
44

$0
.0

11
8

*If
 th

e 
m

ed
ia

 d
id

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
xa

ct
 re

ad
er

sh
ip

 fo
r p

rin
t p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
, t

hi
s f

ig
ur

e 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 2
.5

 p
er

so
ns

 re
ad

in
g 

ea
ch

 p
ap

er
 in

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n.

A
tt

ac
hm

en
t A

: P
ri

nt
 A

dv
er

ti
se

m
en

t C
os

t p
er

 R
ea

de
r

A
dv

er
tis

em
en

ts
 in

 P
rin

t P
ub

lic
at

io
ns

Page 171



A
ffi

lia
tio

n
N

ew
sp

ap
er

C
irc

ul
at

io
n

Re
ad

er
sh

ip
*

A
ct

ua
l C

os
t

C
os

t p
er

 
Re

ad
er

Ba
y 

A
re

a
 N

ew
s G

ro
up

 E
a

st
 B

a
y

Si
x 

ne
w

sp
a

p
er

s
26

1,
34

6
32

7,
70

0
$2

21
.2

8
0.

00
07

Ea
st

 B
a

y 
Ex

p
re

ss
Ea

st
 B

a
y 

Ex
p

re
ss

43
,0

00
18

6,
61

6
$7

5.
00

0.
00

04
Th

e 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
t

Th
e 

In
d

ep
en

d
en

t
27

,0
00

67
,5

00
$5

1.
37

0.
00

08
Po

st
 N

ew
s G

ro
up

Se
ve

n 
ne

w
sp

a
p

er
s (

fre
e 

Sp
a

ni
sh

 tr
a

ns
la

tio
n)

50
,5

25
18

0,
00

0
$1

95
.0

0
0.

00
11

A
n 

es
tim

at
ed

 7
61

,0
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ad

 th
e 

pa
pe

rs
; c

os
t w

as
 a

pp
ro

x.
  0

.0
7 

ce
nt

 p
er

 p
er

so
n.

38
1,

87
1

76
1,

81
6

$5
42

.6
5

0.
00

07
*If

 th
e 

m
ed

ia
 d

id
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

xa
ct

 re
ad

er
sh

ip
 fo

r p
rin

t p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

, t
hi

s f
ig

ur
e 

is 
ba

se
d 

on
 2

.5
 p

er
so

ns
 re

ad
in

g 
ea

ch
 p

ap
er

 in
 c

irc
ul

at
io

n.

A
ffi

lia
tio

n
O

ut
re

ac
h 

A
ct

iv
ity

C
irc

ul
at

io
n/

Q
ua

nt
ity

Re
ad

er
sh

ip
 *

*
A

ct
ua

l C
os

t
C

os
t p

er
 

Re
ad

er
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
ou

nt
y 

Lib
ra

rie
s

M
a

ile
d

 fu
ll 

re
p

or
t

42
42

0
$1

15
.9

5
0.

27
61

BP
A

C
, C

A
C

, P
A

PC
O

, T
A

C
 M

em
b

er
s

H
a

nd
ed

 o
ut

 fu
ll 

re
p

or
t a

nd
 fl

ye
r

72
72

$0
.0

0
0.

00
00

C
om

m
iss

io
ne

rs
H

a
nd

ed
 o

ut
 fu

ll 
re

p
or

t a
nd

 fl
ye

r
43

43
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
O

ut
re

a
ch

 E
ve

nt
s (

97
 e

ve
nt

s)
H

a
nd

ed
 o

ut
 fu

ll 
re

p
or

t (
25

0)
 a

nd
 fl

ye
r (

25
0)

50
0

1,
25

0
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
La

ng
ua

ge
 4

11
Tr

a
ns

la
te

d
 fl

ye
r i

nt
o 

C
hi

ne
se

 a
nd

 S
p

a
ni

sh
$1

,0
55

.7
7

Pu
b

lic
a

tio
ns

 D
es

ig
n

D
es

ig
ne

d
 re

p
or

t (
$2

,4
00

) a
nd

 fl
ye

r (
$8

40
)

$3
,2

40
.0

0
A

ut
um

n 
Pr

es
s

Pr
in

te
d

 re
p

or
t (

1,
00

0 
q

ty
.) 

a
nd

 fl
ye

r (
2,

00
0 

q
ty

.)
$2

,7
96

.1
5

Su
bt

ot
al

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
w

ith
 p

rin
te

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls:

65
7

1,
78

5
$7

,2
07

.8
7

4.
03

80
A

ge
nc

y/
Ju

ris
d

ic
tio

n 
St

a
ff 

M
em

b
er

s
Em

a
ile

d
 E

ng
lis

h,
 C

hi
ne

se
, S

p
a

ni
sh

 fl
ye

r, 
w

eb
 li

nk
22

3
22

3
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
A

la
. C

ty
. C

ha
m

b
er

s o
f C

om
m

er
ce

Em
a

ile
d

 E
ng

lis
h,

 C
hi

ne
se

, S
p

a
ni

sh
 fl

ye
r, 

w
eb

 li
nk

18
18

0
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
A

sia
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 O

rg
a

ni
za

tio
ns

Em
a

ile
d

 E
ng

lis
h,

 C
hi

ne
se

, S
p

a
ni

sh
 fl

ye
r, 

w
eb

 li
nk

51
12

8
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
Sp

a
ni

sh
 C

om
m

un
ity

 O
rg

a
ni

za
tio

ns
Em

a
ile

d
 E

ng
lis

h,
 C

hi
ne

se
, S

p
a

ni
sh

 fl
ye

r, 
w

eb
 li

nk
43

10
8

$0
.0

0
0.

00
00

Su
bt

ot
al

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
w

ith
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
m

at
er

ia
ls:

33
5

63
8

$0
.0

0
0.

00
00

A
n 

es
tim

at
ed

 2
,4

00
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

ad
 th

e 
pr

in
t/

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
in

fo
; c

os
t w

as
 a

pp
ro

x.
 $

2.
97

 p
er

 p
er

99
2

2,
42

3
$7

,2
07

.8
7

2.
97

48
**

Re
ad

er
sh

ip
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
10

 re
ad

er
s p

er
 li

br
ar

y 
or

 c
ha

m
be

r, 
an

d 
2.

5 
pe

rs
on

s r
ea

di
ng

 e
ac

h 
fly

er
 e

m
ai

le
d 

to
 o

rg
an

iza
tio

ns
 a

nd
 d

ist
rib

ut
ed

 a
t o

ut
re

ac
h 

ev
en

ts
.

A
tt

ac
hm

en
t B

: A
dd

it
io

na
l O

ut
re

ac
h 

C
os

ts

Le
ga

l N
ot

ic
e 

of
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

rin
g 

in
 P

rin
t P

ub
lic

at
io

ns

De
sig

n,
 P

rin
tin

g,
 a

nd
 D

ist
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 F
ul

l R
ep

or
t a

nd
 F

ly
er

Page 172



A
ffi

lia
tio

n
W

eb
sit

e
Pa

ge
 V

ie
w

s
C

lic
k-

th
ro

ug
hs

*
A

ct
ua

l C
os

t
C

os
t p

er
 

Pa
ge

 V
ie

w
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
TC

w
w

w
.A

la
m

ed
a

C
TC

.o
rg

56
4

61
7

$0
.0

0
0.

00
00

A
sia

n 
W

ee
k

w
w

w
.a

sia
nw

ee
k.

co
m

N
o 

Da
ta

N
o 

Da
ta

$3
36

.0
0

0.
00

00
Ba

y 
A

re
a 

N
ew

s 
G

ro
up

w
w

w
.in

sid
eb

a
ya

re
a

.c
om

13
3,

21
8

14
5

$2
,0

00
.0

0
0.

01
50

Ea
st

 B
ay

 E
xp

re
ss

w
w

w
.e

a
st

b
a

ye
xp

re
ss

.c
om

/
33

,7
01

11
5

$2
25

.0
0

0.
00

67
Pa

tc
h 

N
ew

s A
la

m
ed

a
ht

tp
:/

/a
la

m
ed

a
.p

a
tc

h.
co

m
/

9,
65

1
N

o 
D

a
ta

$1
08

.0
0

Pa
tc

h 
N

ew
s A

lb
a

ny
ht

tp
:/

/a
lb

a
ny

.p
a

tc
h.

co
m

/
16

,0
49

N
o 

D
a

ta
$1

57
.5

0
Pa

tc
h 

N
ew

s B
er

ke
le

y
ht

tp
:/

/b
er

ke
le

y.
p

a
tc

h.
co

m
/

1,
91

8
N

o 
D

a
ta

$1
03

.5
0

Pa
tc

h 
N

ew
s C

a
st

ro
 V

a
lle

y
ht

tp
:/

/c
a

st
ro

va
lle

y.
p

a
tc

h.
co

m
2,

85
4

N
o 

D
a

ta
$1

26
.0

0
Pa

tc
h 

N
ew

s D
ub

lin
ht

tp
:/

/d
ub

lin
.p

a
tc

h.
co

m
3,

30
0

N
o 

D
a

ta
$1

57
.5

0
Pa

tc
h 

N
ew

s L
iv

er
m

or
e

ht
tp

:/
/li

ve
rm

or
e.

p
a

tc
h.

co
m

13
,6

60
N

o 
D

a
ta

$8
5.

50
Pa

tc
h 

N
ew

s N
ew

a
rk

ht
tp

:/
/n

ew
a

rk
.p

a
tc

h.
co

m
4,

73
8

N
o 

D
a

ta
$1

26
.0

0
Pa

tc
h 

N
ew

s P
ie

d
m

on
t

ht
tp

:/
/p

ie
d

m
on

t.p
a

tc
h.

co
m

2,
35

0
N

o 
D

a
ta

$1
03

.5
0

Pa
tc

h 
N

ew
s P

le
a

sa
nt

on
ht

tp
:/

/p
le

a
sa

nt
on

.p
a

tc
h.

co
m

6,
53

1
N

o 
D

a
ta

$1
57

.5
0

Pa
tc

h 
N

ew
s S

a
n 

Le
a

nd
ro

ht
tp

:/
/s

a
nl

ea
nd

ro
.p

a
tc

h.
co

m
4,

33
4

N
o 

D
a

ta
$1

26
.0

0
Pa

tc
h 

N
ew

s U
ni

on
 C

ity
ht

tp
:/

/u
ni

on
ci

ty
.p

a
tc

h.
co

m
3,

33
3

N
o 

D
a

ta
$1

26
.0

0
Pa

tc
h 

N
ew

s/
A

O
L

68
,7

18
N

o 
D

a
ta

$1
,3

77
.0

0
0.

02
00

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on
 W

ee
kl

y
w

w
w

.p
le

a
sa

nt
on

w
ee

kl
y.

co
m

/
81

,2
35

41
$2

00
.0

0
0.

00
25

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
Bu

sin
es

s 
Tim

es
w

w
w

.b
izj

ou
rn

a
ls.

co
m

/s
a

nf
ra

nc
isc

o/
 

39
,7

20
15

$1
,6

67
.0

0
0.

04
20

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
G

at
e

w
w

w
.sf

ga
te

.c
om

/
43

,1
83

32
$1

,7
28

.3
3

0.
04

00
Tr

i-C
ity

 V
oi

ce
w

w
w

.tr
ic

ity
vo

ic
e.

co
m

/
N

o 
Da

ta
N

o 
Da

ta
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
Pu

b
lic

a
tio

ns
 D

es
ig

n
D

es
ig

n 
of

 a
ll 

on
lin

e 
a

d
ve

rti
se

m
en

ts
$7

40
.0

0
A

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 4

00
,0

00
 p

eo
pl

e 
vi

ew
ed

 th
e 

ad
; a

ve
ra

ge
 c

os
t w

as
 a

pp
ro

x.
 2

.1
 c

en
ts

 p
er

 p
e

40
0,

33
9

96
5

$8
,2

73
.3

3
0.

02
07

*N
ot

 a
ll p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

cl
ic

k-
th

ro
ug

h 
da

ta
, a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 9

65
 p

eo
pl

e 
cl

ic
ke

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 th
e 

on
lin

e 
re

po
rt 

($
8.

57
 p

er
 c

lic
k-

th
ro

ug
h)

. 

A
tt

ac
hm

en
t C

: O
nl

in
e 

A
dv

er
ti

se
m

en
t C

os
t p

er
 R

ea
de

r 

A
dv

er
tis

em
en

ts
 in

 O
nl

in
e 

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

Page 173

http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.asianweek.com/
http://www.insidebayarea.com/
http://albany.patch.com/
http://berkeley.patch.com/
http://castrovalley.patch.com/
http://dublin.patch.com/
http://livermore.patch.com/
http://newark.patch.com/
http://piedmont.patch.com/
http://pleasanton.patch.com/
http://sanleandro.patch.com/
http://unioncity.patch.com/
http://www.bizjournals.com/sanfrancisco/


A
ffi

lia
tio

n
O

ut
re

ac
h 

A
ct

iv
ity

Re
ci

pi
en

ts
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
Re

ci
pi

en
ts

*
A

ct
ua

l C
os

t
C

os
t p

er
 

Re
ad

er
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
TC

Po
st

ed
 re

p
or

t i
nf

or
m

a
tio

n 
on

 F
a

ce
b

oo
k

26
2

$0
.0

0
0.

00
00

A
la

m
ed

a
 C

TC
Tw

ee
te

d
 a

b
ou

t r
ep

or
t o

n 
Tw

itt
er

11
6

47
8

$0
.0

0
0.

00
00

A
la

m
ed

a
 C

TC
Pr

ov
id

ed
 p

re
ss

 re
le

a
se

 to
 m

ed
ia

 o
n 

A
ug

us
t 2

5
13

5
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
TC

Em
a

ile
d

 e
-n

ew
sle

tt
er

 w
ith

 st
or

y 
on

 re
p

or
t

3,
86

5
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
TC

M
en

tio
ne

d
 re

p
or

t i
n 

on
lin

e 
m

on
th

ly
 re

p
or

t
N

o 
D

a
ta

$0
.0

0
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
TC

D
ev

el
op

ed
, p

os
te

d
 v

id
eo

 w
ith

 C
W

C
 c

ha
ir

18
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
O

ve
r 4

,6
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n;

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

no
 c

os
ts

 b
ey

on
d 

st
af

f t
im

e.
4,

16
0

48
0

$0
.0

0
0.

00
00

*R
ec

ip
ie

nt
s f

or
w

ar
de

d 
th

is 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 tw
o 

Fa
ce

bo
ok

 fr
ie

nd
s a

nd
 re

tw
ee

te
d 

it 
to

 4
78

 p
eo

pl
e.

A
ffi

lia
tio

n
O

ut
re

ac
h 

A
ct

iv
ity

Re
ad

er
sh

ip
 *

*
A

ct
ua

l C
os

t
C

os
t p

er
 

Re
ad

er
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
TC

A
d

ve
rti

se
 in

 p
rin

t p
ub

lic
a

tio
ns

2,
15

3,
33

2
$2

5,
51

2.
44

0.
01

18
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
TC

A
d

ve
rti

se
 le

ga
l h

ea
rin

g 
in

 p
rin

t p
ub

lic
a

tio
ns

76
1,

81
6

$5
42

.6
5

0.
00

07
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
TC

Pr
in

t, 
m

a
il, 

a
nd

 d
ist

rib
ut

e 
re

p
or

t a
nd

 fl
ye

r
2,

42
3

$7
,2

07
.8

7
2.

97
48

A
la

m
ed

a
 C

TC
A

d
ve

rti
se

 in
 o

nl
in

e 
p

ub
lic

a
tio

ns
40

0,
33

9
$8

,2
73

.3
3

0.
02

07
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
TC

Pr
om

ot
e 

in
 so

ci
a

l m
ed

ia
, e

-n
ew

sle
tt

er
, v

id
eo

4,
64

0
$0

.0
0

0.
00

00
A

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 3

.3
 m

ill
io

n 
pe

op
le

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
he

ar
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 re
po

rt;
 c

os
t w

as
 a

pp
ro

x.
 1

.3
 c

en
ts

 p
er

 p
er

so
3,

32
2,

55
0

$4
1,

53
6.

29
0.

01
25

**
Re

ad
er

sh
ip

 fo
r o

nl
in

e 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ad

ve
rti

se
m

en
t p

ag
e 

vi
ew

s r
at

he
r t

ha
n 

cl
ic

k-
th

ro
ug

hs
.

Es
tim

at
ed

 To
ta

l C
os

t p
er

 R
ea

de
r

So
ci

al
 M

ed
ia

 a
nd

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 O

ut
re

ac
h

A
tt

ac
hm

en
t D

: S
oc

ia
l M

ed
ia

 a
nd

 T
ot

al
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

C
os

ts

Page 174



CWC Meeting 1/14/13 
Attachment 08A3 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: January 7, 2013 
 
To: Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 
 
From: Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Policy, Public Affairs and Legislation 
 
Subject: Funding Approach for Placing 2012 Transportation Expenditure Plan, 

Measure B1, on the Ballot 
 
Recommendation 
This item is for information only. No action is requested. 
 
Summary 
In response to an email request for more information from a CWC member, Alameda CTC staff 
has provided additional information to help CWC members better understand the funding for 
development and placement of the 2012 Alameda County Transportation Expenditure Plan on 
the November 2012 ballot as Measure B1.  
 
CWC Inquiry 
On December 12, 2012, a CWC member inquired about the approach to funding for the 
Measure B1 ballot proposition, since the 2000 Measure B Transportation Expenditure Plan 
states, “Sales tax proceeds will be used to pay for the programs and projects outlined in this 
Expenditure Plan or as it may be amended, and may not be used for any other purpose” 
(page 25). Yet the 2000 ballot measure document states, “In addition, $2.1 million has been 
budgeted to repay a loan from Alameda County for the election costs of the Measure from the 
1998 and 2000 elections” (page 44), which, according to the member, implies ACTIA was 
authorized to spend money to place previous measures on the ballot and borrowed money to 
do so.  
 
Precedence Under Local Transportation Authority and Improvement Act  
As a local transportation authority under the California Local Transportation Authority and 
Improvement Act (Public Utilities Code Section 180000 et seq.), Alameda CTC is specifically 
empowered to impose a retail transaction and use tax to fund transportation improvements in 
its county, so long as a ballot measure imposing the taxes is approved by the voters of the 
county (Section 180201). Given this power, Alameda CTC’s expenditures related to the drafting 
and sponsorship of a ballot measure required to impose such a tax are themselves authorized 

Page 175



Cost of 2012 TEP as Measure B1 on Ballot  1/7/13 

  Page 2 

by the act. Approval to pay for development of a Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) and the  
2012 ballot measures was made on June 24, 2010 (see Attachment A: CWTP-TEP Scope and 
Funding and Attachment B: Approved Costs for TEP and the measure). 
 
Authorized Use of General Funds 
Alameda CTC has designated a portion of the general funds as the funding source to be utilized 
for one-time administrative cost such as election costs for a new transportation measure. 
Paying for election costs for a new measure out of these funds does not harm any of the 
projects or programs within the TEP, helps transportation within Alameda County, is permitted 
through Measure B, and has been approved by the Commission. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
Refer to Attachment B for approved costs for 2012 and 2016 measure placement on the ballot. 
 
Attachments: 

A: Commission Item 03B Memo on CWTP-TEP Scope and Funding (June 24, 2010) 
B: Commission Item 03B2 CWTP-TEP Approved Costs (June 24, 2010) 

Page 176



Meeting Date: 06/24/10 

 
MEMORANDUM  

 
TO:   Authority Members 
 
FROM: Christine Monsen, Executive Director 

Tess Lengyel, Programs and Public Affairs Manager 
 
DATE:  June 16, 2010 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Scope Outlines, Budgets and Funding Sources for 
the Alameda County Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan 
Development, and authorization to release joint requests for proposals 
(RFPs) with the Alameda County Congestion Management Agency 
(ACCMA)  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that approval of the scope outlines, budgets and funding 
sources for the Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan 
Development for sales tax reauthorization, and authorization to release two 
RFPs: one jointly with the ACCMA for the technical and outreach work scopes 
described below, and another by ACTIA for polling services related to the 
Expenditure Plan Development. 
 
This item was given concurrence at the Administration/Legislation/Finance 
Committee meeting on June 9, 2010. 
 
Summary 
Professional and technical planning services will be required to support the 
update and adoption of Alameda County’s Countywide Transportation Plan 
(CWTP) by summer 2012, and development of a new Expenditure Plan for 
Alameda County’s half-cent transportation sales tax measure that could be 
placed on the November 2012 ballot. The CWTP will differ from previous plans to 
include all elements of transportation needs in Alameda County, including capital, 
operating and maintenance requirements for a 25-year period.  The Expenditure 
Plan will be developed out of the CWTP development efforts and will serve as a 
funding mechanism for a portion of the CWTP.  If approved by both the ACTIA 
and ACCMA Boards, request for proposals (RFPs) will be released in June 2010, 
with target consultant selection dates and project implementation in September 
2010. Technical studies and outreach efforts issued in a single RFP, while polling 
services will be under a separate RFP.  
 
Development of these efforts will require technical, political, public and 
stakeholder engagement and is anticipated to occur over a two-year period, as 
shown in Attachment A.  Establishment of three committees to implement the 
two-year process will provide guidance for the Plans and will be inclusive of 
those interested in participating in the process.  The three committees are the 

Attachment A

Page 177



Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan Scope Outlines, Budgets, 
Funding Sources  2 
 

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\Board\Meetings\2010\June\03B_Memo_ScopesBudgetsFundsources
.docx P A G E  | 2 

Steering Committee, a Technical Advisory Working Group and a Community 
Advisory Working Group and are defined below. 
 
Steering Committee:  Comprised of 13 members from the ACTIA and ACCMA 
Board including representatives from the cities of Berkeley, Emeryville, Oakland, 
Hayward, Union City, Newark, Pleasanton, and Livermore as well as Alameda 
County, BART and AC Transit.  Mayor Mark Green of Union City is the Chair and 
Councilmember Kriss Worthington of Berkeley is the Vice-Chair. The Steering 
Committee’s next meeting is June 21, 2010. They have met twice in May 2010 to 
establish committee roles and responsibilities, discuss the Vision for the 
Countywide Transportation Plan and comment on the scope of work, budgets, 
and funding sources.  
 
Technical Advisory Working Group:  Comprised of agency staff representing all 
areas of the County and including planners and engineers from local 
jurisdictions, all transit operators in Alameda County, park districts, health, social 
services, law enforcement, and education representatives.  The purpose of the 
Technical Advisory Working Group is to provide technical input, serve in an 
advisory capacity to the Steering Committee and share information with the 
Community Advisory Working Group. This Working Group is scheduled to begin 
meeting in Fall 2010.  
 
Community Advisory Working Group:  Comprised of a total of 27 members 
representing the public, including businesses and residents, and special interest 
and advocacy groups.  The Community Advisory Working Group will be 
appointed by the Steering Committee.  The purpose of the Community Advisory 
Working Group is to provide input on the Countywide Transportation Plan and 
the Expenditure Plan, make recommendations to the Steering Committee and 
share information with the Technical Advisory Working Group.  This Working 
Group is scheduled to begin meeting in Fall 2010.  A call for applications was 
released on May 28th. 
 

Background 
The CWTP and Regional Transportation Plan will require the County to meet 
GHG emission reduction targets being set by the State of California under SB 
375.  Plans development will require working with the 15 local jurisdictions, 6 
transit operators, Caltrans District 4, the Port of Oakland, MTC and other 
stakeholders to identify these projects and programs with the goal of meeting 
regional GHG emission reduction targets and to develop an Expenditure Plan 
that can be approved by 2/3 of Alameda County voters.   
 

Services required for a consultant contract include project management; analysis 
of existing relevant documents, policies and procedures; coordination with other 
on-going studies related to this effort; agency and stakeholder coordination; 
research and knowledge of best practices, including transportation policies and 
modeling; development of project and program scoring and screening criteria, 

Page 178



Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan Scope Outlines, Budgets, 
Funding Sources  3 
 

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\Board\Meetings\2010\June\03B_Memo_ScopesBudgetsFundsources
.docx P A G E  | 3 

cost estimating guides, and performance measures; assistance in public 
outreach, including meeting attendance, facilitation and presentation; graphics 
development; preparation of technical memoranda; polling; and development of 
draft and final plans. 

The successful consultant team will be required to tightly coordinate the update 
of the Countywide Transportation Plan and development of the Expenditure Plan 
with other relevant planning efforts and agencies, including, but not limited to, 
regional efforts on development of the Bay Area Sustainable Communities 
Strategy, regional transit planning efforts, on-going Countywide Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Plans updates, and with other consultants and agencies involved in 
the development of these Plans.  This coordination will include work with a 
steering committee of elected officials, technical advisory working groups, 
community advisory committees, staff and public. 

The consultant team will be responsible for updating the Countywide 
Transportation Plan, which has previously focused on capital investments 
(including High Occupancy Vehicle and Toll lanes), funding local streets and 
roads and transit capital shortfalls, and has incorporated the County Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Plans.  In order to address the requirements of SB 375 and other 
needs, additional areas of emphasis have been identified including:  transit 
oriented development/priority development areas, parking management, 
transportation systems management, and goods movement, as well as transit 
connectivity, maintenance and operations.  The consultant team will gather 
information from MTC, the cities, the County, transit districts and will be required 
to provide supporting technical documentation for the elements identified in the 
current Countywide Transportation Plan as well as the proposed new areas of 
emphasis. 

Technical Analysis and Coordination 
To most effectively identify the countywide transportation needs, costs and 
project and program implementation effectiveness, technical analysis and 
coordination with other studies will be required to evaluate existing conditions, 
identify needed improvements, develop cost estimates, identify priority projects 
and programs, and develop best practices and design guidelines for certain 
transportation investment efforts.  
 
This effort must support and be done in relation to California’s climate change 
legislation and the development of the regional Sustainable Communities 
Strategy, which requires the region to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and the 
Regional Transportation Plan update.  
 
The technical analysis will encompass all transportation modes and must identify 
existing conditions, needed improvements, costs and policies necessary to 
implement the improvements, methods for evaluation and development of a high 
priority list of capital, operating and maintenance needs, as well as performance 
measures. All high priority projects and programs must be consistent with what 
will eventually be included in the Regional Transportation Plan.   

Page 179



Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan Scope Outlines, Budgets, 
Funding Sources  4 
 

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\Board\Meetings\2010\June\03B_Memo_ScopesBudgetsFundsources
.docx P A G E  | 4 

d below in 
 on the existing Countywide 

eparate consultant contract and must be coordinated 

tly 

ty, and Regional Roadway Connectivity, Maintenance and 

DA), 

s effort and the development of the 

ffort may be coordinated 

stion 
be coordinated with the CMA’s 

 brief summary of all identified technical elements is provided below: 

des 
ts and programs 

rough the same process as all the other technical efforts. 

 

ent issues 
nd needs as well as recommended policies, programs and projects.  

 
Identified technical elements necessary for the update of the Countywide 
Transportation Plan and development of the Expenditure Plan are liste
alphabetical order.  These elements build
Transportation Plan and expand them.    

• Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan updates: these are currently 
underway under a s
with this contract   

• Goods Movement  
• High Occupancy Vehicle and Toll lanes/Integrated Corridor 

Management/Intelligent Transportation Systems:  these are curren
addressed in the 2009 Countywide Transportation Plan and 2009 
Regional Transportation Plan and must be coordinated with this contract 

• Local, Coun
Operations 

• Parking Management  
• Transit-oriented Development / Priority Development Areas (TOD/P

including best practices and design guidelines:  this effort may be 
coordinated with MTC/ABAG’s Focu
Sustainable Communities Strategy 

• Transit System Connectivity, Maintenance and Operations, including the 
needs of senior and disabled transportation: this e
with MTC’s Regional Transit Sustainability Study 

• Transportation System Management / Transportation Demand 
Management (TSM/TDM): this is currently addressed in the Conge
Management Program and should 
Guaranteed Ride Home Program. 

A
 

Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans 

This element is under development and the definition of projects and programs 
must be coordinated and incorporated into the draft and final plans. This inclu
coordinating the cost estimating guide and evaluating projec
th
 

Goods Movement 

This element will address goods movement issues related to trucking, rail, air 
cargo and marine transportation in Alameda County and will also assess top 
trading partners and commodities, key goods movement corridors (including the
impact of the current truck ban on I-580), major freight generators, trade flows 
and truck parking. This element will highlight countywide goods movem
a
 

Page 180



Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan Scope Outlines, Budgets, 
Funding Sources  5 
 

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\Board\Meetings\2010\June\03B_Memo_ScopesBudgetsFundsources
.docx P A G E  | 5 

 

fort will build on the CMA 
d 

mance and congestion pricing initiatives. 

, 

d I-680.  This element will 
 use of the existing roadway system through continuing 
 local streets and roadways.   

e 
ill 

 Management Guidelines and 
 Guidelines into 

 
wide TOD/PDA Design Guidelines and 

 Guidelines into 

High Occupancy Vehicle and Toll lanes/Integrated Corridor 
Management/Intelligent Transportation Systems  

This element will help ensure a maximum use of the existing roadway system
through operational and other improvements such as completing the high 
occupancy vehicle and toll lane networks, integrated corridor 
management/intelligent transportation systems and congestion pricing.  This 
element will focus on identifying gaps and establishing priorities for completing 
the high occupancy vehicle and toll lane networks and integrated corridor 
management/intelligent transportation systems.  This ef
and MTC’s existing high occupancy vehicle and toll lane network, freeway an
arterial perfor

Local, County, and Regional Roadway Connectivity, Maintenance and 
Operations 

This element will evaluate the current local, county and regional roadway system
identify areas where connections are needed or could be improved, such as 
etween I-680 and I-880 and SR 84 between I-580 anb

help ensure a maximum
to operate and maintain
 
Parking Management 

This element will provide a countywide approach to breaking down barriers to 
implementing parking management strategies, including parking pricing, that ar
flexible enough to be applied in each Alameda County jurisdiction.  The focus w
be on downtowns, neighborhoods and transit station areas in which a major 
investment has been made to provide regional and local transit.  This element 
will study the existing countywide parking supply, demand and strategies, and 
will identify opportunities across the county for better parking management to 
encourage alternative modes of travel. This element will make recommendations 
for implementing pilot parking programs in the County in order to evaluate the 
effects of parking management strategies in various settings.  A key outcome will 
e to develop Countywide Parkingb

recommendations for ways local jurisdictions can incorporate the
their general planning processes. 
 
Transit-Oriented Development/Priority Development Areas 

This element will identify transportation improvements that will provide a wider 
range of transportation options available at the potential and planned Priority 
Development Areas located in Alameda County. This element will encourage 
developing TODs/PDAs that create an improved sense of place, quality of life, 
safety and security, and will act as a catalyst to generate local economic 
development opportunities, particularly within disadvantaged communities.  A key
utcome will be to develop a Countyo

recommendations for ways local jurisdictions can incorporate the
their general planning processes.   
 

Page 181



Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan Scope Outlines, Budgets, 
Funding Sources  6 
 

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\Board\Meetings\2010\June\03B_Memo_ScopesBudgetsFundsources
.docx P A G E  | 6 

 

 coordination among 
e transit providers in the county and to ensure that transit plays a vital role as 

ent 

 
 

 and other TSM/TDM programs 
ach jurisdiction and make suggestions 
es.  

t 

d an effective 
ed, including 

tation Model, including 
ductions tool 

ing draft and final plans 
• Polling (this will be a separate RFP from the technical work described 

 two RFPs: 

A Board approvals 

Transit System Connectivity, Maintenance and Operations  

This element will evaluate the current transit system in Alameda County, identify
gaps in the transit service, and propose a seamless and efficient transit system, 
including all costs.  This element must be coordinated with MTC’s Transit 
Sustainability Study and include a countywide transit approach – including bus, 
train (all types), paratransit, ferry and shuttles – to ensure
th
an alternative transportation mode to automobile trips.   

 
Transportation System Management/Transportation Demand Managem
(TSM/TDM)  

This element will help ensure a maximum use of alternatives other than the
single-occupant vehicle, and will recommend TSM/TDM projects and programs
from a local, countywide and regional perspective aimed at reducing GHG 
emissions and congestion.  This effort will build upon the CMA’s existing 

ountywide Guaranteed Ride Home ProgramC
being implemented in the region and in e
for new ones such as providing Ecopass
 
Other Technical and Outreach Tasks 

To support identification of projects and programs for inclusion in the plans, a se
of tools described below is required in the development, evaluation, and 
ecommendation of projects and programs in the plans, anr

approach in working with stakeholders and the public will be requir
efforts that address multi-lingual and accessibility needs. 
 
Tools required for development of the plans include the following: 

Cost estimating•  guides 
• Evaluation criteria for prioritizing and packaging transportation projects 

and programs 
• Updating and running Alameda County’s Transpor

the greenhouse gas emissions re
• Evaluating and packaging projects and programs 
• Develop

herein) 
 
 
Request for Proposals Timeline 
The following is the proposed timeline for release of the 
 

• June 24th: CTIA and ACCMA
• June 30th : Release of RFPs 
• July 15th: Pre-Bid Meetings 

Page 182



Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan Scope Outlines, Budgets, 
Funding Sources  7 
 

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\Board\Meetings\2010\June\03B_Memo_ScopesBudgetsFundsources
.docx P A G E  | 7 

f August 23 : Evaluation team reviews proposals 

• September 23: Board approval of highest ranked teams and authorization 
ate and enter into agreements 

 
ng with 

ree committees: steering committee, technical advisory committee and 

 
 

 with ACTIA paying separately for the polling and the 
CCMA paying separately for the transportation model updates (each effort is 

his action would authorize ACTIA funding from reserves and from the following 
es: 

• August 19th: Proposals Due 
• Week o rd

• September 8th: Recommendation of shortlist and authorization to interview 
teams 

to negoti
 
Fiscal Impact 
The total two-year estimated cost to develop all the studies, tools and two
separate plans, in conjunction with a large outreach effort (including worki
th
community advisory committee) and polling is estimated at $1,940,000.   
 
Development of the plans (including all the technical studies, tools and outreach) 
will be done under a separate contract from the polling.  Further, a separate 
contract is already under way for updates of the Countywide Bike and Pedestrian
Plans, and those funds have already been approved.  The total cost will be split
between the two agencies
A
estimated at $100,000).   
 
T
specific ACTIA fund sourc
 
Program Funds Sources: 
 

• Express Bus Fund: $100,000 to fund a portion of the Transit System 
Connectivity, Maintenance and Operations section of the CWTP and
Expenditure Plan  

• Transit Center Development Fu

 

nd: $50,000 to fund a portion of the 

n 

k is 
being done by Eisen|Letunic under a contract amount of 

$260,000. These efforts will be coordinated with the consultant hired 
under this RFP. 

Transit-Oriented Development/Priority Development Areas section of the 
CWTP and Expenditure Plan  

• Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Fund:  The funding identified for this portio
of the Countywide Transportation Plan update and Expenditure Plan 
Development was already approved through a separate board action for 
the update of the Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plans.  This wor
underway and is 

 

Capital Funds Source: 

• Emergency Congestion Relief Fund: $50,000 to fund a portion of the High 
Occupancy Vehicle and Toll lanes/Integrated Corridor 

Page 183



Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan Scope Outlines, Budgets, 
Funding Sources  8 
 

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\Board\Meetings\2010\June\03B_Memo_ScopesBudgetsFundsources
.docx P A G E  | 8 

ransportation Systems section of the CWTP and 

CTIA General Fund Reserve

Management/Intelligent T
Expenditure Plan   

 

A  

aining funds required for these services will be from the ACTIA 

Attachments 
03A: Proposed two-year timeline for Plans Development 
03B: Proposed Budget 
 

• The rem
General Fund reserve in the amount of $770,000 

 
 

Page 184



ACTIA Board Attachment 03B2

Meeting Date: 06/24/10

 Budgets for 

CWTP/Expenditure Plan

Fund Source Assumptions Approvals Necessary 

for ACCMA Budget and 

ACTIA use of Funds

Planning Studies
Transit Connectivity, 

Operations, Maintenance

ACTIA express bus and ACCMA 

planning or grants

This is a broadly expanded element in the CWTP to take into account all the 

transit operating and capital needs in the County. Work will be done specific 

to Alameda County and in coordination with MTC's Transit Connectivity Study.

Yes

Bike/Ped Plans ACTIA Bike/Ped Funds and 

ACCMA Planning

Assumes development of two coordinated plans. Work already underway and 

funded primarily from ACTIA grant program.

Done

TSM/TDM/Parking 

Management

ACTIA /ACMMA Planning This is a new element in the CWTP and is something that will support the SCS 

and will build off of MTC's efforts in parking management.

Yes

PDA/TOD design guidelines ACTIA Transit Center 

Development funds

This is a new element in the CWTP.  The Expenditure Plan will likely have a 

large increase in TOD funding over current amounts to support SCS efforts.

Yes

HOV/HOT/ICM/ITS/Roads ACTIA Emergency Congestion 

Relief/ACCMA Planning

This will be an enhanced element in the CWTP and will guide what particular 

elements could potentially be funded in the Expenditure Plan

Yes

Goods Movement ACTIA /ACMMA Planning This is a new element in the CWTP.  Yes

Subtotal  $                                    960,000 

Tool Development
Evaluation criteria/scoring 

screening/measures of 

effectiveness

ACTIA/ACCMA Planning or 

grants

This is new for the CWTP and will help ensure high priority projects and 

programs are prioritized according to the vision and goals of the CWTP and 

Expenditure Plan. 

Yes

Model Development ACCMA Planning funds This is not normally associated with the overall cost of developing the CWTP, 

but is included here to show the comprehensive budget needs for the plan 

development.

Yes

Subtotal  $                                    180,000 

Plans Development
CWTP/Expenditure Plans 

Development

ACTIA/ACCMA Planning or 

grants

This assumes the development high-priority project and program lists, 

evaluation, scoring and screening of projects and programs, costs estimates 

and schedules, development of two distinct plans, including new and 

expanded information and data in the CWTP, as well as maps, graphics, in 

both plans. 

Yes

Subtotal  $                                    400,000 

Outreach
Public outreach/meetings ACTIA/ACCMA Planning or 

grants

This is a two year process through 2012.  ACTIA currently has Media/PR 

consultant assistance which is anticipated to also assist with this effort. 

Yes

Polling ACTIA It is assumed that three polls will be conducted as part of this effort: one 

baseline, one to test the first draft of the expenditure plan, and the third to 

serve as a Go/No Go Poll.  

Yes

Subtotal  $                                    400,000 

Grand Subtotal  $                                 1,940,000 Technical Studies and Analyses, Comprehensive Public Outreach and 

Engagement, Polling, Development of Draft and Final Countywide 

Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan

Assumes 2012 ACTIA These costs are estimates based upon the $1 Million cost to place the current 

Expenditure Plan on the Ballot. 

Yes

Assumes 2016 ACTIA This cost is included as a budget placeholder on ACTIA funds in case the 

Expenditure Plan is either not placed on the ballot in 2012, or does not pass.

Yes

Subtotal  $                                 2,600,000 

Estimated Grand Total  $                                 4,540,000 

Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure Plan Development Comprehensive Cost Estimates

Ballot Placement ACTIA COSTS ONLY

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\Board\Meetings\2010\June\03B2_CWTP_ExP_Budgets.xlsx

Attachment B

Page 185



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 186



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 B
o

ar
d

 A
ct

io
n

 I
te

m
s

F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
20

12
 -

 2
01

3

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 D
at

e
It

em
 T

it
le

It
em

 
#

It
em

 D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 /

 S
ta

ff
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

o
ti

o
n

2n
d

V
o

te

6A
M

in
ut

es
 o

f 
Ju

ne
 2

6,
 2

01
2

6B
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 t

he
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
T

C
's

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 L
oc

al
 J

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

6C
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

R
eq

ue
st

 f
or

 P
ro

po
sa

ls
 (

R
F

P
) 

fo
r 

S
ou

th
bo

un
d 

I-
68

0 
E

xp
re

ss
 L

an
e

6D
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
N

o.
 3

 t
o 

th
e 

20
12

 L
ev

el
 o

f 
S

er
vi

ce
 (

LO
S

) 
M

on
ito

ri
ng

 S
tu

dy
 C

on
tr

ac
t

6E
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
P

la
n 

B
ay

 A
re

a 
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

(N
O

P
) 

fo
r 

a 
D

ra
ft

 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l I
m

pa
ct

 R
ep

or
t 

(E
IR

)
6F

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

R
es

ol
ut

io
ns

 o
f 

Lo
ca

l S
up

po
rt

 f
or

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Li

fe
lin

e 
F

un
di

ng
 f

or
 C

om
m

un
ity

-b
as

ed
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
P

la
n 

U
pd

at
es

6G
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
V

eh
ic

le
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

F
ee

 (
V

R
F

) 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
P

ro
gr

am
6H

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (

C
T

C
) 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 
M

ee
tin

g 
S

um
m

ar
y

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

I-
B

on
d 

P
ro

je
ct

 F
un

di
ng

 P
la

n 
R

ev
is

io
ns

 a
nd

 A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 
to

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 -
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
1 

in
 S

ta
ff

 
R

ep
or

t

H
ar

pe
r

H
ag

ge
rt

y
18

-0

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
or

t
K

ap
la

n
C

ha
n

17
-1

6J
S

af
e 

R
ou

te
s 

to
 S

ch
oo

l P
ro

gr
am

 -
 A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
N

o.
 1

 t
o 

th
e 

A
lta

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

(A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

#A
11

-
00

19
)

6K
I-

80
 G

ilm
an

 I
nt

er
ch

an
ge

 P
ro

je
ct

 -
 A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
N

o.
 1

 t
o 

E
xt

en
d 

th
e 

P
B

 A
m

er
ic

as
 I

nc
. 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

on
tr

ac
t 

E
xp

ir
at

io
n 

D
at

e 
an

d 
R

ev
is

e 
th

e 
S

co
pe

6L
I-

58
0 

of
f-

ra
m

p 
at

 1
06

th
 P

ro
je

ct
 -

 A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

A
m

en
dm

en
t 

N
o.

 1
 t

o 
E

xt
en

d 
th

e 
U

R
S

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

on
tr

ac
t 

E
xp

ir
at

io
n 

D
at

e
6M

I-
80

 I
nt

eg
ra

te
d 

C
or

ri
do

r 
M

ob
ili

ty
 P

ro
je

ct
 (

IC
M

) 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

E
xe

cu
te

 a
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

 2
 t

o 
P

ro
vi

de
 S

pe
ci

al
ty

 M
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t
6N

I-
58

0 
S

an
 L

ea
nd

ro
 S

ou
nd

w
al

l L
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

ro
je

ct
 -

 A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

E
xe

cu
te

 a
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tr

ac
t

6O
C

en
tr

al
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

am
e 

D
ay

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

A
w

ar
d 

of
 

C
on

tr
ac

t 
to

 S
t.

 M
in

i C
ab

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n

6P
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
N

o.
 1

 t
o 

th
e 

A
cu

m
en

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s
6Q

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

Is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

a 
R

eq
ue

st
 f

or
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 (
R

F
P

) 
fo

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 

C
on

tr
ol

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

A
ut

ho
ri

za
tio

n 
to

 N
eg

ot
ia

te
 a

nd
 E

xe
cu

te
 a

 
C

on
tr

ac
t

6R
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 f
or

 t
he

 C
om

m
un

ity
 A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
s

A
tk

in
18

-0

26
-J

ul
-1

2
18

-0
A

p
p

ro
va

l 
o

f 
C

o
n

se
n

t 
C

al
en

d
ar

H
ag

ge
rt

y
A

tk
in

6I

H
ag

ge
rt

y

CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 09A

Page 187



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 B
o

ar
d

 A
ct

io
n

 I
te

m
s

F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
20

12
 -

 2
01

3

9A
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

lta
m

on
t 

C
om

m
ut

er
 E

xp
re

ss
 (

A
C

E
) 

F
Y

 2
01

2/
13

 B
as

el
in

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
t

H
ag

ge
rt

y
M

ile
y

18
-0

9B
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
F

un
d 

fo
r 

C
le

an
 A

ir
 (

T
F

C
A

) 
F

in
al

 F
Y

 
20

12
/1

3 
P

ro
gr

am
A

tk
in

H
ag

ge
rt

y
18

-0

6A
M

in
ut

es
 o

f 
Ju

ly
 2

7,
 2

01
2

6B
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
 (

C
M

P
):

 S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 t
he

 A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

's
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 C

om
m

en
ts

 o
n 

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

6C
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (
C

T
C

) 
A

ug
us

t 
20

12
 

M
ee

tin
g 

S
um

m
ar

y
6D

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

C
ity

 o
f 

N
ew

ar
k'

s 
R

eq
ue

st
 t

o 
E

xt
en

d 
E

xp
ir

at
io

n 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

M
ea

su
re

 B
 B

ic
yc

le
 a

nd
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 F
un

d 
G

ra
nt

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

N
o.

 A
09

-0
02

2,
 N

ew
ar

k 
P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
an

d 
B

ic
yc

le
 

M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
6E

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

O
ak

la
nd

's
 R

eq
ue

st
 t

o 
E

xt
en

d 
th

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
E

xp
ir

at
io

n 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

M
ea

su
re

 B
 T

ra
ns

it 
C

en
te

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

G
ra

nt
 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

N
o.

 A
07

-0
01

9,
 7

th
 S

tr
ee

t,
 W

es
t 

O
ak

la
nd

 T
ra

ns
it 

V
ill

ag
e 

P
ro

je
ct

6F
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
F

un
d 

fo
r 

C
le

an
 A

ir
 (

T
F

C
A

) 
P

ro
gr

am
 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 D
ea

dl
in

e 
E

xt
en

si
on

 R
eq

ue
st

 f
or

 C
ity

 o
f 

H
ay

w
ar

d 
T

F
C

A
 

P
ro

je
ct

 1
0A

LA
04

, 
T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
na

l C
on

tr
ol

le
r 

U
pg

ra
de

 a
nd

 S
ig

na
liz

at
io

n

6G
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
T

F
C

A
 P

ro
gr

am
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 D

ea
dl

in
e 

E
xt

en
si

on
 R

eq
ue

st
 

fo
r 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 T
F

C
A

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
08

A
LA

01
 a

nd
 0

9A
LA

01
, 

W
eb

st
er

 
S

tr
ee

t 
C

or
ri

do
r 

E
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
6H

A
lta

m
on

t 
C

om
m

ut
er

 E
xp

re
ss

 R
ai

l P
ro

je
ct

 (
A

C
T

IA
 N

o.
 0

1)
 A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 2

00
0 

M
ea

su
re

 B
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

 F
un

di
ng

6I
E

as
tb

ou
nd

 I
-5

80
 H

O
V

 L
an

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 (

R
M

2 
S

ub
pr

oj
ec

t 
32

.1
d)

 -
 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

In
iti

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
or

t 
to

 R
eq

ue
st

 M
T

C
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

R
eg

io
na

l M
ea

su
re

 2
 F

un
ds

 f
or

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 I
-5

80
 E

as
tb

ou
nd

 
A

ux
ili

ar
y 

La
ne

 (
S

eg
m

en
t 

3)
, 

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

 4
20

.5
6J

W
eb

st
er

  
S

t.
 S

M
A

R
T

 C
or

ri
do

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

A
w

ar
d 

a 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tr
ac

t
6K

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

Is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

a 
R

eq
ue

st
 f

or
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 (
R

F
P

) 
fo

r 
D

es
ig

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

A
ut

ho
ri

za
tio

n 
to

 N
eg

ot
ia

te
 a

nd
 E

xe
cu

te
 a

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

H
ar

ds
ca

pe
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 a
t 

I-
88

0/
M

ar
in

a 
B

ou
le

va
rd

 
an

d 
D

av
is

 S
tr

ee
t 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
es

 in
 t

he
 C

ity
 o

f 
S

an
 L

ea
nd

ro

6L
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
T

C
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

nd
 2

01
1-

12
 C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 

Y
ea

r-
E

nd
 I

nv
es

tm
en

t 
R

ep
or

t
6M

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

S
em

i-
A

nn
ua

l C
on

tr
ac

t 
E

qu
ity

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t 

an
d 

C
on

tr
ac

t 
A

w
ar

d 
R

ep
or

t 
fo

r 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

2 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
2

6N
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

R
eq

ue
st

 f
or

 P
ro

po
sa

ls
 f

or
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
A

dv
is

or
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
A

ut
ho

ri
za

tio
n 

to
 N

eg
ot

ia
te

 a
nd

 E
xe

cu
te

 a
 

C
on

tr
ac

t

17
-0

27
-S

ep
-1

2
A

p
p

ro
va

l 
o

f 
C

o
n

se
n

t 
C

al
en

d
ar

A
tk

in
K

ap
la

n

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

o
f 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s 

an
d

 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
A

ct
io

n
 

It
em

s

Page 188



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 B
o

ar
d

 A
ct

io
n

 I
te

m
s

F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
20

12
 -

 2
01

3

6O
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 f
or

 t
he

 C
om

m
un

ity
 A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
s

6A
M

in
ut

es
 o

f 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
27

, 
20

12
6B

Le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

U
pd

at
e

6C
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

la
n 

(C
M

P
):

 D
ra

ft
 2

01
2 

C
on

fo
rm

ity
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

6D
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
F

in
al

 D
ra

ft
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
B

ic
yc

le
 a

nd
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
P

la
ns

6E
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
S

af
e 

R
ou

te
s 

to
 S

ch
oo

ls
 P

ro
gr

am
 2

01
1-

20
12

 Y
ea

r-
E

nd
 

R
ep

or
t 

an
d 

U
pd

at
e

M
ile

y
K

ap
la

n
22

-0

6F
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
F

in
al

 D
ra

ft
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
T

C
 C

om
pl

et
e 

S
tr

ee
ts

 E
le

m
en

ts
6G

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

S
ta

te
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
 (

S
T

IP
) 

A
t 

R
is

k 
R

ep
or

t
6H

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

F
ed

er
al

 S
ur

fa
ce

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n/

C
on

ge
st

io
n 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
an

d 
A

ir
 Q

ua
lit

y 
(S

T
P

/C
M

A
W

) 
P

ro
gr

am
 A

t 
R

is
k 

R
ep

or
t

6I
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
C

M
A

 E
xc

ha
ng

e 
P

ro
gr

am
 Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 S
ta

tu
s 

M
on

ito
ri

ng
 

R
ep

or
t

6J
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
F

un
d 

fo
r 

C
le

an
 A

ir
 (

T
F

C
A

) 
P

ro
gr

am
 A

t 
R

is
k 

R
ep

or
t

6K
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
F

Y
 1

1-
12

 A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 P
ro

gr
am

 S
ta

tu
s 

U
pd

at
e 

on
 P

as
s-

th
ro

ug
h 

F
un

d 
an

d 
G

ra
nt

 P
ro

gr
am

s
6L

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (

C
T

C
) 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 M
ee

tin
g 

S
um

m
ar

y
6M

E
as

t 
B

ay
 G

re
en

w
ay

 -
 A

ut
ho

ri
za

tio
n 

to
 E

xe
cu

te
 a

ll 
N

ec
es

sa
ry

 
A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 f

or
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 E

as
t 

B
ay

 G
re

en
w

ay
 

S
eg

m
en

t
6N

Is
ab

el
 A

ve
nu

e/
R

ou
te

 8
4/

I-
58

0 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 (

A
C

T
C

 N
o.

 6
23

) 
- 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 2
00

0 
M

ea
su

re
 B

 A
llo

ca
te

d 
A

m
ou

nt
 b

y 
$1

.5
 

m
ill

io
n 

an
d 

of
 A

m
en

dm
en

ts
 t

o 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

pe
ci

fic
 F

un
di

ng
 A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 

A
07

-0
05

8 
an

d 
A

08
-0

04
5 

(A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 N
o.

 1
 a

nd
 2

, 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y)
 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 a
nd

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Li
ve

rm
or

e 
to

 s
hi

ft
 t

he
 

A
llo

ca
te

d 
M

ea
su

re
 B

 F
un

di
ng

 B
et

w
ee

n 
P

ha
se

s 
an

d 
to

 E
xt

en
d 

th
e 

T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
D

at
es

6O
D

um
ba

rt
on

 C
or

ri
do

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 (

A
C

T
C

 N
o.

 6
25

) 
- 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

T
im

e 
E

xt
en

si
on

 f
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
pe

ci
fic

 F
un

di
ng

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

N
o.

 A
05

-0
00

7 
(A

m
en

dm
en

t 
N

o.
 5

) 
B

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 a
nd

 S
an

 M
at

eo
 

C
ou

nt
y 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
6P

E
as

tb
ou

nd
 I

-5
80

 H
ig

h 
O

cc
up

an
cy

 T
ol

l (
H

O
T

) 
P

ro
je

ct
 (

A
C

T
C

 N
o.

 
72

0.
4)

 -
 A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
T

im
e 

E
xt

en
si

on
 f

or
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

N
o.

 A
08

-0
30

 (
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
N

o.
 2

) 
B

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 a
nd

 S
ol

em
 a

nd
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s
6Q

O
ak

la
nd

 A
ir

po
rt

 C
on

ne
ct

or
 P

ro
je

ct
 (

A
C

T
C

 P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

 6
03

) 
- 

A
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 T
im

e 
E

xt
en

si
on

 f
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
pe

ci
fic

 F
un

di
ng

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

N
o.

 A
06

-
00

41
 (

A
m

en
dm

en
t 

N
o.

 4
) 

B
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
T

C
 a

nd
 t

he
 S

an
 

F
ra

nc
is

co
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

R
ap

id
 T

ra
ns

it 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

(B
A

R
T

)

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

o
f 

C
o

n
se

n
t 

C
al

en
d

ar

 
 

 

B
la

lo
ck

W
or

th
in

gt
on

22
-0

B
la

lo
ck

W
or

th
in

gt
on

22
-0

25
-O

ct
-1

2

Page 189



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 B
o

ar
d

 A
ct

io
n

 I
te

m
s

F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
20

12
 -

 2
01

3

6R
I-

88
0 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t 
23

rd
 a

nd
 2

9t
h 

A
ve

nu
es

 
P

ro
je

ct
 (

A
C

T
C

 P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

 7
17

.0
) 

- 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
th

e 
In

iti
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 
R

ep
or

t 
to

 R
eq

ue
st

 M
T

C
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 R

eg
io

na
l M

ea
su

re
 2

 F
un

ds
 f

or
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

up
po

rt
6S

I-
23

8 
W

id
en

in
g 

P
ro

je
ct

 (
A

C
T

C
 N

o.
 6

21
.0

) 
- 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
C

M
A

 T
IP

 P
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 A
m

ou
nt

 f
or

 t
he

 I
-B

on
d 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
C

lo
se

ou
t,

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t;
 a

nd
 

A
do

pt
 t

he
 I

-2
38

 W
id

en
in

g 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

lo
se

ou
t 

in
to

 t
he

 C
M

A
 T

IP
, 

an
d 

A
ut

ho
ri

ze
 R

el
at

ed
 A

m
en

dm
en

ts
 t

o 
E

xi
st

in
g 

A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

ts

6T
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
T

C
 S

em
i-

A
nn

ua
l C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
S

ta
tu

s 
U

pd
at

e
6U

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
T

ec
hn

ic
al

 A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 (
A

C
T

A
C

) 
B

yl
aw

s
6V

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

E
xc

ha
ng

e 
P

ro
gr

am
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t 
P

ol
ic

y
6W

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 A
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
A

p
p

ro
va

l 
o

f 
P

ro
g

ra
m

s 
an

d
 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

A
ct

io
n

 
It

em
s

8A
E

as
t 

B
ay

 G
re

en
w

ay
 -

 A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 I
ni

tia
l S

tu
dy

/M
iti

ga
te

d 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

D
ec

la
ra

tio
n 

(I
S

/M
N

D
) 

fo
r 

12
-M

ile
 E

as
t 

B
ay

 G
re

en
w

ay
 P

ro
je

ct
K

ap
la

n
W

or
th

in
gt

on
22

-0

9A
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
P

ri
or

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
(P

D
A

) 
R

ea
di

ne
ss

 C
ri

te
ri

a
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
1

W
or

th
in

gt
on

B
la

lo
ck

22
-0

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

2
H

ag
ge

rt
y

C
ha

n
22

-0
9B

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

D
ra

ft
 O

ne
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

G
ra

nt
 (

O
B

A
G

) 
P

ro
gr

am
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 
E

le
m

en
ts

H
ag

ge
rt

y
A

tk
in

22
-0

6A
M

in
ut

es
 o

f 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

5,
 2

01
2

20
-0

 (
1 

ab
st

ai
ne

d,
 

T
ho

rn
e)

6B
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
 (

C
M

P
):

 S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 t
he

 A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

's
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 C

om
m

en
ts

 o
n 

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

6C
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
: 

F
in

al
 2

01
2 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
on

fo
rm

ity
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

6D
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
D

ra
ft

 2
01

3 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
T

C
 L

eg
is

la
tiv

e 
P

ro
gr

am
20

-0
 (

1 
ab

st
ai

ne
d,

 
T

ho
rn

e)
6E

P
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
fr

om
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
 (

C
C

T
A

) 
on

 
S

ta
te

 R
ou

te
 2

39
 (

T
ri

Li
nk

) 
S

tu
dy

6F
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
Is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

R
eq

ue
st

 f
or

 Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 (

R
F

Q
) 

fo
r 

a 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

P
ro

gr
am

 (
S

C
-T

A
P

)

6G
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
th

e 
A

la
m

ed
a-

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 T

ra
ns

it 
D

is
tr

ic
t's

 (
A

C
 T

ra
ns

it)
 

R
eq

ue
st

 t
o 

E
xt

en
d 

th
e 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

E
xp

ir
at

io
n 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
M

ea
su

re
 B

 
P

ar
at

ra
ns

it 
G

ap
 G

ra
nt

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

N
o.

 A
08

-0
02

6,
 N

ew
 F

re
ed

om
 F

un
d 

M
at

ch
 P

ro
je

ct
6H

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

R
ep

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

of
 C

yc
le

 2
 L

ife
lin

e 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
 F

un
di

ng
6I

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (

C
T

C
) 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

2 
M

ee
tin

g 
S

um
m

ar
y

W
or

th
in

gt
on

21
-0

21
-0

 
 

 

6-
D

ec
-1

2
A

p
p

ro
va

l 
o

f 
C

o
n

se
n

t 
C

al
en

d
ar

(P
en

d
in

g
 A

p
p

ro
va

l)

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
P

o
li

cy
 

an
d

 L
eg

is
la

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

A
ct

io
n

 I
te

m
s

H
ag

ge
rt

y

Page 190



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 B
o

ar
d

 A
ct

io
n

 I
te

m
s

F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
20

12
 -

 2
01

3

6J
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
P

ri
or

ity
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
(P

C
A

) 
P

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 S

ch
ed

ul
e

6K
R

ep
or

t 
of

 P
av

em
en

t 
C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

tio
ns

 2
01

1 
by

 t
he

 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (

M
T

C
)

6L
I-

68
0 

N
or

th
bo

un
d 

E
xp

re
ss

 L
an

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 (

A
C

T
IA

 8
B

) 
- 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 
20

00
 M

ea
su

re
 B

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

m
en

d 
th

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

w
ith

 W
M

H
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
fo

r 
E

xp
an

de
d 

S
co

pe
 o

f 
S

er
vi

ce
s

6M
T

el
eg

ra
ph

 A
ve

nu
e 

C
or

ri
do

r 
T

ra
ns

it 
P

ro
je

ct
 (

A
P

N
 6

07
.0

) 
- 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 M
ea

su
re

 B
 F

un
di

ng
 f

or
 t

he
 P

la
ns

, 
S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
E

st
im

at
e 

(D
es

ig
n)

 P
ha

se
6N

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

A
ut

ho
ri

za
tio

n 
fo

r 
S

ta
ff

 t
o 

ne
go

tia
te

 a
nd

/o
r 

co
or

di
na

te
 w

ith
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

(C
al

tr
an

s)
 t

o 
ne

go
tia

te
 f

or
 t

he
 

sa
le

 o
f 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

-o
w

ne
d 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
(A

P
N

 5
43

-2
75

-1
2-

2)
 a

nd
 

U
pd

at
e 

on
 t

he
 D

ra
ft

 D
is

po
sa

l P
la

n 
fo

r 
S

ta
te

-o
w

ne
d 

R
ig

ht
-o

f-
w

ay
 t

ha
t 

w
as

 P
ur

ch
as

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 F

or
m

er
 R

ou
te

 8
4 

H
is

to
ri

c 
P

ar
kw

ay
 in

 F
re

m
on

t 
an

d 
U

ni
on

 C
ity

6O
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r's
 S

al
ar

y 
fo

r 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
fo

r 
20

12
-1

3
20

-0
 (

1 
ab

st
ai

ne
d,

 
T

ho
rn

e)
6P

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 F
Y

 2
01

2-
13

 F
ir

st
 Q

ua
rt

er
 I

nv
es

tm
en

t 
R

ep
or

t
6Q

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

T
C

 F
Y

 2
01

2-
13

 F
ir

st
 Q

ua
rt

er
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

ep
or

t
6R

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

A
C

C
M

A
 D

ra
ft

 A
ud

ite
d 

B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 f
or

 
th

e 
E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

E
nd

ed
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

29
, 

20
12

6S
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
th

e 
A

C
T

IA
 D

ra
ft

 A
ud

ite
d 

B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 f
or

 
th

e 
E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

E
nd

ed
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

29
, 

20
12

6T
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

8A
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
D

ra
ft

 P
ri

or
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
A

re
a 

(P
D

A
) 

R
ea

di
ne

ss
 

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n
H

ag
ge

rt
y

S
ab

ra
nt

i
26

-0

8B
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
D

ra
ft

 O
ne

 B
ay

 A
re

a 
G

ra
nt

 P
ro

gr
am

 G
ui

de
lin

es
Ja

va
nd

el
A

tk
in

26
-0

21
-0

 
 

 

 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
P

o
li

cy
 

an
d

 L
eg

is
la

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

A
ct

io
n

 I
te

m
s

Page 191



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 192



CWC Meeting 01/14/13 
Attachment 09A1 

Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Calendar of CWC Meetings and Activities 
CWC meets quarterly on the second Monday from 6:30 to 8:30 p.m.  

at the Alameda CTC offices 
July 9, 2012 CWC Meeting 
 Public Hearing on CWC Annual Report 
 Addressing Public Comments 
 Finalizing Annual Report and Publications 
 Approval of FY 2012-2013 Annual Calendar 
 Financial Update: Final Budget for Fiscal Year 12-13 
 CWC Watch List for FY 2012-2013 (send letter to Jurisdictions reminding them of 

keeping CWC informed on projects/programs) 
 

October 2012 
 CWC Post-Audit Subcommittee Meeting 

 
November 19, 2012 CWC Meeting  

 Audited Financials for Prior Fiscal Year End 
 Quarterly Investment Report 
 CWC Annual Report Outreach Summary and Publication Costs Update 
 Update on Program Compliance Workshop 
 Quarterly Alameda CTC Commission Action Items 

 
January 14, 2013 CWC Meeting 
 Sponsor Compliance Audits and Reports – Forwarded to CWC without Staff Analysis 
 Projects and Programs Overview/Update  
 Project Sponsor Presentations – if requested  
 Quarterly Alameda CTC Commission Action Items 

 
February 2013 
 Email to CWC members the mid-year budget update the same time it goes to the 

Finance and Administration Committee (FAC) 
 
March 11, 2013 CWC Meeting 
 Summary of Sponsor Audits/Programs – Report Card to CWC 
 Approval of Draft Annual Report Outline 
 Draft Compliance Summary and Audit Report 
 Mid Year Budget Update 
 Quarterly Investment Report 
 Quarterly Alameda CTC Commission Action Items 
 Project Sponsor Presentations – if requested 

 
April 2013 CWC Annual Report Subcommittee Meeting 
 Prepare Draft Annual Report  

 
  

Page 193



Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Calendar of CWC Meetings and Activities 
CWC meets quarterly on the second Monday from 6:30 to 8:30 p.m.  

at the Alameda CTC offices 
June 10, 2013 CWC Meeting 
 Finalize Draft Annual Report 
 Election of Officers 
 Approval of Bylaws 
 Final Strategic Plan 
 Financial Update: Final Budget Update for Fiscal Year 12-13 
 Proposed Budget for the Next Fiscal Year 
 Quarterly Investment Report 
 Quarterly Alameda CTC Commission Action Items 
 Project Sponsor Presentations – if requested 

 
July 2013 
 CWC Pre-Audit Subcommittee Meeting 

Page 194



A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

C
it

iz
e

n
s

 W
a

tc
h

d
o

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

R
o

s
te

r 
- 

F
is

c
a

l Y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
2

-2
0

1
3

T
it

le
L

as
t

F
ir

st
C

it
y

A
p

p
o

in
te

d
 B

y
T

er
m

 B
eg

an
R

e-
ap

p
tm

t.
T

er
m

 
E

xp
ir

es
M

tg
s 

M
is

se
d

  
S

in
ce

 J
u

ly
 '1

2*

1
M

r.
P

ax
so

n
, C

h
ai

r
Ja

m
es

 
P

le
as

an
to

n
E

as
t 

B
ay

 E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
lli

an
ce

A
p

r-
01

N
/A

0

2
M

s.
S

au
n

d
er

s,
 

V
ic

e-
C

h
ai

r
H

ar
ri

et
te

 
A

la
m

ed
a

P
ar

at
ra

n
si

t 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

Ju
l-

09
N

/A
0

3
M

s.
B

el
ch

am
be

r
P

am
el

a
B

er
ke

le
y

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

ay
or

s'
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-5
M

ar
-0

9
A

pr
-1

1
A

p
r-

13
2

4
M

s.
B

ra
dy

P
et

ra
 O

liv
ia

O
ak

la
nd

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

ay
or

s'
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-4
O

ct
-1

1
O

ct
-1

3
2

5
M

r.
D

ub
in

sk
y

P
et

er
 "

M
ik

e"
F

re
m

on
t

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
S

up
er

vi
so

r 
R

ic
ha

rd
 V

al
le

, D
-2

O
ct

-1
0

O
ct

-1
2

0

6
M

r.
G

ee
n

A
rt

hu
r 

B
. 

O
ak

la
nd

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
T

ax
pa

ye
rs

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

Ja
n-

01
N

/A
2

7
M

r.
H

au
ss

en
er

Ja
m

es
C

as
tr

o 
V

al
le

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

S
up

er
vi

so
r 

N
at

e 
M

ile
y,

 D
-4

F
eb

-1
0

S
ep

-1
2

S
ep

-1
4

0

8
M

r.
Jo

ne
s

S
te

ve
D

ub
lin

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

ay
or

s'
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-1
D

ec
-1

2
D

ec
-1

4
0

9
M

s.
Le

w
Jo

 A
nn

U
ni

on
 C

ity
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s'

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-2

O
ct

-0
7

O
ct

-1
1

O
ct

-1
3

0

10
D

r.
S

al
w

an
R

aj
F

re
m

on
t

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
S

up
er

vi
so

r 
S

co
tt 

H
ag

ge
rt

y,
 D

-1
S

ep
-1

2
S

ep
-1

4
0

11
M

r.
 

Z
uk

as
H

al
e

B
er

ke
le

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

S
up

er
vi

so
r 

K
ei

th
 C

ar
so

n,
 D

-5
Ju

n-
09

A
pr

-1
2

A
p

r-
14

0

12
V

ac
an

cy
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 M

ay
o

rs
' C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

, D
-3

13
V

ac
an

cy
A

la
m

ed
a 

L
ab

o
r 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

F
L

-C
IO

14
V

ac
an

cy
E

as
t 

B
ay

 B
ic

yc
le

 C
o

al
it

io
n

15
V

ac
an

cy
L

ea
g

u
e 

o
f 

W
o

m
en

 V
o

te
rs

16
V

ac
an

cy
S

ie
rr

a 
C

lu
b

17
V

ac
an

cy
S

u
p

er
vi

so
r 

W
ilm

a 
C

h
an

, D
-3

CW
C 

M
ee

tin
g 

01
/1

4/
13

 
At

ta
ch

m
en

t 0
9A

2

Page 195



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 196


	01_Presentation_CWC_Compliance_Review_Process
	01a_Memo_and_Attachments_of_Compliance_Review_Process_122112
	04_CWC_Meeting_Minutes_111912
	05a_Presentation_Pass-through_Grants_Update
	05a1_Memo_and_Attachments_for_Pass-through_Funds_and_Grant_Programs
	06_Presentation_Audited_Financial_Statementt_06-30-12
	06a_ACTC_Annual_Financial_Report_063012
	06a1_CWC_Joint_Commission_AuditMeeting_Notes_120612
	07_CWC_Issues_Identification_Process&Form
	08a_Memo_Response_to_Submitted_Issues_Form
	08a1_Issues_Form_Submitted_for_CWC_Review_111912
	08a2_Memo_Annual_Report_Cost_Benefit_Analysis
	Attachments_Annual_Report_Cost_Benefit_Analysis.pdf
	Sheet1


	08a3_Memo_and_Attachments_TEP_Ballot_Costs_draft
	08a3_AttachA_Memo_ScopesBudgetsFundsources.pdf
	Technical Analysis and Coordination


	09a_AlamedaCTC_Action_Items_120612
	FY12-13

	09a1_CWC_Calendar_FY12-13
	July 9, 2012 CWC Meeting
	 Public Hearing on CWC Annual Report
	October 2012
	 CWC Post-Audit Subcommittee Meeting
	November 19, 2012 CWC Meeting
	January 14, 2013 CWC Meeting
	February 2013
	March 11, 2013 CWC Meeting
	April 2013 CWC Annual Report Subcommittee Meeting
	June 10, 2013 CWC Meeting
	July 2013
	 CWC Pre-Audit Subcommittee Meeting

	09a2_CWC_Roster
	Active Members




